
 

 

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH 
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801 
www.ryedale.gov.uk  working with you to make a difference 
 
 

 

1 Apologies for absence   
 

 

2 Minutes of the meeting held on the 1st of July 2014  (Pages 3 - 7) 
 

 

3 Urgent Business    

 

 

 
Please Contact 

 
Jo Holmes/Karen Hood 

 
Extension 

 
310/386 

 
Date of Publication 

 
22 July 2014 

 
E Mail 

 
jo.holmes@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk 

 

 
 
MEMBERS ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO THE FOLLOWING MATTER.  A 
MEMBERS BRIEFING IS SCHEDULED FOR 5.30PM ON WEDNESDAY 30 
JULY 2014 IN RESPECT OF APPLICATION NOS. 14/00426/MOUTE, 
14/00427/MOUTE, 14/00428/MOUTE AND 14/00429/MOUTE SUBMITTED 
BY COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS & FITZWILLIAM TRUST 
CORPORPORATION. 
 
THERE WILL BE AN OFFICER UPDATE ON THE CURRENT PROGRESS 
ON THE APPLICATIONS FOR MEMBERS INFORMATION AND THE 
OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS TO ASK QUESTIONS TO THE OFFICERS 
AS PART OF THE PROCESS. 
 
IT IS ANTICIPATED THAT ALL FOUR APLICATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO A 
FULL OFFICER REPORT TO A FUTURE MEETING OF THE PLANNING 
COMMITTEE. 
 
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE WILL FOLLOW ON AFTER THE 
COMPLETION OF THE MEMBERS BRIEFING. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
Wednesday 30 July 2014 at 6.00 pm 
  
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton 
 
 

     Agenda 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

 To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest    

 Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.  
 

5 PART B - Ryedale Community Infrastructure Levy - Discretionary Relief and 
Payment Instalment Policies  (Pages 8 - 12) 

 

 

6 PART A - Scarborough Borough Council - Draft Local Plan  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

 

7 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee  (Pages 17 - 19) 
 

 

8 14/00383/MOUT - Land To North Of Sutton Grange, Langton Road, Norton 
 (Pages 20 - 22) 

 

 

9 14/00511/MFUL - Linton Mill , Wintringham, Malton  (Pages 23 - 30) 
 

 

10 14/00574/MFUL - Musley Bank Stables, Musley Bank, Malton  (Pages 31 - 58) 
 

 

11 07/01162/FUL - S A Bell, Old York Road, Barton Hill  (Pages 59 - 73) 
 

 

12 13/00551/FUL - Land At Dotterel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe  (Pages 74 - 
166) 

 

 

13 13/00850/FUL - Land To West, Pasture Road, Weaverthorpe, Malton  (Pages 167 
- 274) 

 

 

14 13/00851/FUL - Land To North Of, Main Road, Weaverthorpe, Malton (Pages 275 
- 377) 

 

 

15 14/00315/FUL - Land South Of , Street Lane, Pickering  (Pages 378 - 385) 
 

 

16 14/00362/FUL - Three Tuns Inn, Main Street, West Lutton, Malton  (Pages 386 - 
404) 

 

 

17 14/00458/FUL - Poplar House Farm, Leppington Lane, Leppington  (Pages 405 - 
416) 

 

 

18 14/00593/FUL - Village Farm, Goose Track Lane, West Lilling  (Pages 417 - 463) 
 

 



 
 
 

 

19 14/00695/FUL - Ropery House RDC Area Office, The Ropery, Pickering  (Pages 
464 - 469) 

 

 

20 14/00699/FUL - Ryedale Swimming Pool, Mill Lane, Pickering  (Pages 470 - 474) 
 

 

21 Enforcement report - 3 Con Owl Close, Helmsley   
 

 

22 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.   
 

 

23 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.  (Pages 475 - 481) 
 

 

24 Update on Appeal Decisions  (Pages 482 - 486) 
 

 



 

Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 1 July 2014 

 
 

 

Planning Committee 
 
Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton 
Tuesday 1 July 2014 
 
 
Present 

 
Councillors  Mrs Frank (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Goodrick, Hicks, Hope, Maud, Richardson, 
Mrs Sanderson, Mrs Shields (Substitute), Windress (Chairman) and Woodward 
 
Substitutes: Councillor Mrs E Shields (for Councillor Mrs L M Burr MBE) 
 
 
In Attendance 

 
Jo Holmes, Alan Hunter, Shaun Robson, Mel Warters and Anthony Winship 
 
 
Minutes 

 
24 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Mrs Burr.  
 

25 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 2014 
 

Decision 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 3 June 
2014 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
[For 9  Against 0  Abstain 1] 
 

 
26 Urgent Business 

 
There was no urgent business.  
 

27 Declarations of Interest 
 
The following Members’ indicated that they would be declaring interest under 
the Members’ Code of Conduct in respect of the following item. 
 
Councillor    Application 
Maud     6,8,13 
Hope     6,12,13 
Frank     8 
Sanderson    8,13 
Hicks     9,13 

Agenda Item 2

Page 4



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 1 July 2014 

 
 

Windress    9 
Woodward    8,13 
 

28 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee 
 
The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the 
applications for planning permission with recommendations there on. 
 

29 14/00383/MOUT - Land to North of Sutton Grange, Langton Road, Norton, 
Malton 
 
14/00383/MOUT - Erection of 15no. dwellings (site area 0.7ha). 
 

Decision 
 

SITE VISIT  
 
[For 5  Against 4  Abstain 1] 
 

 
 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Maud and Hope 
declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. 
 
 

30 13/01141/MFUL - Land At Allotments, Broughton Road, Malton 
 
13/01141/MFUL - Erection of 27no. 4-bed dwellings, 23no. 3-bedroom 
dwellings, 17no. 2-bed dwellings and 16no. 1-bed dwellings, associated 
garages, parking, public open space and landscaping. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended and S106 
Agreement. 
 
[For 8  Against 0  Abstain 2] 
 

 
31 14/00340/MFUL - Cedar Barn Farm Shop, Thornton Road, Pickering 

 
14/00340/MFUL - Laying of 600m of 7¼ inch wide miniature railway track, 
formation of tunnel, excavation of duck pond and extension of existing car park 
to form 20no. additional car parking spaces. 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 1 July 2014 

 
 

Decision 
 
PERMISSION GRANTED  – Subject to conditions as recommended and 
addition of Highway Condition. 
 
[For 10  Against 0  Abstain 0] 

 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Maud, Mrs 
Frank, Mrs Sanderson and Woodward declared a personal non pecuniary but 
not prejudicial interest. 
 
 
 

32 14/00430/MFUL - Birch Farm , The Terrace, Oswaldkirk 
 
14/00430/MFUL - Erection of an agricultural grain store with associated 
landscaping - retrospective application (revised details to approval 
12/00582/MFUL dated 20.09.2012). 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended and revised 
landscape/boundary planting condition. 
 
[For 10  Against 0  Abstain 0] 
 

 
 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hicks and 
Windress declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.  
 

33 14/00358/FUL - Store At Fullerton House, Marishes Low Road, Low 
Marishes, Malton 
 
14/00358/FUL - Change of use and alterations of outbuilding to form a two 
bedroom dwelling to include formation of vehicular access and associated 
parking and amenity area. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended. 
 
[For 7  Against 2  Abstain 1] 
 

 
34 14/00372/FUL - Jamies Cragg Caravan Site , Castle Howard Station Road, 

Welburn 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 1 July 2014 

 
 

 
14/00372/FUL - Change of use of land to allow the siting of 2 no. two bedroom 
holiday lodges and formation of parking spaces. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended. 
 
[For 8  Against 1  Abstain 1] 
 

 
35 14/00409/FUL - Building Opposite Glebe Farm, Bull Moor Lane, Flaxton, 

Malton 
 
14/00409/FUL - Erection of single storey extension forming office and staff 
amenities to serve existing marquee hire business. 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Subject to conditions as recommended. 
 
[For 10  Against 0  Abstain 0] 

 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Hope declared a 
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. 
 

36 13/01242/CLEUD - Steam and Moorland Garden Centre, Malton Road, 
Pickering 
 
13/01242/CLEUD - Certificate of Lawfulness in respect of the retail sales of 
goods in breach of condition 06 of approval 00/00400/OUT dated 04.08.2000 
for more than 10 years before the date of this application. 
 

Decision 
 

APPLICATION REFUSED – Not proven on current evidence.   
 
[For 6  Against 2  Abstain 2] 
 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Maud, Hope, 
Mrs Frank, Mrs Sanderson, Hicks and Woodward declared a personal non 
pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.  
 

37 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 1 July 2014 

 
 

The Chairman put forward a date of 15 July for the site visit at Sutton Grange. It 
was decided that an e-mail would be circulated to establish the best date for 
Members’ to attend. 
 

38 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. 
 
The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously 
circulated) which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of 
Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of Delegate Decisions. 
 
 
 

39 Update on Appeal Decisions 
 
Members’ were advised of the following appeal decisions. 
 
APP/Y2736/D/14/2217072 – The Brow, Leavening, Malton, North Yorkshire, 
YO17 9SR. 
 

Meeting Closed at 8.20pm. 
 
 
 

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART B:   RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL  
 
REPORT TO:   PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 
DATE:    30 JULY 2014 
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF PLANNING AND HOUSING 
    GARY HOUSDEN 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: RYEDALE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY. 

DISCRETIONARY RELIEF AND PAYMENT INSTALMENT 
POLICIES. 

 
WARDS AFFECTED: ALL WARDS EXCLUDING THE AREA OF THOSE WARDS 

FALLING WITHIN THE NORTH YORK MOORS NATIONAL 
PARK. 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 For Members to consider and agree the circumstances under which discretionary 

relief from CIL will be given and the use of a CIL payment instalment policy. 
  
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 That Council is recommended to agree in principle to the: 
 

(i) Circumstances under which the Council, as charging authority will offer 
Discretionary Relief from CIL as outlined in paragraphs 6.12-6.16 and  

  
(ii) Use of a CIL Instalment Policy 
 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To assist the transparent implementation of CIL in accordance with the regulations.  
 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 There are no significant risks associated with this report.  
 
5.0 POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Members are aware that the Council has agreed to progress the use of the 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The CIL will be an important means of 
delivering objectives of the Council Plan and the Development Plan policies. 

 
REPORT 
 
6.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
6.1 Members are aware that the CIL Draft Charging Schedule (DCS) was agreed by this 

Committee on the 7 May 2014 and by Council on 15th May 2014. The DCS has been 
formally published and officers are currently preparing to submit it for independent 
examination. 

 
6.2 The CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) include provisions which give charging 

authorities the discretion to offer relief from CIL under specific circumstances. (CIL 
relief can mean either an exemption or reduction in liability to pay the levy.) These 
discretionary powers are in addition to the mandatory relief or exemptions which 
apply to specific types of development. If a Charging Authority resolves to use these 
discretionary powers it must give the relevant notice and state its policy on the 
matter. 

 
6.3 The Regulations also provide a Charging Authority with the ability to allow CIL to be 

paid in instalments. In order for a Charging Authority to do this, it must publish an 
instalment policy on its web-site. 

 
6.4 It is not necessary that the Council has these policies in place in order for the Draft 

Charging Schedule to progress through the examination. However, it is considered 
that an agreed position on both of these matters would ensure that the Council is 
entirely transparent over how it intends to implement CIL as the Draft Charging 
Schedule is examined. 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Relief 
 
6.5 Members are aware that there are some types of development which will not be liable 

to pay CIL. Examples include: 
 

• Buildings into which people do not normally go 

• Buildings into which people go only intermittently for the purpose of inspecting or 
maintaining fixed plant or machinery 

• Structures which are not buildings such as pylons and wind turbines 

• Development which are Charging Authority has decided should be zero rated and 
specified as such in a Charging Schedule 

• Vacant buildings brought back into the same use 

• Development of less than 100 square metres of gross internal floorspace which does 
not involve the creation of a new dwelling 

• The change of use, conversion or subdivision of a building that does not involve an 
increase in floorspace 

• Temporary development for a limited time period 

• The creation of a mezzanine floor within a building of less than 200 square metres 

• Houses, flats, residential annexes and residential extensions which are built by self 
builders (defined in the regulations) 

• Affordable housing that meets the relief criteria set out in the regulations 

• Charitable development that meets the relief criteria set out in the regulations 
 

Page 10



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

 
6.6 Additionally, it should be noted that where the Levy liability is calculated to be less 

the £50, the chargeable amount is deemed to be zero. 
  

Discretionary Relief/Exemption 
 
6.7 The Regulations allow charging authorities to offer three forms of relief at their 

discretion, providing that if charging authority resolves to do so, it is satisfied that this 
would not breach State aid rules. The forms of discretionary relief are: 

• Discretionary charitable relief 

• Exceptional circumstances relief 

• Discretionary social housing relief 
 
6.8 Most forms of development by a charitable institution will be exempt for CIL where 

the development is used wholly or mainly for charitable purposes and subject to a 
range of specific criteria. However, a Charging Authority can choose to offer 
discretionary relief to a charitable landowner where the greater part of the chargeable 
development will be held as an investment from which profits are applied for 
charitable purposes. 

 
6.9 A charging authority may also resolve to offer relief from the levy in exceptional 

circumstances where a specific scheme cannot afford to pay and it is deemed that 
the levy would have an unacceptable impact on the economic viability of a 
development. It should be noted, that this could only be applied in situations where a 
Section 106 agreement is in place as well as the Levy. 

 
6.10 Mandatory Social Housing relief applies to all types of affordable housing provided by 

a Registered Provider, Registered Social Landlord or Local Housing Authority. A 
Charging Authority may offer further discretionary relief for affordable housing which 
does not meet the criteria required for mandatory social housing relief and which is 
not regulated through the National Rent Regime. This would apply, for example, to 
developers and private landlords providing intermediate affordable housing types. 

 
6.11 Any decision to offer these discretionary forms of relief will impose an additional level 

of complexity in the administration and management of CIL. For this reason, it is 
considered that the Council should only introduce discretionary relief where it is 
confident that there are clear and justifiable reasons for doing so. It should be noted 
that a Charging Authority can introduce (or remove) discretionary relief at any stage, 
providing it gives the appropriate statutory notice. 

 
 Discretionary Charitable Relief (DCR) 
 
6.12 Officers are not aware of any particular trend or examples of development for 

investment purposes by charities in Ryedale to date. It is considered that those 
charities which may have the resources to undertake development for investment 
purposes are likely to be national organisations and in this respect, it should be noted 
that any relief offered would not necessarily be directly felt by residents of Ryedale. 
This point is made as it appears that a number of charging authorities that have  
offered DCR have done so subject to criteria designed to ensure that the charitable 
investment is used to fund the provision of services to residents in the area. It is 
considered that this would be a particularly difficult criterion to apply to charities 
which operate nationwide.  

 

Page 11



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

6.13 Most of the charitable development which will be experienced in Ryedale will be 
covered by mandatory exemptions and officers are of the view that there is little 
evidence to suggest that discretionary charitable relief could be sufficiently justified at 
this stage. However, it is considered that this is something which the Council will 
keep under review as CIL is introduced and as it beds in. 

 
 Exceptional Circumstances Relief 
 
6.14 The Council has prepared its Draft Charging Schedule taking account of economic 

viability matters and the requirements of the legislation to strike an appropriate 
balance between the need to fund infrastructure and the potential implications for the 
economic viability of development in Ryedale. It is considered that the circumstances 
which would justify exceptional circumstances relief would be very rare, given that the 
CIL rate is set/ informed by viability evidence. Furthermore, the Local Plan Strategy 
has been prepared to support the release of the types of sites which should be less 
challenging in terms of economic viability. For these reasons, together with the fact 
that such discretionary relief would also impose an additional level of complexity in 
the administration and management of CIL, it is considered that the Council should 
not offer this form of relief at this stage. It should be noted however, that such a 
policy could be introduced at any stage and the position can be kept under review. 

 
Discretionary social housing relief 

 
6.15 Members are aware that affordable social housing provided by Registered Social 

Landlords is exempt from CIL. However, the legislation allows for other intermediate 
tenures such as shared equity or discounted homes for sale to be exempt from CIL at 
the discretion of a Charging Authority.  

 
6.16 Members are aware that it is this Council’s policy to seek a proportion of these forms 

of affordable housing as developer contributions. It is considered that in order to       
ensure that the viability of affordable homes is maintained and that these forms of 
affordable housing can continue to be delivered, there is a need to ensure that all 
forms of affordable housing qualify for relief from CIL. If Members endorse this 
position a detailed policy statement will be prepared, notice given and the policy 
would be made available on the web-site, once the Council is in a position to 
introduce CIL. 

 
 Proposed Instalment Policy 
 
6.17 The CIL legislation allows CIL Charging Authorities to introduce a policy which would 

allow CIL to be paid in instalments by developers. Normally, developers would be 
liable to pay CIL on commencement of development. An instalment policy would 
allow payments to be phased and would assist developers in terms of development 
finances and scheme viability. For this reason, it is considered that an instalment 
policy should be supported in principle. Once the draft CIL charge has progressed 
through examination and the Council is in a position to introduce the charge, 
Members will be asked to formally adopt the CIL at a future meeting. 

 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The following implications have been identified: 
 

a) Financial 

Page 12



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

Discretionary Social Housing Relief is unlikely to result in the loss of CIL as 
without the discretionary relief policy in place it is very unlikely that the relevant 
types of affordable housing will be delivered as they are not likely to be viable 
against the CIL charge. A CIL instalment policy will influence the time taken to 
collect CIL from developments and this may have implications for the delivery 
and prioritisation of infrastructure projects which will be funded through the use 
of CIL. 

 
b) Legal 

No direct implications identified 
 
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 

Disorder) 
No other implications identified 

 
8.0 NEXT STEPS  
 
8.1 After the CIL examination and once the Council is in a position to introduce the CIL 

charge, the Council will give notice of its intention to introduce any policy relating to 
discretionary relief and will publish details on its web-site. Members will be asked to 
agree the details of a proposed instalment policy when they consider /agree to the 
introduction of the charge, following the examination. 

 
Gary Housden 
Head of Planning and Housing 
 
Author:  Jill Thompson, Forward Planning Manager 
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext: 327 
E-Mail Address: jill.thompson@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers: 
CIL Report - Planning Committee 7 May 2014 
Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance  DCLG February 2014 
 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 
www.ryedale.gov.uk 
www.gov.uk/dclg 
 
  

Page 13



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
REPORT TO:   PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    30 JULY 2014 
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF PLANNING AND HOUSING 
    GARY HOUSDEN 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: SCARBOROUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL DRAFT LOCAL 

PLAN 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  NONE DIRECTLY  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide a response from the District Council to Scarborough Borough Council’s 

Draft Local Plan in terms of the exercising of the Duty to Cooperate, and general 
policy approach. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 

(i) Ryedale District Council confirms that Scarborough Borough Council has 
exercised its duty within respect of the Duty to Co-operate (Section 33A of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) (Local Development)) in the 
preparation of its Draft Local Plan.  

 
(ii) The response to the consultation (as set out in section 6.2-6.5 of this report) 

is provided to Scarborough Borough Council. 
 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Although this is not a formal stage of consultation, it is important that Ryedale District 

Council supports an adjacent authority in the provisions of the formation of their Local 
Plan. It is also important to ensure that the Council are satisfied that the objectives of 
the Ryedale Plan particularly the Local Plan Strategy, are not inadvertently 
compromised.  

 
 
   
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 14



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 There are no significant risks associated with this report. However, it is important that 

Members are aware of the emerging Local Plans of adjoining authorities and failure 
to engage could mean that District Council’s ability to engage in later consultation 
stages is compromised. It would also acknowledge the on-going involvement under 
the requirements of the Duty to Co-operate.   

 
5.0 POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Scarborough Borough Council commenced the current consultation on its draft Local 

Plan on the 30 May 2014. The consultation period is to run until the 8 August. The 
consultation is not a formal stage, but it is the precursor to the formal publication of 
the Plan (the formal Publication stage). The consultation taking place is a general 
consultation, but Scarborough Borough Council has explicitly asked that a response 
to the Draft Plan is provided by this Council, to demonstrate that Scarborough 
Borough Council is fulfilling the requirements of the Duty to Co-operate.    

 
5.2 The “Duty to Co-operate in relation to planning of sustainable development” was 

introduced in 2013, through the Localism Act of 2011, and inserted as Section 33A of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004) (Local Development). In 
summary, it places a duty on Local Planning Authorities, to engage with each other, 
and relevant statutory bodies, in a constructive, active and on an on-going basis in 
terms of, amongst other matters, the preparation of Development Plan Documents, 
and activities of a strategic nature which support the delivery of such documents. The 
Examination of Development Plan Documents will assess whether the authority has 
complied with this duty, and failure to demonstrate that the duty has been complied 
with will render the Plan unsound.  

 
5.3 Both Scarborough Borough Council and Ryedale District Council have had Officer- 

level discussions concerning cross-boundary matters, and the general Plan 
approach. As the document progresses towards its formal publication it is considered 
that it would be timely for the District Council to provide a formal response to the 
current consultation.  

 
REPORT 
 
6.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
6.1 Scarborough Borough Council is preparing a Local Plan, which will manage and 

guide development in the Borough outside of the National Park to 2030. It will contain 
both strategic policies, and land allocations. The Council has provided a covering 
letter which outlines that Scarborough Borough Council, in discussions with adjacent 
authorities, has identified that, owing to the Borough’s relative isolation, cross-
boundary issues are limited in nature, but consideration must be had to:  

• The strategic road network, with particular relevance to the A64; 

• The impact of the proposed Potash Mine on the wider area 

• The delivery of the objective[ly] assessed housing need for Scarborough 
Borough; and 

• The shared landscapes of the Borough with East Riding District Council; 
Ryedale District Council and the North York Moors National Park Authority. 

 

Page 15



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

Duty to Co-operate 
 
6.2 Officers have been engaged with Scarborough Borough Council concerning the 

preparation, examination and adoption of a series of Development Plan Documents, 
recently, i.e. The Whitby Business Park Area Action Plan, and The Ryedale Plan- 
Local Plan Strategy. It is considered that Scarborough Borough Council, in their 
preparation of this Development Plan are meeting the requirements of the Duty to 
Co-operate through on-going engagement with this Council. 

 
Cross-boundary Issues 
 
6.3 It is considered that the above cross-boundary issues as set out in paragraph 6.1 of 

this report are indeed important and that this list is accurate. It is considered that 
within the draft Local Plan they are given due recognition. The Council will continue 
to work with Scarborough Borough Council in respect of these matters. In particular, 
it is recognised in the 2011 North Yorkshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment, 
and though a range of other evidence documents, that the housing markets of 
Scarborough and Ryedale do overlap. Policy HC1 of the draft Plan for Scarborough 
Borough seeks to deliver around 9200 dwellings over the Plan Period, primarily 
through the proposed allocations within the Borough. It is considered that 
Scarborough Borough Council is demonstrably meeting its objectively assessed 
housing needs, and it does not suggest that Ryedale District should be 
accommodating any unmet housing need.  

 
6.4 It is also considered that there a small number of further matters which could be 

referred to within the context of the landscape. These relate to the identification of 
green infrastructure and the consideration of heritage aspects, but it is recognised 
that paragraph 8.61 of the draft Local Plan does indeed acknowledge the relationship 
with adjoining Local Authorities concerning the identification and provision of Green 
Infrastructure.   

 
6.4 It is also noted that Scarborough Borough Council is not considering implementation 

of a Local Needs Occupancy Condition. Whether to include the application of such a 
condition within their Development Plan is a matter for the Borough Council. 
However, it is considered that within the accompanying text of the housing section it 
could be appropriate to make reference to the fact that Ryedale District Council does 
operate Local Needs Occupancy condition, which is applied to certain forms of 
residential development within the lower tiers of the Settlement Hierarchy. This is 
because the requirements of the condition are applicable to individuals (or their 
dependents) who are living in an adjacent parish (which could be outside of the 
District, and therefore be from a Scarborough Borough Parish).   

 
Allocations and relationship to any cross-boundary matters 
 
6.5 The Scarborough Borough Local Plan is to contain a series of allocations of land for 

residential and employment (B use classes). Of the allocations, there is one site 
which is close to Ryedale District. This is a Strategic Growth Area at South Cayton; 
covering 112ha of land, and providing around 2400 homes, community facilities and 
services, and providing links to the Scarborough Business Park, as well as 
associated infrastructure. It will also involve improvements to the wider road network, 
and links into the A64. It is considered that whilst it is a sizable site, it represents the 
best opportunity to meet Scarborough Borough’s housing needs in a coordinated 
manner whilst providing commensurate facilities and services.   

Page 16



PLANNING COMMITTEE  30 JULY 2014 
  
 

 

 
 
6.6 In conclusion, Ryedale District Council considers that the Spatial Strategy, Policies 

and allocations of the Scarborough Borough Draft Local Plan, would not be in conflict 
with the provisions of The Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy. There is consistency of 
approach in terms of cross-boundary issues, and such matters that would not 
undermine our Plan.  

 
 
7.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The following implications have been identified: 

a) Financial 
No financial implications. 

 
b) Legal 

No legal implications. 
 
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 

Disorder) 
No other implications 

 
8.0 NEXT STEPS 
 
8.1 The agreed response will be provided to Scarborough Borough Council prior to the 

consultation deadline. Scarborough Borough Council is aiming to Publish the Plan in 
the last quarter of 2014. At this point the District Council will be required to provide a 
formal response to the consultation, which will be answered as part of the 
Examination into the Plan, and importantly to evidence that Scarborough Borough 
Council can demonstrate legal compliance with the Duty to Co-operate.  

 
Gary Housden 
Head of Planning and Housing 
 
Author:  Rachael Mark, Planning Officer, Forward Planning and Conservation 
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext: 357 
E-Mail Address: rachael.mark@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers: 
Draft Scarborough Borough Local Plan 
 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 
 
http://scarborough.objective.co.uk/portal 

Page 17



30/07/14

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

14/00383/MOUT

Erection of 15no. dwellings (site area 0.7ha)

8

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land To North Of Sutton Grange Langton Road Norton Malton North 

Yorkshire  

14/00511/MFUL

Change of use of 2no. steel portal framed sheds from commercial 

warehousing to agricultural storage.

9

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Linton Mill  Wintringham Malton YO17 8HP

14/00574/MFUL

Erection of stabling buildings with ramp, toilet block, temporary portable 

office building and horse treadmill building (revised details to part of 

approval 08/00630/MFUL dated 01.10.2008) - part retrospective 

application.

10

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Musley Bank Stables Musley Bank Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6TD 

07/01162/FUL

Change of use of building to include Use Class B1 (light industrial) in 

addition to existing Use Class B8 (storage and distribution)

11

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: S A Bell Old York Road Barton Hill York YO60 7JX 

13/00551/FUL

Erection of 1no. 55m high (overall tip height 81m) 500kw wind turbine to 

generate electricity for the National Grid with associated sub station, crane 

pad, access track and temporary construction compound.

12

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land At Dotterel Farm Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire  

Agenda Item 7

Page 18



30/07/14

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

13/00850/FUL

Erection of 1no. 40m high (overall tip height 67m) 500kw wind turbine to 

generate electricity for the benefit of the local community with associated 

crane pad, transformer kiosk, access track, vehicular access and 40.5m high 

temporary meteorological monitoring mast.

13

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land To West Pasture Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire  

13/00851/FUL

Erection of 1no. 40m high (overall tip height 67m) 500kw wind turbine to 

generate electricity for the benefit of the local community with associated 

crane pad, transformer kiosk, access track, vehicular access and 40.5m high 

temporary meteorological monitoring mast.

14

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land To North Of Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire  

14/00315/FUL

Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of livestock and storage 

of machinery and feed, together with formation of additional hardstanding.

15

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land South Of  Street Lane Pickering North Yorkshire  

14/00362/FUL

Change of use and alterations of public house to form a 4 bedroom dwelling.

16

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Three Tuns Inn Main Street West Lutton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8TA 

14/00458/FUL

Erection of an agricultural livestock building for calf housing

17

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Poplar House Farm Leppington Lane Leppington Malton North Yorkshire 

YO17 9RL 

Page 19



30/07/14

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

14/00593/FUL

Demolition of existing dwelling and agricultural buildings to allow erection 

of 1no. four bedroom replacement dwelling with detached double garage, 

erection of two storey and single storey extensions to existing farmhouse to 

form a five bedroom dwelling following demolition of single storey 

outbuildings and erection of a terrace of 3no. three bedroom dwellings with 

block of 3no. detached garages

18

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Village Farm Goose Track Lane West Lilling YO60 6RP 

14/00695/FUL

Installation of automatic doors to west elevation to replace existing manual 

doors.

19

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Ropery House RDC Area Office The Ropery Pickering North Yorkshire 

YO18 8DY 

14/00699/FUL

Replacement of existing hardwood windows on south elevation with 

aluminium double glazed units and replacement of UPVC windows in bay 

window with aluminium double glazed units together with installation of 

flat roof on bay window.

20

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Ryedale Swimming Pool Mill Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8DJ 

Page 20



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

30 July 2014 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 
 

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 
 

 

 

Item Number: 8 

Application No: 14/00383/MOUT 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Appn. Type: Outline Application  Major 
Applicant: Mr David Tatham 

Proposal: Erection of 15no. dwellings (site area 0.7ha) 

Location: Land To North Of Sutton Grange Langton Road Norton Malton North 

Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date: 1 April 2014 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 1 July 2014 

Case Officer: Shaun Robson Ext: 319 
 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Public Rights Of Way Contributions Advised 

Parish Council Recommend refusal 

Property Management Contributions required 
Countryside Officer No objection subject to conditions 

Land Use Planning No objections 

Housing Services No objection 

Building Conservation Officer No objection, recommend conditions 

North Yorkshire Education Authority Contributions required 

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend conditions 

National Grid Plant Protection No views received to date 

Building Conservation Officer No views received to date 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No consultation required 

Archaeology Section No known archaeological constraints 

Housing Services No views received to date 

Forward Planning & Conservation No views received to date 

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend previous conditions 
Mr Jim Shanks No further comments to add 

 

 

Neighbour responses:  Mrs Myers,Sally McGibbon,Alison Tuer,Charlotte 

McGibbson,Jackie McGibbson,S Munroe,P J Gray,Stone 

And Bean Associates,Jean Thorpe M.B.E.,Mrs S 

Goodchild,Mrs Christine Davenport,K.B & J Fisher,Mr 
Barker,Mrs J Power,A Henderson,E M Shaw,Margaret 

Mackinder, 

 Overall Expiry Date: 30 June 2014 

 
 

 

 

This application was deferred at the Planning Committee on the 1 July 2014 in order for Members of the 

Planning Committee to undertake a site inspection. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 21



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

30 July 2014 

 

Members are asked to refer to the papers attached for the previous report details of the proposal, the 

officer report, objections and Town Council comments. Following the publication of the late pages and 

the Committee, 6 further responses have been received on behalf of and from residents. The comments 

raised reflect those comments already received and do not raise any further issues. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal  
 

1 The proposed development by reason of its proximity to Sutton Grange Barn would result in 

an unacceptable level of harm to the setting and character of the Listed Building. Insufficient 

public benefits are derived from the development that outweighs the harm to the designated 

asset. The application is therefore considered to be contrary to Policy SP12 of the Ryedale 

Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the provisions of Section 12 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, specifically paragraphs 129, 131, 132, 133, 134 and the statutory provisions of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



Page 23



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 14/00511/MFUL 

Parish: Wintringham Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: T Mason Services Ltd. (Mr Tom Mason) 

Proposal: Change of use of 2no. steel portal framed sheds from commercial 

warehousing to agricultural storage. 

Location: Linton Mill  Wintringham Malton YO17 8HP 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  7 August 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  6 August 2014 

Case Officer:  Shaun Robson Ext: 319 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No response received to date  

Parish Council No response received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Environmental Health Officer Concerned with potential change of use to livestock 

building - recommend conditions  

Land Use Planning No comments required by Yorkshire Water  

 
Neighbour responses: None 

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site comprises two existing ‘agricultural style’ buildings at Linton Mill, which 

previously operated as an agricultural holding and a warehouse.   

 

The buildings are of a similar height with a variation in the floor space of the buildings, 1771.6 and 

1051.2 square metre internal floor space. 

 

The site is outside the development limits of any defined settlement, as such, it lies within the open 
countryside.  It is also within Flood Zones 2 and 3. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

The proposal seeks planning permission for the change of use of the existing steel portal framed sheds 

from commercial warehousing to storage of agricultural machinery/equipment.   

 

HISTORY: 

 
09/00335/FUL Change of use and alteration of former mill buildings and attached offices to form 

2no. three bedroom dwellings and 2no two bedroom dwellings with amenity/parking 

areas and alteration of existing vehicular access – WITHDRAWN 12.01.2012 

 

06/00798/73 Variation of Condition 05 to allow the premises to be additionally used for general 
parcel/pallet distribution and Variation of Conditions 07 and 08 to allow the times 

stated to be amended from Monday to Saturday 08.00 - 18.00 to Monday to Saturday 

07.00 - 22.00 (approval 3/153/2J/FA dated 24.03.1995 refers) – REFUSED  

25.09.2006 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 24



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

3/153/2L/FA Amendment to working housing (from 0800 - 1800 to 0700 - 2000 hours) and vehicle 

weight restrictions (from 1.5 tonnes un-laden to 7.5 tonnes gross vehicle weight) 

imposed by Condition 07 and 08 of decision 3/153/2J/FA – REFUSED 19.06.1995 

 

3/153/2K/FA Erection of extension and alterations to office block – APPROVED 27.03.1995 

 

3/153/2J/FA Erection of a double span warehouse (1778SM) and extension to existing warehouse 

(384SM) – APPROVED 24.03.1995 

 

3/153/2H/FA Cladding of existing warehouse – APPROVED 24.05.1994 

 

3/153/2G/FA Change of use and alteration of Brick Mill buildings to form 3 houses and demolition 

of fabricated Mill Buildings and erection of four detached houses and garages – 

REFUSED 04.03.1993 
 

3/153/2E/PA Construction of a mill extension to house blending system – APPROVED   

07.08.1984 

 

3/153/2D/PA Erection of a building to house machinery used in the manufacture of animal food 

stuffs – APPROVED 14.08.1980 

 
3/153/2C/PA Erection of agricultural building for the storage of animal feeds – APPROVED   

30.10.1979 

 

3/153/2B/PA Construction of an agricultural building for the storage of animal feeds –  

APPROVED 01.08.1977 

 

3/153/2A/PA Extension to existing site to increase bulk storage – APPROVED 07.05.1976 

 

3/153/2/PA Erection of Boythorpe Cropstore – APPROVED 03.09.1974 

 

POLICY: 

 

National Planning Policy 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Practise Guidance 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP6 – Delivery and Distributing of Employment Land and Premises 
Policy SP9 – The Land-Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 – Landscapes 

Policy SP16 – Design  

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 

PUBLICITY: 

 
No responses received. 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The main material considerations in relation to this application are: 

 

• Principle of development in policy terms 

• Impact on the character of the area 

Page 25



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

• Impact of development on residential amenity 

• Impact on highway safety; and 

• Flooding 

 

Principle of development 

 

In considering this proposal, Members will note that Section 3 (Supporting a prosperous rural 

economy) of the National Planning Policy Framework, is supportive of the need to promote a strong 

rural economy in rural areas. Nevertheless, regard is also to be had to the material considerations of 

the development and the impact the proposal would have on the character of the surrounding 

countryside.  

 

Policy SP6 of the Ryedale Local Plan supports employment proposal in the wider open countryside, 
specifically it states: 

 

“Expansion land for existing major employers/established businesses; small scale conversion of 

existing buildings of new buildings to support appropriate rural economic activity…” 

 

Policy SP9 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy also supports the land-based economy, specifically it 

supports the conversion of existing buildings to sustain the rural economic activity.    
 

Impact on the character of the area 

 

The application site is located within the open countryside and despite the size of the buildings are 

screened approaching the site from the east and west.   

 

Given that the proposal involves the use of the internal area of the buildings, officers do not 
considered that the proposal will have a detrimental impact on the surrounding area. No security 

lighting is proposed.  

 

In terms of the landscape impact, the landform of the area is generally flat but as stated the site is 

already well screened. 

 

It is considered, therefore, that the development is not contrary to Policy SP13 and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

Impact on residential amenity 

 

With respect to residential amenity, the main concern of the proposal is related to the impact of the 

development on the nearby dwelling to the north and east of the site. 
 

The previous use of the site as general warehousing operated within limited hours of operation, from 

08.00-18.00hrs. That use is considered to be fundamentally different to the current proposal. 

However, in order to ensure that the proposal does not have a detrimental impact on the identified 

residential properties the Environmental Health Officer (EHO) has been consulted. A formal response 

has yet to be received from the EHO and Members will be updated in either the late pages or verbally 

at Committee.  
 

Impact on highway safety 

 

In terms of highway safety, the highway authority has been consulted and raised no objection to the 

application subject to the imposition of a condition. 

 

Therefore the development is amended to be acceptable in highway terms.  

Page 26



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Flooding 

 

The application site is located in flood zone 2 and 3 on the Environment Agency’s flood map. 

 

The NPPF states that buildings or land used for agricultural purposes are classified as less vulnerable 

development and these are considered to be compatible uses in flood zones 2 and 3.  

 

The Environment Agency has been consulted but has yet to formally respond. Members will again be 

updated in the late pages or verbally at the committee.  

 

Conclusion 

 

In view of the above, the recommendation is one of approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to the views of statutory consultees 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 
2 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site (except for the purposes of constructing the initial site access) until splays are provided 

giving clear visibility to the extremities of land shown in blue as being under the control of 

the applicant with the public highway Main Street, Wintringham from a point measured 2.4 

metres down the centre line of the access road.  The eye height will be 1.05 metres and the 

object height shall be 0.6 metres. Once created, these visibility areas shall be maintained 

clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all times. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan 

Strategy and in the interests of road safety.   

  

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 
  

 Site Layout Plan dated stamped 8th May 2014. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Item Number: 10 

Application No: 14/00574/MFUL 

Parish: Huttons Ambo Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: R F Racing Ltd (Mr Richard Fahey) 

Proposal: Erection of stabling buildings with ramp, toilet block, temporary portable 

office building and horse treadmill building (revised details to part of 

approval 08/00630/MFUL dated 01.10.2008) - part retrospective 

application. 

Location: Musley Bank Stables Musley Bank Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6TD 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  26 August 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  11 July 2014 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council Object  

Archaeology Section Representations received  

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommends implementation of landscaping scheme 

form previous application and attachment of similar 
condition  

Countryside Officer Updated ecological assessment required  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Land Use Planning No comments required  

Highways Agency (Leeds) No objection  

Howardian Hills AONB JC Comments made  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend conditions  

 
Neighbour responses: John M Drummond, Mr I Brisby, Mr S M Newby,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 
Musley Bank Stables are situated west of Malton close to the western access point on/off the A64.  

The stables are used for racehorse training purposes and have long been established, although 

expanded in the recent past. 

 

The complex sits on the lower slope of Musley Bank and comprises stabling, storage buildings, horse 

walkers, staff accommodation, a   trainer’s house, paddocks and circulation space.  Access is via the 

slip road close to the western A64 junction. 
 

Residential properties abut the site on its eastern side. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a stabling building with ramp, toilet block, 

temporary portable office building and horse treadmill building (revised details to part of approval 
08/630/MFUL dated 01.10.2008). 

 

The main changes are: 

 

1. The introduction of a horse treadmill approximately measuring  4.6m by  12.3m and 4.5m to 

the ridge height. It is proposed to erect this from brickwork and Yorkshire Boarding under a 

slate grey corrugated sheeted roof. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 32



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

2. The introduction of a toilet block approximately measuring 3.5m by   5.4m and 3.4m to its 

highest point (retrospective application).This is constructed of brick under a slate roof. 

3. A temporary office building that will approximately measure 14.4m by 4m and 3.5m to its 

highest point (retrospective application). The building is of metal construction finished in 

dark green. 

4. Revisions to an approved stabling building in terms of its siting, scale, and design. The 

proposed will approximately measure 84.5m by 13.39m and be 4m to the eaves height and 

5.6m to the ridge height (retrospective application). The building is constructed of blockwork 

to 1.2m with Yorkshire Boarding above under a slate grey corrugated sheet roof. The design 

includes two open covered areas. 

 

The stabling building is located in the middle of the complex of buildings with its roof ridge running 

west-east. The proposed treadmill building is to be located between the proposed stabling building 

and an adjoining building. The office building and toilet building are proposed to be located on the 
western side of the complex. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

1990: Change of use of stud farm to racehorse training establishment - Approved 

 

2004: Erection of accommodation block for stable staff - Approved 
 

2004: Erection of dwelling - Restricted Approval 

 

2006: Erection of replacement stable block – Approved 

 

2008: Erection of stabling buildings, veterinary and storage buildings, covered exercise track for horse 

schooling and assessment, additional horsewalkers, building to form staff welfare facilities, 

administration facilities and owners suite and formation of associated parking and access road - 

Approved 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy Guidance 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012  

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 2014 

 

Local Plan Strategy – adopted 5 September 2013 

 

Policy SP9 - The Land Based and Rural Economy 
Policy SP12 – Heritage 

Policy SP13 – Landscapes 

Policy SP14 – Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 – Design 

Policy SP19 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues  

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

This application arose as a result of an Enforcement investigation following complaints.  Members are 

advised that this is a ‘Major’ application and a decision on the application has be made on or before 

26 August 2014, this being the only Committee meeting available to determine this application. 

 

 

 

Page 33



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Three of the components on this application have been built and in this respect the proposals are 

‘retrospective’. It is important to advise Members that the fact these developments have been 

completed already, is not a material planning consideration.  

 

The proposed development is an expansion of a well established racehorse training yard situated 

within the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  

 

The main issues are considered to be:- 

 

• the size, scale, siting and design of the proposed buildings and their impact on the AONB; 

 

• archaeology; 

 

• biodiversity/ecology; 

 

• impact on neighbouring property; and 

 

• access and highway safety. 

 

The proposed development relates to the expansion of an established racehorse trainer’s yard which in 

principle is supported by Policy SP9 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

 

Proposed Stabling building 

 

Members are advised that there is an extant planning permission granted in 2008 for a stabling 

building on this site, this measured 14m in width and 90m in length and 3.7m to the eaves height and 

7m to the ridge height. The agent has stated that due to constraints with ground levels and the 

interrelationship between the stabling building and the adjacent covered horse schooling area it was 

not possible to build the stabling building in the approved location. The proposed building will 

approximately measure 84.5m in length and 13.39m in width and 4m to the eaves height and 5.6m to 

the ridge height. The current proposal is therefore 5.5m shorter in length and 0.6m shorter in width, 

and 1.4m lower at its ridge height.  

 

The proposed building is also located approximately 12m to the north eastern side of the approved 

location. The nearest property outside of the applicant’s ownership, Grooms Cottage, the approved 

building was 41m from   and the proposal is 31m from Grooms Cottage. The design previously had a 

louvered design feature across its roof ridge. The current proposal does not include this design detail. 

Instead, it features a simple pitched roof representative of other agricultural/equestrian buildings in 

the District.  

 

It is understood that trees were removed from the site in order to facilitate the siting of the proposed 

building; however there was no protection afforded to these trees. It was also clear from the site 
inspection that there have been some re-grading of land levels between the location of the proposed 

stabling building and the exercise building to the south. However, this area is also contained between 

existing buildings on an existing slope and not readily visible from public vantage points, with the 

exception of the public footpath and bridleway within an adjacent to the site. 

 

In summary, and in view of the extant permission, the siting, scale and design of the proposed stabling 

building is considered to be acceptable. It is considered that additional planting is required to integrate 

the proposal into the surrounding landscape. A landscaping condition was also imposed previously for 

this purpose.   

Page 34



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Proposed new treadmill building 

 

The proposed treadmill building is the only part of the application that is not retrospective. It is 

proposed to be located between the proposed stabling building and an existing stabling building. It is 

proposed to be clad in identical materials to that of the proposed stabling building. In view of its 

discrete location between existing buildings, and  its lower roof height, the proposal is considered in 

terms of its siting, scale, and design. 

 

Proposed toilet block 

 

The proposed toilet block is constructed of brick and slate and located adjacent to existing buildings 

on the western side of the complex of buildings. There is considered to be no objection to the siting, 

scale or design of this part of the proposal. 

 
Proposed temporary office building 

 

The proposed office building is metal portakabin, and the applicant is seeking it’s use for a temporary 

period before he completes the remainder of the development approved on the 2008 planning 

permission. This building is located adjacent to existing buildings and for a temporary three-year 

period this proposal is considered to be acceptable. 

 
Landscape impact 

Whilst the economic benefits of the proposed expansion are important considerations with the 

retention and expansion of employment, and the local economic spin-off being material 

considerations. The site is within an environmentally sensitive area; the Howardian Hills AONB. The 

applicant states that he employs 70 members of staff, and the agent states that the training yard is 

nationally recognised. 

 

Policy SP13 and NPPF attach importance to the protection of the Howardian Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty. The whole site slopes significantly from north to south.  The proposed 

development is located within the established complex of buildings. A Landscape Assessment 

submitted with the 2008 application concluded that development would not result in a significant 

change in the landscape.  This view was formed on the basis that there are limited long/medium range 

views of the site from public areas, although a public footpath runs adjacent to the development.  
Natural screening from landform and tree and hedgerows make the site generally secluded.  In 

addition, the site currently accommodates significant buildings and the previously approved 

development would be integrated into this existing built form and utilises land which benefits from 

good screening. The main changes from the proposed development relates to the stabling building 

being slightly smaller and lower and being approximately 12m to the north east. This proposed 

building nevertheless is read as part of a tight group of buildings. The building will be located on 

slightly higher ground than the approved building and there is no doubt that there has been some re-
grading of the land between the stabling building and the exercise building to the south. The Joint 

Advisory Council to the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) has no objection to the 

proposals and recommends a condition regarding additional planting to soften the impact of the 

proposed buildings.  It is therefore considered that the proposed development will not have a material 

adverse effect upon the special scenic quality of the surrounding landscape.   

 

Archaeology 
A condition was imposed on the 2008 permission in respect of ground disturbance work and potential 

archaeology. That condition was discharged by the Local Planning Authority and a report prepared by 

MAP Archaeology. In the circumstances the County archaeologist has recommended a condition 

regarding the ground disturbance works arising from the development not already undertaken (the 

proposed treadmill building). 

Page 35



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Protected species 

The Council’s Countryside Management Officer has requested an ecological survey of the site due to 

the group of nearby ponds. This survey is currently outstanding and Members will be updated at the 

meeting. Discussions with the Countryside Management Officer confirm the aim of the survey is to 

obtain environmental enhancements and not necessarily related to the principle of the developments. 

In this respect, if the survey has not been received when the application is debated by Committee, and 

members are minded to approve the application this issue could be delegated to Officers. 

 

Residential amenity implications 

It was stated on the 2008 committee report: 

 

‘The nearest neighbour abuts the site on its eastern side and is already subjected to a level of 

disturbance resulting from the operation of the existing yard.  Whilst the proposal will probably 

increase activity on the site, the new access to the site, by the formation of a road running alongside 

the southern side of the proposed training ring, will bring about an alternative and better means of 

access.  This should lessen vehicle movements in the vicinity of the neighbour.’ 

 

The proposed stabling building will be approximately 12m closer to Grooms Cottage, (giving a 

separation distance of 31m) than the approved building. Part of the eastern side of the building will be 

visible from Grooms Cottage and Musley Bank House. The block plan also indicates that there was a 

building that existed previously where the eastern side of the proposed building is located. However 
there is no right to a view, and the view from these properties is not a material planning consideration. 

The proposed treadmill building, office building and toilet building is not considered to give rise to a 

material adverse effect upon the amenities of nearby properties. 

 

After discussion with the agent it is understood that the southern access arrangement which has been 

created, is used by all vehicles entering and leaving the site, with the exception of the horse 

transporters. The larger Horse Transporter vehicles, due to turning and gradient constraints use the 

access point to the north of Mews Cottage and adjacent to Grooms Cottage. Objections have been 

made regarding the operation of vehicles leaving the site from this side and using the bridleway. 

Although, it is noted that the applicant does have a right of way across the bridleway. The agent has 

stated that the daily movements are approximately 4-8 a day along this bridleway.  

 

The Environmental Health Officer has stated: 
 

“My main concerns about this type of development relate to the potential disturbance and loss of 

amenity to neighbouring residents from noise and smells from machinery and stable activities and 

animals and smoke from stable waste burning. I would therefore recommend that the applicant 

submits a plan for manure management to cover the storage and disposal of manure waste and noise 

management plan is provided to address noise from vehicle movements and deliveries, operation of 

external machinery (horse walkers/treadmill) and general work activities (this would centre around 

an agreed limitation of hours of operation)”. 

 

It is apparent from the above, that when the 2008 application was approved it was accepted that there 

would be some noise and disturbance from the existing yard. This was because the racing yard was 

existing and the proposals were an expansion of  the existing yard. However, it would appear that the 

current operations are giving rise to amenity concerns from the adjoining properties. Before 

concluding on this aspect, discussions are on-going with the agent to establish if it’s possible to agree: 
 

• an internal loop arrangement for vehicles on  site to ensure all movements are routed through 

the newly created southern access point;  

• an hours of use arrangement;  

• and a noise plan relating to on-site operations, and deliveries.  

 

 

 

Page 36



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

In trying to negotiate with the agent, Members should also note that the applicant has an extant 

planning permission for a slightly larger building in a similar location (without such controls) to 

which the associated impacts for residents could be the same as the current situation. 

 

Access and highway safety 

The access to the site from the Highway will remain as existing and both the Highway Agency, 

responsible for the A64(T), and North Yorkshire County Council have not raised any objection to the 

proposal. The movements to and from the site will be very similar to the extant planning permission 

on the site. The application site is located within a reasonable distance from Malton with good public 

transport links. The access to the site is owned by a neighbour and it is understood that the applicant 

has rights over the access. The objections raised state that the access road requires maintenance and a 

request for an S106 agreement for this purpose has been made. Given that the access track is privately 

owned, there is considered to be no legitimate basis to insist on a S106 agreement regarding the 

maintenance and condition of the private road. This is a civil issue between the respective landowners.  
 

Other issues raised 

 

The Parish Council (Huttons Ambo) has objected and there have been objections from three other 

parties, these letters are available to view online under the application reference number. The 

following issues have been raised: 

 
1. The applicant did not own the land within the red line. 

2. The position of other buildings/structures within the site and shown on the block plan are not 

accurate; 

3. Objections to the siting, design and scale of the proposed stabling building; 

4. The use of the private access to the highway from Musley Bank Stables; 

5. Position of the horsewalker; 

6. Burning of waste and refuse collection; 

7. The routing of vehicles around the complex and the use of the access and bridleway on the 

eastern side to the south of Grooms Cottage; 

8. Whether there is sufficient on-site parking; 

9. The applicant’s alleged disregard to planning legislation; 

10. Removal of trees; 

11. Other alleged breaches of planning control. 
 

The Parish Council has also stated that it supports the points raised by the occupiers of Grooms 

Cottage and Musley Bank House. The Parish Council has also suggested that any new conditions 

imposed should be strictly enforced. 

 

The following suggested remedies have been suggested by the local residents objecting to the 

proposals: 
 

1. Access and vehicle routing 

2. Restrictions on burning of waste 

3. A reduction in the size of the building on the eastern side; 

4. A landscaping plan 

5. Measures to address the condition and management of the roadway. 

6. Designated areas within the site for specified uses; a new barn storage area; a HGV parking 
area; a vehicle wash bay; a manure store; a grease pit; a fuel depot; perimeter loading bay; 

bio-security fencing around vulnerable areas.  

 

The agent has amended the application by extending the red up to the public highway, and served 

notice on the owner on 18 July 2014. This is a procedural issue and the Local Planning Authority 

cannot issue a decision until 21 days after the serving of this notice. Although, given that the notice is 

served on an objector who originally raised this along with several other issues in their objection, it 

unlikely to generate additional objections to those already raised.  

Page 37



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

The positions of other structures on the site, which are not the subject of this application, are not 

relevant considerations on this proposal. It is considered that the block plan contains adequate 

information in order for the proposed developments to be assessed. It should be noted that this 

application solely relates to the proposed developments the subject of this application. 

 

The above appraisal contains a detailed assessment of the impact of the proposed stable building. A 

reduction in the size of the building on the eastern side was discussed with the agent, and the applicant 

is not willing to reduce the size of this building. However, subject to the conditions recommended 

there is considered to be no grounds to refuse the application based on the proposed stabling building. 

 

The trees removed from the site did not have any protection. A landscaping scheme is recommended 

to assist with integrating the proposals into the landscape. 

 

The breaches of planning control do not represent a material planning consideration on this planning 
application. 

 

The local Highway Authority has no objection to the parking provision on–site. The issue of the 

access to the site from the public highway and the condition of the access track has been addressed 

above. To confirm the condition of the access track is a civil issue and it is not a material planning 

consideration, there is therefore no requirement to insist on a s106 in this respect. A condition is 

recommended to prevent any burning on-site and to require a refuse management plan. The routing of 
vehicles around the site is not a material planning application. 

 

This application cannot consider other alleged breaches of planning control. The Enforcement Officer 

has been made aware of these and issues and his investigations are ongoing.  

 

The remedies proposed by the objectors in relation to the residential amenity impacts are being 

discussed with the agent and Members will be updated at the meeting. 

 

In view of the above assessment and subject to the expiry of the ownership certificate and receipt of a 

satisfactory ecological report, the application is recommended for approval.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to the expiry of the ownership certificate and a 

satisfactory ecological report 
 

1 The Treadmill building hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 The office building hereby permitted shall be removed and the land restored to its former 
condition at or before 30 July 2017 unless an extension of the period shall first have been 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- The development permitted would be unacceptable on a permanent basis because 

of its temporary design and to protect the character and appearance of the Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty, and to satisfy Policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale 

Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
 

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

   

Page 38



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

 (NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached 

proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the 

requirements of the condition discharged) 

   

 Reason:- To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of 

landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs 

and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The 

submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on 

planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including  existing items to be retained.. All 

planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the 
first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer 

period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs 

which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 

similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 

variation. 

   
 Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved and to comply 

with the requirements of Policies SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 There shall be no means of external lighting associated with the development hereby 

approved, unless with the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

   

 Reason:- To ensure that the character and appearance of the area is not prejudiced by night 

time glare, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

 

6 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town & Country Planning General Permitted or 

Special Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on drawing no. 

PD141-02 for parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept available for their 
intended purpose at all times. 

   

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure these areas are kept available for their intended use in the interests of highway safety 

and the general amenity of the development. 

  

7 No development of the horse treadmill building shall take place until the developer has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological works in accordance with a 

written scheme of investigation submitted by the applicant and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. 

   

 Reason:-  The site is of archaeological interest and investigation/protection and observation 

of the site is required by the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
8 Within 3 months of the date of this permission, sa scheme for the storage and disposal of 

stable waste shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

There shall be no burning of stable waste.  Thereafter, stable waste shall be disposed of in 

accordance with the approved scheme. 

   

 Reason:- To ensure that stable waste is stored and disposed of in a manner which is not 

prejudicial to the local environment, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 39



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

9 Within 3 months of the date of this permission, full details of the means of foul and surface 

water drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  Thereafter, the approved scheme shall be completed in its entirety prior to any 

part of the scheme coming into use, unless with the prior written approval of the Local 

Planning Authority. 

   

 Reason:- In the interests of the satisfactory drainage of the site, to prevent pollution and to 

accordance with Policy SP18 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

10 There shall be no on-site burning of waste associated with this development. 

  

 Reason: In order to protect the amenity of adjoining neighbours and to satisfy Policy SP20 

of the Ryedale Plan. 

 
11 Within 3 months of the date of this permission a refuse management plan shall be submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development 

shall be undertaken in accordance with the details thereby agreed. 

  

 Reason: In order to protect the amenity of the adjoining neighbours and to satisfy Policy 

SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

 
12 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Drawing No. PD141-01-B; 

 Drawing No. PD141-02; 

 Drawing No. PD141-03; 

 Drawing No. PD141-04; and 

 Drawing No. PD141-05 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Item Number: 11 

Application No: 07/01162/FUL 

Parish: Barton-le-Willows Parish 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: S.A Bell Ltd 

Proposal: Change of use of building to include Use Class B1 (light industrial) in 

addition to existing Use Class B8 (storage and distribution) 

Location: S A Bell Old York Road Barton Hill York YO60 7JX 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  15 February 2008  

Overall Expiry Date:  27 March 2014 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council Object  

Environmental Health Officer Conditional support  

Highways North Yorkshire Conditional support  

Highways Agency (Leeds) No objection  

 

Neighbour responses: H Allen Thew, M J Glen, J Denton & R Harwood, 
Charlie Charters, Mr R E Polley, Peter Diggle, Graham 

Allaway, Mr & Mrs Forbister & Mr Dunning, Simon 

Howard,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The site is located to the north of the old A64 and in total, covers approximately (4 acres) 1.6 

hectares.  There are three large buildings located on the site which have a floor area of approximately 

3,200sq. metres. 

 

The site was last used for agricultural storage and haulage around 2005.  The use of the site is 

restricted as set out in the planning history detailed later in this report. 
 

The site has a direct access onto the ‘old’ York Road known as Spitle Beck Lane which then obtains 

access onto a local County Road, the C61 that leads to Castle Howard.  The junction with the C61 is 

in very close proximity to the A64 Barton Hill crossroads junction.  When the application was 

originally submitted, the Highways Agency issued a ‘holding’ direction to the Council preventing the 

grant of planning permission. 

 
The holding direction remained  in effect until 19 November 2013. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

The application proposes the change of use from the restricted B8 (agricultural storage and 

distribution use) to Class B1 (light industrial) and also to unrestricted B8 (storage and distribution 

use). 
 

HISTORY: 

 

June 1975:  Use of cattle house to agricultural storage - Conditional Approval 

 

June 1981:  Construction of building for agricultural storage - Conditional Approval 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 60



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

March 1997:  Raising of roof on existing grain and fertiliser stores - Conditional Approval 

 

November 1997:  Continued use of land and buildings as general haulage and storage depot - 

 Refused 

 

� Appeal dismissed 20.03.1998 

� Appeal against enforcement notice dismissed 20.03.1998 

� A copy of the appeal decision letter is appended to this report 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

 

Section 1 - Building a strong, competitive economy: 

 

Para 18: The Government is committed to securing economic growth in order to create jobs and 

prosperity, building on the country’s inherent strengths, and to meeting the twin challenges of global 

competition and of a low carbon future. 

Para 19: The Government is committed to ensuring that the planning system does everything it can to 

support sustainable economic growth.  Planning should operate to encourage and not act as an 

impediment to sustainable growth.  Therefore significant weight should be placed on the need to 

support economic growth through the planning system. 

Para  20: To help achieve economic growth, Local Planning Authorities should place proactively to 

meet the development needs of business and support an economy fit for the 21
st
 Century. 

Para 21: Investment in business should not be over-burdened by the combined requirements of 

planning policy expectations.  Planning policies should recognise and seek to address potential 

barriers to investment, including a poor environment or any lack of infrastructure, servicing or 

housing.  In drawing up Local Plans, Local Planning Authorities should: 

 

• set out a clear economic vision and strategy for their area which positively and proactively 

encourages sustainable economic growth; 

• set criteria, or identify strategic sites, for local and inward investment to match the strategy 

and to meet anticipated needs over the plan period; 

• support existing business sectors, taking account of whether they area expanding or 

contracting and, where possible, identify and plan for new or emerging sectors likely to locate 

in their area.  Policies should be flexible enough to accommodate needs not anticipated in the 
plan and to allow a rapid response to changes in economic circumstances; 

• plan positively for the location, promotion and expansion of clusters or networks or 

knowledge drivers, creative or high technology industries; 

• identify priority areas for economic regeneration, infrastructure provision and environmental 

enhancement; and   

• facilitate flexible working practices such as the integration of residential and commercial uses 

within the same unit. 

 

Section 3 - Supporting a prosperous rural economy: 

 

Para 28: Planning policies should support economic growth in rural areas in order to create jobs and 

prosperity by taking a positive approach to sustainable new development.  To promote a strong rural 

economy, local and neighbourhood plans should: 
 

• support the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business and enterprise in rural 

areas, both through conversion of existing buildings and well designed new buildings; 

• promote the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural 

businesses; 

Page 61



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

• support sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments that benefit businesses in rural 

areas, communities and visitors, and which respect the character of the countryside.  This 

should include supporting the provision and expansion of tourist and visitor facilities in 

appropriate locations where identified needs are not met by existing facilities in rural service 

centres; and 

• promote the retention and development of local services and community facilities in villages, 

such as shops, meeting places, sports venues, cultural buildings, public houses and places of 

worship. 

 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment: 

 

Para 109: The planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment 

by: 

 

• protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, geological conservation interests and soils; 

• recognising the wider benefits of ecosystem services; 

• minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in biodiversity where possible, 

contributing to the Government’s commitment to halt the overall decline in biodiversity, 

including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and 

future pressures; 

• preventing both new and existing development from contributing to or being put at 

unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels or soil, air, water 

or noise pollution or land instability; and 

• remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable land, 

where appropriate. 

 

Para 115: Great weight should be given to conserving landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, 

the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the highest status of protection in 

relation to landscape and scenic beauty.  The conservation of wildlife and cultural heritage are 

important considerations in all these areas, and should be given great weight in National Parks and the 

Broads. 

 

Para 123: Planning policies and decisions should aim to: 

 

• avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life as a 

result of new development; 

• mitigate and reduce to a minimum other adverse impacts on health and quality of life arising 

from noise from new development, including through of the use of conditions; 

• recognise that development will often create some noise and existing businesses and wanting 

to develop in continuance of their business should not have unreasonable restrictions put on 

them because of changes in nearby land uses since they were established; and 

• identify and protect areas of tranquillity which have remained relatively undisturbed by noise 

and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason. 

 

Determining Applications: 

 

Para 196: The planning system is plan-led.  Planning law requires that applications for planning 

permission must be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.  This Framework is a material consideration in planning decisions. 

 

Para 197: In assessing and determining development proposals, Local Planning Authorities should 

apply the presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

Page 62



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Planning Conditions and Obligations: 

 

Para 203: Local Planning Authorities should consider whether otherwise unacceptable development 

could be made acceptable through the use of conditions or planning obligations.  Planning obligations 

should only be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through a planning 

condition. 

 

Para 205: Where obligations are being sought or revised, Local Planning Authorities should take 

account of changes in market conditions over time and, wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible 

to prevent planned development being stalled. 

 

Para 206: Planning conditions should only be imposed where they are necessary, relevant to planning 

and to the development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other aspects. 

 
National Planning Policy Guidance 

 

Use of Planning Conditions Grampian conditions 

 

Ryedale Local Plan 

 

Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distribution of Employment/Industrial Land and Premises 
 

Major industrial processes involving the extraction, utilisation, working or harnessing of natural 

materials or land assets will be supported where: 

 

• They are required in that location and no other suitable sites are available in the locality 

• They can be satisfactorily accommodated on the highway network and will not lead to 

significant adverse highway impacts 

• They do not adversely affect the amenity of neighbouring occupants of the site in line with 

Policy SP20 

• They can be satisfactorily accommodated in the surrounding landscape in line with Policies 

SP13 and SP16 

• The economic benefits to the District outweigh any adverse impacts 

 

Policy SP9 - Land Based and Rural Economy 

 

Ryedale’s land-based economy will be sustained and diversified with support for: 

• New buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working countryside, 

including for farming, forestry and equine purposes 

• Replacement dwellings for land management activity if no other existing available buildings 

suitable or capable of conversion 

• Replacement of non-traditional general-purpose storage buildings to support farming, forestry 

or equine related activity 

• Conversion of traditional buildings for tourism or residential uses (subject to the occupancy 

conditions set out in Policy SP21) 

• Conversion of existing buildings and provision of new buildings to support appropriate small-

scale rural economic activity in line with Policy SP6 

• Appropriate farm and rural diversification activity including innovative approaches 

• Local food production and sales. Farm shops which will meet a demand for local produce and 

which contribute to the local economy will be 

• supported where they do not adversely affect easily accessible convenience shopping. 

• Appropriate new uses for land including flood management and energy production related 

research and education in this field 

• Small-scale extraction of local building stone and limited aggregate provision 

 

Page 63



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

And indirectly by supporting: 

• The retention of a livestock market within Ryedale on a site which is convenient to users, well 

related to the main road network and in a 

• location which is close to a Market Town but will not harm its character, landscape setting or 

the amenities of nearby residents 

• Local weekday and Saturday markets, farmer’s markets and events 

• Proposals or actions that would assist in utilising and retaining traditional rural skills 

including land and woodland management, farming, 

• Conservation, local traditional building techniques 

 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP19 - Sustainable Development 

 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 
 

Character 

New development will respect the character and context of the immediate locality and the wider 

landscape/townscape character in terms of physical features and the type and variety of existing uses 

 

Proposed uses and activity will be compatible with the existing ambience of the immediate locality 

and the surrounding area and with neighbouring land uses and would not prejudice the continued 

operation of existing neighbouring land uses. The cumulative impact of new development on the 

character of an area will also be considered 

 

Design 
The design of new development will follow the principles established in Policy SP16. Extensions or 

alterations to existing buildings will be appropriate and sympathetic to the character and appearance 

of the existing building in terms of scale, form, and use of materials 

 

Amenity and Safety 

New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future 

occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by 

virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can 

include, for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an 

overbearing presence 

 

Developers will be expected to apply the highest standards outlined in the World Health Organisation, 

British Standards and wider international and national standards relating to noise 

 

New development proposals which will result in an unacceptable risk to human life, health and safety 

or unacceptable risk to property will be resisted. Developers will be expected to address the 

risks/potential risks posed by contamination and/or unstable land in accordance with recognised 
national and international standards and guidance 

 

All sensitive receptors will be protected from land and other contamination. Developers will be 

expected to assess the risks/ potential risks posed by contamination in accordance with recognised 

national and international standards and guidance 

 

Access, Parking and Servicing 
Access to and movement within the site by vehicles, cycles and pedestrians would not have a 

detrimental impact on road safety, traffic movement or the safety of pedestrians and cyclists. 

Information will be required in terms of the positioning and treatment of accesses and circulation 

routes, including how these relate to surrounding footpaths and roads 

 

Access into and within buildings will be expected to be of a standard that allows all to access the 

building unimpeded 

Page 64



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Development will be expected to comply with the relevant standards in place at the time a planning 

application is made to the Local Planning Authority. A Travel Plan may be required to set out how the 

use of the building can be made more sustainable by reducing the need to travel by private car 

 

Where applicable, proposals will need to demonstrate the inclusion of safe and effective vehicular 

servicing arrangements 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The key issues in relation to the consideration of the current application relate to:- 

 

• application of local and national policy; 

• impact on highway safety; 

• impact on amenity; and 

• impact on landscape 

 

Members will be aware that this site has an extensive planning history spanning many years, 

culminating with decisions taken on appeal in 1997 in the context of the former PPG’s 4 and 7, the 

County Structure Plan 1995 and the deposit draft of the former Ryedale Local Plan. 

 

Current National Policy and more detailed guidance is set out in the NPPF and NPPG. 

 

The Government is committed to serving economic growth and developing planning policies that 

support economic growth in rural areas in order to create jobs and to promote a strong rural economy.  

As part of this, plans should promote the development and diversification of agricultural and other 

land-based rural businesses. 

 

The key local policies in the Council’s Local Plan Strategy (which was adopted following the NPPF) 

are SP6 and SP9.  SP6 states that:- 

 

“Processes in open countryside locations will be supported where:- 
 

• They are required in that location and no other suitable sites are available in the locality 

• They can be satisfactorily accommodated on the highway network and will not lead to 

significant adverse highway impacts 

• They do not adversely affect the amenity of neighbouring occupants of the site in line with 

Policy SP20 

• They can be satisfactorily accommodated in the surrounding landscape in line with Policies 

SP13 and SP16 

• The economic benefits to the District outweigh any adverse impacts” 

 

In principle, the further change of use of these premises accords with the thrust of both national and 

local policy subject to satisfying site specific criteria.  These centre around highway safety, local 

amenity and landscape impact. 

 
Highway safety 

Members will note that this application was originally submitted in December 2007 and was subject 

to objections from both NYCC Highways and the Highways Agency.  The Highways Agency issued a 

‘permanent’ holding direction because of safety concerns in respect of the nearby junction on the 

A64, at the Barton Hill crossroads. 

 

However, the holding objection from the Highways Agency was lifted in November 2013 and in 

March 2014, the Council was able to re-consult all statutory consultees on the basis of an 

improvement scheme for the junction that had been produced by the HA (see attached plan).  The HA 

have recently confirmed that detailed design work has been commissioned on the junction 

improvement with work anticipated to start in Spring 2015. 

Page 65



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Following receipt of the plan, NYCC have confirmed that they also no longer object to the proposal 

subject to conditions, including the carrying out of the works specified in the proposed HA 

improvement scheme and localised improvements to signage and additional haunching (widening) of 

the carriageway on Spital Beck Lane to 5.5 metres.  The full comments of NYCC Highways are 

appended for Members information. 

 

Officers consider that the highway implications of this proposal are a key consideration and that the 

proposed additional uses are only acceptable in highway terms of the required improvements to the 

local road network and to the A64 were carried out in full before the uses proposed commence on site. 

 

This can be delivered by way of a ‘Grampian’ style condition and as set out in the recommendation 

from NYCC Highways.  It is considered that the commitment from the HA and the likelihood of the 

works going ahead within the ‘life’ of the permission mean that the imposition of a Grampian 

condition satisfies the current advice set out in the NPPG in respect of the use of planning conditions. 
 

Members will note the comments received from Barton-le-Willows Parish Council.  However, the 

A64 scheme is funded, detailed designs have been commissioned and a Spring 2015 start is 

anticipated.  Once constructed, the improvement scheme makes safe provision for large vehicles to 

exit and to re-enter the A64 (including right turning movements), therefore, resolving the previous 

objections from both Highway Authorities. 

 
Impact on local amenity 

Concern had previously been raised in respect of adverse impacts on local residents, in terms of a 

general haulage use.  This proposal includes B1 (light industrial use), which by definition only relates 

to ‘non-polluting’ business uses that can be carried out in residential areas. 

 

The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has been re-consulted on the proposal and concluded 

that there will be no increased noise impact on residential properties based on how the site could 

legally operate now and the existing noise impact from the adjacent A64. 

 

The proposed use is, however, more extensive and in the absence of a noise impact assessment, the 

Environmental Health Officer has recommended hours of loading/unloading and deliveries and the 

operation of vehicle refrigeration units and diesel engines should be prohibited between the hours of 

11pm at night and 6am in the morning. 
 

On balance, subject to the mitigation of the above restrictions, the uses are considered to be acceptable 

in terms of impacts on residential amenity. 

 

Impact on landscape 

The site is located in open countryside close to the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural 

Beauty.  It is also visible from the adjacent Malton-to-York mainline railway and a Public Right of 
Way crosses the site.  It is noted that previously in 1997 (on appeal), a ‘No outside storage’ condition 

was considered to be appropriate by the Planning Inspector.  In the light of the Inspector’s previous 

assessment of the case and the rural character of the surrounding area, it is considered necessary to 

similarly re-impose a ‘No open storage’ condition on this permission in order to mitigate the impact 

of the proposed uses. 

 

Conclusion 
Subject to the conditions recommended by consultees and control over external storage, the 

application is considered to satisfy both Local and National policy. 

Page 66



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of 

material on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or 

other works until: 

  

 (i) The details of the required highway improvement works, listed below, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 

the Highway Authority. 

  

 (ii) A programme for the completion of the proposed works has been submitted. 

  

 The required highway improvements shall include: 

  
 (a) Haunching (widening) of the carriageway of Spital Beck Lane to give an overall width of 

5.5 metres from the junction with the C61 southwards over Spital Beck bridge up to and 

including the local link road up to the A64 eastbound carriageway (formally the route of the 

C61 to Barton Hill railway crossing) and in accordance with Standard Detail No. HAU.1a 

and specification of the local Highway Authority. 

  

 (b) Introduction of a northbound priority one-way traffic system on Spital Beck Lane over 

Spital Beck bridge way of prescribed traffic signs and road markings in accordance with the 

requirements of the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2002. 

  

 (c) Improvement on the road junction with the C612 Main Lane by way of construction of 

the carriageway widening to accommodate left turn vehicle movements at a minimum 

radium of 10 metres as shown on the Highways Agency drawing number 430547-SK-05 and 
the junction road markings as shown on drawing number 430547-SK-06 and in accordance 

with the specification of the local Highway Authority and Traffic Signs Regulations and 

General Directions 2002. 

  

 (d) Improvement to driver v. driver inter-visibility by removal of the existing hedgerow in 

order to provide for item (c) with new stock-proof fencing/hedgerow on a revised position at 

an agreed position clear of the new widening carriageway kerbing in accordance with the 
specification of the local Highway Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy  and to ensure that the details are satisfactory in the 

interests of the safety and convenience of highway users. 

  

3 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 

the Highway Authority, the development shall not be brought into use until the following 
highway works have been constructed in accordance with the details approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority under Condition 2: 

  

 (a) Haunching (widening) of the carriageway of Spital Beck Lane to give an overall width of 

5.5 metres from the junction with the C61 southwards over Spital Beck bridge up to and 

including the local link road up to the A64 eastbound carriageway (formally the route of the 

C61 to Barton Hill railway crossing) and in accordance with Standard Detail No. HAU.1a 

and specification of the local Highway Authority. 

Page 67



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

  

 (b) Introduction of a northbound priority one-way traffic system on Spital Beck Lane over 

Spital Beck bridge way of prescribed traffic signs and road markings in accordance with the 

requirements of the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2002. 

  

 (c) Improvement on the road junction with the C612 Main Lane by way of construction of 

the carriageway widening to accommodate left turn vehicle movements at a minimum 

radium of 10 metres as shown on the Highways Agency drawing number 430547-SK-05 and 

the junction road markings as shown on drawing number 430547-SK-06 and in accordance 

with the specification of the local Highway Authority and Traffic Signs Regulations and 

General Directions 2002. 

  

 (d) Improvement to driver v. driver inter-visibility by removal of the existing hedgerow in 

order to provide for item (c) with new stock-proof fencing/hedgerow on a revised position at 

an agreed position clear of the new widening carriageway kerbing in accordance with the 
specification of the local Highway Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy  and in the interests of the safety and convenience of 

highway users. 

 

4 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

HCV's brought onto the site until a survey recording the condition of the existing highway 
has been carried out in a manner approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy  and in the interests of highway safety and the general 

amenity of the area. 

 

5 Prior to the development being brought into use, a Travel Plan shall have been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  This shall include: 

  

 (i) the appointment of a travel co-ordinator 

 (ii) a partnership approach to influence travel behaviour 

 (iii) measures to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport other than the private 
car by persons associated with the site 

 (iv) provision of up-to-date details of public transport services 

 (v) continual appraisal of travel patterns and measures provided through the travel plan 

 (vi) improved safety for vulnerable road users 

 (vii) a reduction in all vehicle trips and mileage  

 (viii) a programme for the implementation of such measures and any proposed physical 

works 
 (ix) procedures for monitoring the uptake of such modes of transport and for providing 

evidence of compliance. 

  

 The Travel Plan shall be implemented and the development shall thereafter be carried out 

and operated in accordance with the Travel Plan. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy  and to establish measures to encourage more 
sustainable non-car modes of transport. 

  

6 No part of the site outside any building shall be used for the storage of any equipment, 

materials or produce without the prior approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

  

7 No loading/unloading; deliveries; operation of vehicle refrigeration units and/or diesel 

engines after 11pm and before 6am. 

  

Page 68



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

  

 

INFORMATIVE: 
 

1 There must be no works in the existing highway until an Agreement under Section 278 of 

the Highways Act 1980 has been entered into between the Developer and the Highway 

Authority. 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Item Number: 12 

Application No: 13/00551/FUL 

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr Anthony Milner 

Proposal: Erection of 1no. 55m high (overall tip height 81m) 500kw wind turbine to 

generate electricity for the National Grid with associated sub station, crane 

pad, access track and temporary construction compound. 

Location: Land At Dotterel Farm Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  15 July 2013  

Overall Expiry Date:  3 July 2013 

Case Officer:  Shaun Robson Ext: 319 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Neighbouring Parish Council - Sherburn  No observations  

Neighbouring Parish Council - Luttons  Object  

East Riding of Yorkshire Council No response received  

Neighbouring Parish Council - Weaverthorpe  Object  

National Air Traffic Services (NATS) No objection  
The Joint Radio Company Ltd Cleared with respect to radio link infrastructure  

Wind Farm Enquiries No objection  

Tree & Landscape Officer No response received to date  

Natural England Comments Only  

Environmental Health Officer Object  

Countryside Officer No objection  

Civil Aviation Authority No objection  

National Grid Plant Protection No response received  

Archaeology Section Recommends Conditions  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Building Conservation Officer Object  

Ministry Of Defence Satisfied no impact from proposed development.  

 
Neighbour responses: Ms Lynne Porter, Mrs Caroline Garrod, Mr Evan 

Ferguson, Mr Graham Perry, Mr Eddie Startup, Dr Dave 

Parrott, Mrs Jill Wilson, Mr Kenneth Wright, Mr 

Maurice Daniel, Dr Peter Wilson, Mrs Angela Ewbank, 

Mrs Judith Tiplady, Mr Paul Stephens, Mrs Annette 

Mitchell, Mrs Paula Conner, Mrs Caroline Bradshaw, 

Jean Whiteley, Mr Keith Lewindon, Mr Paul Millward, 
Mrs M A Carr Mr J B Lawty, Mrs Kate Lyon, Mr Andy 

Boothroyd, Mr Ben Burgess, Robert William Buck, Mrs 

Lyndis Millward, Mr Chris Dale, Mrs Caroline Clark, 

Mr P Carpenter, Mr Thomas Webborn, Mrs Sherry 

Parrott, Mr Michael Rowland, Mr Ian Stubbings, Mr Tim 

Stubbings, Mr Andrew Lockwood, Mr Stuart Lockwood, 

Mrs Ann Lockwood, Mr Frank Bannister, Mr Stanley 
Bell, Lynn Wraith, EJ And JE Sleightholme, Dr Mark 

Whyman, Mr Christopher Googe, Mr Nicholas John, Mr 

Neil Ford, Margaret Stevens, Mr Andy Thompson, Mr 

David Hinde, Mr David Milner, Mr John Grindrod, Mrs 

Helen Chapman, Mr Robert Stubbings, Mrs Brenda 

Mellor, Mr Alan Mclean, Mr Stuart Taylor,  

 

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 75



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

SITE: 

 

The application site is located on elevated land approximately 1.9 km to the north-west of 

Weaverthorpe, to the north of the Weaverthorpe to Butterwick road.  

 

The site currently consists an agricultural field within part of the Dotteral Farm holding and is within 

an area designated as an Area of High Landscape Value.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Planning permission is sought for the erection of 1500kW turbine with a hub height of 55.0m and a tip 

height of 81.0m, associated crane pad, substation, access track and temporary construction compound. 

The development is proposed to be operational for 25 years. 

 
The grid connection for the turbine will be underground and run parallel with the proposed access 

track, therefore the connection to the grid will not be visible. 

 

The applicant has indicated that the turbine will produce sufficient energy to power up to 350 homes, 

as well as providing a small amount of the energy produced to the farm. The turbine will produce a 

small amount of energy to be utilised on the farm with the remaining amount fed into the National 

Grid.  
 

HISTORY: 

 

91/00493/OLD Erection of 18m diameter wind turbine on 30m high tower at Dotterel Farm,  

Weaverthorpe – APPROVED 14/02/1992 

 

POLICY: 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) 

 

Section 7: Requiring good design. 

Section 10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change. 

Section 11: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 
Section 12: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

 

National Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014) 

 

Climate change 

Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

Design 
Determining a planning application 

Renewable and low carbon energy 

Use of planning conditions 

 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990  

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 
 

Policy SP12 – Heritage  

Policy SP13 – Landscapes  

Policy SP14 – Biodiversity  

Policy SP18 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy  

Policy SP19 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 

Page 76



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

National Guidance 

 

The Climate Change Act 2008 

The Renewable Energy Strategy 2009 

National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-1) 

National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-3) 

 

PUBLICITY: 

 
43 letters of objection have been received from residents of Weaverthorpe, Helperthorpe, East Lutton, 

West Lutton, Kirby Grindalythe, Malton, Pickering, West Heslerton, Bempton (East Yorkshire) and 

Leeds. Weaverthorpe and Luttons Parish Councils have also objected to the application. The received 

objections from the Parish Councils and residents cite one or more of the following points:- 

 

• Impact of the development on the Area of High Landscape Value; 

• Cumulative impact of the development; 

• Supporting photomontages are incorrect; 

• Devaluation of properties; 

• Visual impact of the proposal; 

• The Wolds will not receive AONB status if the application is approved; 

• The turbine is too large; 

• Impact on wildlife; 

• Impact of the proposal on heritage assets; 

• Impact on tourism to the area; 

• The development will have a detrimental impact of Grade I and Grade II designated historic 

assets in the area; 

• The proposal will detrimental impact on aircraft safety at a private airstrip (Moor Farm); 

 

17 letters of support have been received from residents from Weaverthorpe, Helperthorpe, East 

Lutton, Kirby Grindalythe, Thorpe Bassett and York citing one or more of the following points:- 

 

• Wind energy meets future needs; 

• The visual impact of the development would not be too obtrusive; 

• No negative impacts will be created through the scheme; 

• Good farm diversification; 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

It has been assessed that taking into account the scale and location of the development, it does not 

constitute ‘Environmental Impact Assessment’ development in accordance with Schedule 2 of the 
Town and Country Planning Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2011 (as amended). 

 

The main material considerations are: 

 

• Principle of development in policy terms 

• Landscape and cumulative impact 

• Impact of development on residential amenity 

• Heritage impact 

• Ecology 

• Transport 

• Aviation, radar implications and aircraft safety 

• Impact on Tourism 

Page 77



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Policy Context 

 

National Planning Policy 

 

The most relevant paragraphs of the NPPF state; 

 

93.  Planning plays a key role in helping shapes places to secure radical reductions in greenhouse 

gas emissions, minimising vulnerability and providing resilience to the impacts of climate change, 

and supporting the delivery of renewable and low carbon energy and associated infrastructure. This 

is central to the economic, social and environmental dimensions of sustainable development. 

 

97. To help increase the use and supply of renewable and low carbon energy, local planning 

authorities should recognise the responsibility on all communities to contribute to energy generation 

from renewable or low carbon sources; 

 

• Have a positive strategy to promote energy from renewable and low carbon sources; 

 

• Design their policies to maximise renewable and low carbon energy development while 

ensuring that adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily, including cumulative landscape 

and visual impact; 

 

• Consider identifying suitable areas for renewable and low carbon energy sources, and 

supporting infrastructure, where this would help secure the development of such sources; 

 

• Support community-led initiatives for renewable and low carbon energy, including 

developments outside such areas being taken forward through neighbourhood planning; and 

 

• Identify opportunities where development can draw its energy supply from decentralised, 

renewable or low carbon energy supply systems and for co-locating potential heat customers 

and suppliers. 

 

98. When determining planning applications. Local planning authorities should: 

 

• Not require applicants for energy development to demonstrate the overall need for renewable 

or low carbon energy and also recognise that even small-scale projects provide a valuable 

contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions;  and 

 

• Approve the application if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable. Once suitable areas 

for renewable and low carbon energy have been identified in plans, local planning 

authorities should also expect subsequent applications for commercial scale projects outside 

these areas to demonstrate that the proposed location meets the criteria used in identifying 

suitable areas. 

 

The relevant policies in the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy are: 

 

SP14 – Biodiversity  

SP18 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

SP19 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 

Para 7.32 of the Local Plan Strategy advises that one of the main ways in which climate change can 

be mitigated is through a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions. In order to assist in the 

decarbonisation of the UK’s electricity and heat supply, Ryedale will realise its potential for 

renewable and local carbon energy sources. Para 7.37 is also relevant to this application and states; 

 

 

Page 78



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

7.37 It is important to recognise and support the contribution of community-led and farm scale 

renewable and low carbon solutions. 

 

Policy SP18 is criteria based and supports the principle of renewable and low carbon energy, and 

states; 

 

SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 
Developments that generate renewable and/or low carbon energy will be supported providing that 

individually and cumulatively proposals; 

 

• Can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment, especially in 

respect of the setting of the North York Moors National Park, the Howardian Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (and its setting), the Wolds and the Vale of Pickering; 

 

• Would not impact adversely on the local community, economy, or historical interests, unless 

their impact can be acceptably mitigated; 

 

• Would not have an adverse impact on nature conservation, in particular in relation to any 

sites of international biodiversity importance, unless their impact can be acceptably 

mitigated; 

 

• Would not have an adverse impact on air quality, soil and water resources in Policy SP17, 

unless their impact can be acceptably mitigated. 

 

It is clear therefore that there is strong policy support at both National and Local level for the 

principle of renewable and low carbon solutions. 

 

Landscape impact 

 

The application is accompanied by supporting documents including aviation data, acoustic data, 

visual impact assessment, archaeological survey and a photomontage. The area is described in the 
Local Plan Strategy as – an upland chalk landscape with a string of medieval (and earlier) villages 

following the spring line of the Gypsy Race. The designation of the area ‘Area of High Landscape 

Value’ has been retained in the Local Plan Strategy, and demonstrates the value placed on the 

character of the area. It also adds weight to the requirement to take account of the impact of 

development on the landscape. 

 

The proposed turbine would be sited in isolation on rising ground to the north-west Weaverthorpe. 

Given the proximity of the existing operational turbines the development will be viewed in 

combination with those turbines.   

 

Officers consider that those single turbines that have best been assimilated into the landscape are 

those which are visually associated with farm buildings, because they are not as isolated. Nevertheless 

the District Council has approved other single turbines at distance from existing development where it 

is considered that the benefits of renewable energy outweigh the harm.  

 

The turbine will introduce a tall vertical structure which is at odds with the more horizontal rolling 

slopes of this part of the Wolds. Nevertheless from most view points the greatest impact is relatively 

localised. Indeed other turbines in the area have been approved by the District Council on that basis. 

Examples are Gara Farm, and Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe, and Boythorpe Farm at Butterwick. 

 

In relation to cumulative impact, there is little guidance on how to accurately assess cumulative 

impact. It is necessary to balance the strong policy support for renewable energy with the need to 

ensure that the number, location, design etc of the turbine does not cause significant demonstratable 

harm to the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. The following is a list of turbines that have been 

approved in the area. 

Page 79



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

APPROVED 

 

09/00906/FUL (installed) – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 18.3m tip 25m 

10/01311/FUL – Duggleby Wold Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 32m tip 48m (x2 turbines) 

11/00336/FUL (installed) – Barrow Farm, Ganton Hill, Ganton – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

11/00337/FUL (installed) – Cat Babbleton Farm, Ganton Hill, Ganton – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

11/00541/FUL (installed) – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 18m tip 24.5m 

11/00615/FUL (installed) – Ling Farm, Green Lane, Langtoft – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m (x2 turbines) 

11/00744/FUL (installed) – Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 37.18m tip 53.88m 

12/00201/FUL (Appeal Allowed) – Manor House, Long Hill, Helperthorpe – hub 36.4m tip 46m 

12/00566/FUL (installed) – Gara Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

12/00602/FUL (installed) – Manor Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

12/00822/FUL – Allison Wold Farm, Simon Howe, Sherburn – hub 30.5m tip 44m (x2 turbines) 

13/00534/FUL – Boythorpe Farm, Butterwick – hub 31.5m tip 46m (x2 turbines) – 5km 
13/00675/FUL – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 30.1m tip 41.6m 

 

PENDING 

 

13/00850/FUL – Land West of Pasture Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 40m tip 67m 

13/00851/FUL – Land North of Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 40m tip  high 67m  

13/01091/FUL – Land to the West of Grange Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.8m tip 34.5m 
 

It should be noted that the majority of the above turbines are all within 5.0km of the application site. 

 

The list is quiet extensive, however when taken in isolation it can be misleading in terms of assessing 

cumulative impact. The reason for this is that the Wolds include a number of valley’s which means 

that whilst the location of turbines can appear to be close on a map (see the attached plan to the 

report), they may not appear in the same viewpoint when seen on site. In view of this, and as part of 

the assessment of the application, officers have visited the area to assess the impact of the turbines 

already erected, and also looked at key views for those proposed. In relation to this application 

officers identified a key view point on the road from Weaverthorpe to Sherburn. Whilst the road is not 

classified, it is a main route from the A64 to the Wolds, and regularly used. From this point turbines at 

Dotterel Farm, and Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe are presently visible. Permission was granted on 

appeal at Manor House Helperthorpe. The proposed turbine would be the fourth in this particular 
vista, if the application is approved.  

 

A recent refusal at High Barn Helperthorpe is the subject of an appeal which is yet to be determined. 

Officers are of the opinion that this accumulation will result in a further change in the character of the 

landscape to the extent that it will become a turbine dominated view. The variation in height and 

design, together with the irregular spacing is considered to add to their incongruous appearance. 

 
Para 98 of the NPPF, states that such applications should be approved if its impacts are (or can be 

made) acceptable. SP13 of the Local Plan Strategy states that developments that generate renewable 

and/or low carbon sources of energy will be supported providing that individual and cumulating 

proposals: 

 

• Can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment, especially in respect 

of the setting of the North York Moors National Park, the Howardian Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (and its setting), the Wolds and the Vale of Pickering. 

 

Members will note that Weaverthorpe Parish Council has expressed concern regarding the cumulative 

impact of turbines on the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. Their full response is appended to 
this report. It is also worth noting the recent decision form the Secretary of State (SoS) decision on the 

Heslerton Wind Farm development, particularly his comments on the landscape and visual impact on 

the Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape Value.  

Page 80



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

The SoS states, in paragraph 12, that:-   

 

 “…the Wolds is a highly valued landscape…” 

 

On balance, taking into account the permissions already granted it is considered that the proposed 

additional turbine will result in significant and demonstratable harm to the character of this part of the 

Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. 

 

Neighbour impact 

 

(i) Noise 

 

The application is accompanied by a site specific noise survey. The applicant advices that it has been 

prepared in accordance with ETSU-R-97, and also a new guidance document ‘A Good Practice Guide 
to the application of ETSU-R-(& for the assessment and rating of wind turbine noise May 2013). This 

is the acknowledged method of assessing potential noise impact.  

 

The Councils Environmental Health Officer has objected to the application, stating the following 

comments: 

 

“This has been a difficult proposal to assess, not least because of the complicated nature of assessing 

the existing and proposed cumulative  impact of a variety of turbines in this locality.   However the 

applicants noise consultants have carried out their own assessment in accordance with the Institute of 

Acoustics document ‘A Good Practice Guide to the application of ETSU-R-97 for the assessment and 

rating of Wind Turbine Noise’ and have concluded that at Highdale Farm and Waddale End the 

predicted  noise levels fail to comply with the ETSU criteria.  It is worthy of note that this is not 

because of the proposed turbine’s impact but because of the already high predicted noise levels  from 

the existing/permitted turbines”.  

 

(ii) Shadow flicker 

 

It is noted that concerns have been received regarding visual flicker. Given the proposed turbine will 

be positioned in excess of 800m from any occupied building it is not considered that shadow flicker is 

an issue in this instance.  
 

Archaeology 

 

The applicants have supplied information in support of the application. The County Archaeologist has 

responded and raised no concerns, subject to the imposition of an appropriate condition were the 

application approved. 

 
Highway considerations 

 

The NYCC Highway Officer has raised issues in relation to the information submitted in support of 

the application, specifically the routing of the apparatus and components to the site.  

 

The additional information/clarification required, however, has been included within a condition by 

the Highway Officer.  
 

No further concerns have been raised. 

 

Heritage impact 

 

Members are advised that there are a number of historic assets, specifically Listed Buildings, located 

in the surrounding landscape and that the Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty under 

legislation relating to Listed Buildings: 

Page 81



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides, so far as 

material: ‘In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed 

building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall 

have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 

special architectural or historic interest which it possesses’. 

 

National policy guidance regarding the impact on heritage assets is set out in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (NPPF) and the recently published National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).  

 

Paragraph 129 of the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should identify and assess the 

particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including 

development affecting the setting of a heritage asset), taking account of the available evidence and 

any necessary expertise.  

 
Paragraph 133 goes on to say that where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm Local 

Planning Authorities should refuse permission, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm 

is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or loss. Where a 

development proposal will lead to ‘less than substantial’ harm to the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.     

 

In terms of development within the setting of heritage assets, paragraph 137 is relevant and advises 
local authorities to “look for opportunities for new development within Conservation Areas….and 

within the setting of heritage assets to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that 

preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to or better reveal the 

significance of the asset should be treated favourably.” 

 

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), paragraph 013 amplifies the relevance of an assets 

setting stating “Setting is the surroundings in which an asset is experienced...”. The paragraph 

continues and goes on to say “The contribution that setting makes to the significance of the heritage 

asset does not depend on there being public rights or an ability to access or experience that setting. 

This will vary over time and according to circumstance.”  

 

The proposal has been assessed by the Council’s Building Conservation Officer, her comments are as 

follows: -  
 

“The NPPF requires at paragraph 129 that Local Planning Authorities should ‘identify and assess 

the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including 

development affecting the setting of a heritage asset)’. 

 

It is apparent with this application that no heritage asset will be physically directly affected by the 

proposal. This response therefore focuses on the impact that the proposal will have on the setting of 

heritage assets.   

 

In my opinion the built heritage asset most affected by this application are the Grade I Listed church 

of St Andrew at Weaverthorpe and the Grade II Listed Dotterel Cottage. Whilst the Grade II Listed 

church of St. Peter at Helperthorpe is roughly equidistant from the application site to St. Andrew’s, 

due to its heavy screening by trees and its proximity to the built up village, I am of the opinion that 

this will not affect the setting of the church of St. Peter. 

 

In my opinion the setting of Dotterel Farm cottage consist of 2 aspects. The wider view of how the 

farm is experiences in the landscape and the closer view of how the farmhouse is experiences within 

the farmstead. 

Page 82



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

When viewed from the principle road running east-west, the wider setting gives clear distant views of 

an elevated isolated historic farmhouse set along a long open access road. Due to its distance from 

the public highway, the views are distant and set against a background of farmbuildings, an existing 

wind turbine to the rear, an existing wind turbine offset in the foreground and a shelter of trees. This 

view can also be experienced from the minor road running south between Helperthorpe and 

Weaverthorpe albeit at a greater distance. 

 

The immediate setting of the listed building is formed by a neat grassed front garden and a working 

rear yard. Horse paddocks and farmbuilding form the boundary to these and the immediate setting is 

also created by concrete hardstanding and redundant farmbuildings. When looking out from within 

the immediate setting of the farmhouse, views of the existing turbine to the north of the site are limited 

by the buildings and shelterbelt to the north. Views to the south are of views down the slope of the 

Wold to the south over arable countryside.  

 

In my opinion the setting of the Grade II  listed Dotterel Cottage is formed by the function of the 

building as a working farm. This includes the attractive historic farmhouse but also includes 

structures that detract from the listed building. These are however, structures that you would expect 

to find in this context and are proportionate to the use of the farm. The exception to this is the Manor 

Farm wind turbine which adds a large and competing element into the landscaping in the foreground 

of the listed building.   

 

Due to the height of the proposed turbine it will be clearly visible when looking towards the 

farmhouse from the east-west road and the road running south between Helperthorpe and 

Weaverthorpe and from within the farm complex. This will introduce a large competing element into 

the landscaping that will dominate views of the listed building and be clearly seen as a backdrop to 

the listed building. I am of the opinion that the setting of the listed building had already been 

compromised to some degree of harm caused is less than substantial and according to the NPPF that 

this should be weighed against the public benefits of the scheme. 

 

The Grade I listed church of St Andrew  at Weaverthorpe is situated in an isolated position above the 

village on the northern slope of the woldside. It has an austere beauty partly derived form its position 

away from the village which predominantly sits at the bottom of the valley. At various points in the 

landscape St Andrew’s is a dominant building giving it some presence within the landscape. The 

setting of the church extends for a long distance as the church can be seen within the landscape from 

a number of positions within the public realm most notably when travelling east along the east-west 

road and glimpsed through openings in hedges along the East Heslerton Wold road running north out 

of Helperthorpe. This setting has already partly been compromised by various turbines in the vicinity. 

Two turbines exist within near vicinity of the proposed turbine, a newly erected 24.6m (34.2 to tip) 

turbine for on farm use at Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe and a turbine at Dotterel farm for on farm use 

(height unknown). These however are likely to be at least 20m lower in height than the proposed 

turbine.  

 

When looking west into the landscape from the churchyard, there are clear distance views out into 

open countryside. Due to the lie of the land and tree screening, Dotterel Farm is not clearly visible 

and the predominant view is rolling arable fields. Within this view, 2 existing turbines can be seen 

however the predominant views are of wide and distant arable landscapes. 

 

Due to the height of the proposed turbine it will clearly be visible when looking west from within the 

churchyard. It will also be visible when looking at the church when travelling east along the public 

highway and along the road running north out of Helperthorpe. I am of the opinion that this will have 

a harmful effect on the setting of the Grade I listed church as it will add a distracting and competing 

element into the landscape and affect the serenity and calmness of the landscape when looking from 

the church.  

 

In my opinion the degree of harm caused will, be less than substantial and according to the NPPF 

should be weighed against the public benefits of the scheme.” 

Page 83



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Members will be aware of the Secretary of States (SoS) recent decision on the East Heslerton Wind 

Farm (11/00270/MFULE). The SoS disagreed with the Planning Inspector’s assessment of the impact 

of the proposal upon the setting of a Grade I Designated Historic Asset (St.Andrew’s, East Heslerton). 

The SoS concluded that the impact of the turbine’s created a harmful distraction to the Asset’s setting. 

In this particular case the view of and from the designated Historic Asset will be affected by the 

proposed turbine. This proposal, as reflected in the Building Conservation Officer’s comments results 

in a similar adverse impact. 

 

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states: - 

 

“When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, 

the greater the weight should be. Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction 

of the heritage asset or development within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm 

or loss should require clear and convincing justification.” 

 

The Building Conservation Officer has identified that the development will cause harm to the setting 

of a number of listed buildings.  

 

Policy SP12 (Heritage) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy reflects the NPPF. Specifically it in 

requires that the “historic environment will be conserved and where appropriate, enhanced.”  

 

The Legislation, specifically Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990 requires that “In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which 

affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the 

Secretary of State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its 

setting…” 

 

Whilst the development has the potential of delivering a large amount of renewable energy (sufficient 

to power 350 homes) it is considered to be of sufficient weight, in the decision making balance,  to 

outweigh the identified harm caused to the setting of the Grade I Listed Church and Grade II Listed 

cottage.  

 

Ecology  
 

The information submitted in support of the application includes a report in respect of the potential 

impact of the turbine on ecology. The turbine location takes account of the surrounding area and 

accordingly there is no objection from the Councils Countryside Officer. 

 

Aviation, radar and Aircraft Safety 

 
Aviation and Radar 

 

There been no objections received from the relevant aviation and radar consultees.  

 

The Ministry of Defence (MoD) originally objected to the application due to the potential interference 

with the AD Radar at Staxton Wold. However following the submission of additional information 

from the applicant the MoD withdrew their objection to the proposal. 
 

Aircraft Safety 

 

The application has been accompanied by an aviation assessment by Wind Farm Aviation Consultants 

(All Wind UK) Ltd. 

Page 84



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

An objection has been received from the owner/operator of the private airstrip at Moor Farm, citing 

aircraft safety as a significant concern. The objector (owner/operator of Manor Farm) has produced a 

report focussing on the perceived impact of the development upon what appears to be unlicensed 

private airfield.  

 

Given the specific technical information submitted by the applicant and objector, RDC commissioned 

its own aviation consultant to assess the submission and effectively provide the Authority with an 

independent assessment of the perceived impact on the private airfield.  

 

RDC consultant has confirmed that the development will not have a detrimental or safety impact on 

the operation of the Moor Farm airstrip subject to some minor changes to the circuit dimensions 

currently operated from the airstrip. 

 

In conclusion, the Authority’s aviation consultant has advised that the proposals provided by the 

applicant are sufficient for the safe operations at Moor Farm airstrip from an aviation perspective if 
the wind turbine application is permitted.  

 

Members should note that the operation of a private airfield is the direct responsibility of the owner.   

 

Impact on Tourism 

 

A number of objections have been received stating that the turbine has the potential to have a 
detrimental impact on tourism. 

 

However, whilst concerns have been raised in relation to this issue there is no conclusive proof in 

terms of the effect of wind turbines on tourism.  

 

In the absence of any conclusive evidence that the proposed development would harm tourism 

significantly, it is concluded that the development would be acceptable, in terms of its impact on the 

tourism industry in surrounding area.   

 

Other Matters 

 
A concern has been received from a number of residents in regard to the potential devaluation of their 

property. However this is not a material planning consideration. 
 

Conclusion  

 

The District Council is supportive of the principle of renewable energy and this is demonstrated by 

the number of turbines that have been approved in the District.  

 

However, it is considered that the proposed turbine would create an accumulation of turbines that 
would change the perception of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value in this locality. This is in 

particular when viewed from the Weaverthorpe to Sherburn road.  

 

It is also considered that the harm to the settings of St. Andrew’s Church and Dotterel Cottage 

outweighs the benefits of the proposed development.  

 

As such the recommendation is one of refusal. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal  
 

1 The proposed development would result in an accumulation of the turbines locally in the 

landscape when viewed from the Sherburn to Weaverthorpe road. This is considered to be 

detrimental to the character of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. As such the 

development would be contrary to the principles of para 98 of the NPPF and Policies SP13 

and SP18 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 85



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

  

2 The proposed development by reason of its prominent position in the landscape proximity 

will result in an unacceptable level of harm to the setting of both the Listed Church (St. 

Andrew’s) and Dotterel Cottage. Insufficient public benefits are derived from the 

development that outweigh the harm to the designated asset. The application is therefore 

considered to be contrary to Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy and the 

provisions of Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework, specifically 

paragraphs 129, 131, 132, 133, 134 and the statutory provisions of the Planning (Listed 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  

  

3 The noise consultants report submitted in support of the application identified that the 

predicated noise levels to 2 out of the 5 closest noise receptors (Highdale  Farm and Waddle 

End) fails to comply with ETSU criteria. The existing and permitted turbines are predicted 

to be above the 35db LA90 ETSU criteria. 

  
 The proposed wind turbine would further compound this situation which will create a 

further adverse impact on the identified residential properties.  

  

 The proposed wind turbine is therefore considered to be contrary to Policies SP18 and SP20 

of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and guidance contained in paragraph 123 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework.   

 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



R
D

C
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

©
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 R

ig
h
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 1

0
0
0
1
9
4

0
6

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

P
e
n
d
in

g

W
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e
 A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
R

y
e
d

a
le

Page 126



©
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 R

ig
h
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 1

0
0
0
1
9
4

0
6

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

P
e
n
d
in

g

W
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e
 A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
in

 R
y
e
d

a
le

R
D

C
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Item Number: 13 

Application No: 13/00850/FUL 

Parish: Luttons Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Weaverthorpe Wind Ltd 

Proposal: Erection of 1no. 40m high (overall tip height 67m) 500kw wind turbine to 

generate electricity for the benefit of the local community with associated 

crane pad, transformer kiosk, access track, vehicular access and 40.5m 

high temporary meteorological monitoring mast. 

Location: Land To West Pasture Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  24 September 2013  

Overall Expiry Date:  15 March 2014 

Case Officer:  Shaun Robson Ext: 319 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Civil Aviation Authority No objection  

Neighbouring Parish Council - Weaverthorpe  Object  

Parish Council - Luttons   Object  

Highways North Yorkshire Request further information  
Natural England No objection  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend conditions limiting the levels of noise  

Countryside Officer No objection  

Atkins Ltd No objection  

National Grid Plant Protection No response  

Archaeology Section Advise condition(s)  

Building Conservation Officer Object  

East Riding of Yorkshire Council No response received  

National Air Traffic Services (NATS) No objection  

The Joint Radio Company Ltd No objection  

Wind Farm Enquiries No objection  

Tree & Landscape Officer No objection  

Ministry Of Defence Object  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr Thomas Mills, Mrs Sarah Mellor, Mr Jonathan 

Clarke, Mr Evan Ferguson, Mr John Cruse, Ms Laura 

Hester, Mr Jack Russell, Mr Graham Perry, Mrs 

Rozanne Startup, Karen Beresford, Mr Nigel Bradshaw, 

Mr Paul Goddard, Deslyn Pettifer, S Richardson, 

Rebecca Robinson, Mr Mick Conner, Mr Richard 
Campbell, Ms Pat Redfern, Miss N Robinson, J 

Trowsdale, G Trowsdale, Mr G Trowsdale, Mr James 

Trowsdale, Austin Wright, John Lake, Mrs Annette 

Mitchell, Dr Dave Parrott, Mrs Caroline Bradshaw, Mr 

Dennis Horseman, Mrs Valerie Ford, Mr Ian Cade, Mr 

Nigel Lattaway, Mr Jarrod Fisher, Miss Jo Sim, Mr Paul 

Raw, Mrs Jacqui Benson, Mrs Faye Barnett, Mr Richard 
Barnett, Dr Andrew Harper, Mrs Kristen Harper, Mr 

Andy Bullard, Mr Alex Mitchell, Mr Max Cross, Mr 

Brian Cross, Mr Denis Gwilt, Mr Stephen Jones, Mrs 

Lyndis Millward, Mr Stuart Taylor, Jean Whiteley, Mr 

Stanley Bell, Mr Keith Lewindon, Mr Richard Lane, Mrs 

Jill Cross, Mrs M A Carr And Mr J B Lawty, Mrs Enid 

Gwilt, Mr Kenelm Storey, Mr George Ferguson, Mr Iain 

Hurst, Mr Andy Boothroyd, Mr Ben Burgess, Robert 

Agenda Item 13

Page 168



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

William Buck, Robert William Buck, Mr Stanley Bell,  

Mrs Lea Fountain, Mrs Jill Wilson, Dr Dominic 

Powlesland, Mr Peter Wilson, Mr Maurice Daniel, 

Lynne Porter And Evan Ferguson, Mrs Margaret Wright, 

Mr Sefa Akkirec, Mrs Wendy Stubbings, Mrs Paula 

Conner, Mrs Vicki Rowland, Mr Ian Panter, Mr Philip 

Carpenter, Mr W Bentley, R W Carver, Mr David 

England, Mr Rob Fretwell, Mrs C Gray, Michael 

Jackson, Mrs A Lockwood, J Matthews, Mr Ben 

McClements, L Meer, Mr Peter Massheder, Mrs Gillian 

Buckley, Mr Rod Buckley, Mr Eddie Startup, Ms 

Christine Haughton, Mr Kenneth Wright, Mr David 

Mellor, Mr David Stark, Niall O'Brien, Mrs Gill 

Hodgson, Mr John Grindrod, Mrs Sherry Parrott, 

Dorothy Smith, Mrs Helen Chapman, Mrs Christine 
Chadwick, Mrs Amanda Leatherbarrow, Mr Frank 

Bannister, Mr John Leebetter, Mr C Sherred, Mrs P 

Sherred, Mr Nick Tiplady, Mr Peter West-Hitchins, Mrs 

Catherine Murray, Mrs P E Gladwin, Stuart Lockwood, 

Mr Andrew Lockwood, Mr Derek Lockwood, Mr John 

Wane, Mrs Jenny Clarke, Lynn Wraith, Mr Ron 

Whatling, Mrs Stephanie Fidell, Mr Christopher Googe, 
Mrs Patricia Googe, Mr And Mrs Clark, Elizabeth Mills, 

Mrs Susan Lattaway, Mrs Jacqueline Craig, Mr Ian 

Fielding, Mr Stuart Hampson, Mrs Lea Fountain, 

Margaret Stevens, Ms Rikki Arundel, RW And VA 

Crane, Ms Sue Turnbull, Mr Duncan Scrase, Mr Ian 

Stubbings, Ms Cath Muller, Mr Paul Millward, Mrs 

Angela Ewbank, Mr Michael Mitchell, Mr Neil Ford, V 

Cornforth, Mr Thomas Cornforth, A E Downes, 

Elizabeth Hartle, Jo Peckitt And Jason Peirson, M Lake, 

Mr W R Owen, R Stannard, Mrs Jackie Taylor, Mr 

David Hunter, Mr Nigel Beresford, Mr Paul Stephens, 

Mr Harry Milner, Mrs Jill Cade, Mrs Jan Wigglesworth, 

Mr David Milner, Mrs Amy Trevelyan, Mr Andy 
Thompson, Mrs Helen Milner, Mrs Judith Tiplady, Mrs 

Alice Ashby, B D Kerr, Miss Hannah Chapman, Mr John 

Clegg, T E Scrase, Mrs Thelma Mitchell, Mrs Judith 

Eaton, Mr Ian Eaton, Mrs Brenda Mellor, Mrs Rita 

Daniel, Mr James Hartle, Mr Michael Murray, Mrs 

Susan Gough, Mr Graham Brooks, Mr Karl Kirk, Mrs 

Norma Harrison, Mrs Rachel Beck, Mrs Catherine 
Morrison, Mr Michael Rowland, M And C Garrod, Ms 

Emma Krijnen-Kemp, Mr Alex Chapman,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site is located on elevated land to the south of the Weaverthorpe to West Lutton road. 
The site is approximately 2km to the south-west of Weaverthorpe and a little over 1km to the south-

east of Helperthorpe.    

 

The site currently consists of an agricultural field which is located within an area designated as an 

Area of High Landscape Value.  

Page 169



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

This application forms part of two proposals submitted by two local community based groups, namely 

The Wolds Valley Wind Collective Limited (WVWC) and Weaverthorpe Wind Limited (WW).  

 

The WW, a joint venture between Three Weavers Green (TWG) and the Humberside  

Co-operative Development Agency Ltd (HCDA) also has two aims, namely:- 

 

• To increase the sustainability of the communities of Weaverthorpe, Butterwick and Helperthorpe 

by offsetting their carbon emissions; and 

• To increase the sustainability of other communities across the wider region by generating income 

for the HCDA. 

 

This application seeks permission for the erection of 1500kW turbine with a hub height of 40.0m and 

a tip height of 67.0m, associated crane pad, transformer kiosk, access track, vehicular access and the 

erection of a 40.5m high temporary meteorological monitoring mast. 
 

The grid connection for the turbine is underground, therefore the connection to the grid will not be 

visible. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

No recent history. 

 

POLICY: 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) 

 

Section 7: Requiring good design. 
Section 10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change. 

Section 11: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

Section 12: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

 

National Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014) 

 

Climate change 
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

Design 

Determining a planning application 

Renewable and low carbon energy 

Use of planning conditions 

 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990  
 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP12 – Heritage  

Policy SP13 – Landscapes  

Policy SP14 – Biodiversity  

Policy SP18 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy  

Policy SP19 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

Page 170



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

National Guidance 

 

The Climate Change Act 2008 

The Renewable Energy Strategy 2009 

National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-1) 

National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-3) 

 

PUBLICITY: 

 
110 letters of objection have been received in total, of which 97 have been from residents of 

Weaverthorpe, Helperthorpe, East Lutton.  The remaining 13 letters have been received from residents 

of Grimsby, Lincoln, Suffolk, North Wirral, York, Bradford, Leeds, Scarborough, Wakefield, Preston 

and Pickering. As well as the letters of objection a petition containing 68 signatures has also been 

received. The Weaverthorpe and Luttons Parish Councils have also objected to the application. The 
objections received from the Parish Council and residents (including the petition) cite one or more of 

the following points:- 

 

• The impact of the development of the ‘Wolds’; 

• Cumulative impact of another turbine; 

• Visual impact of the proposal; 

• Impact of the development on television reception; 

• Impact on ecology; 

• Shadow flicker as a result of the turbine; 

• The developers have not discussed the development with local residents; 

• Destruction of an ‘Area of High Landscape Value’; 

• Noise  

• Impact on aircraft safety; 

• Impact of the development on bird population; 

• The development will not benefit the local community as £1 Million pounds over the 25 year 

operational period of the development will be to a co-operative in Hull; 

• Impact on tourism to the area; 

• The ‘Wolds’ is currently been assessed by Natural England in connection with elevating the 

status of the area to AONB. The proposal will effect this assessment;    

• Impact of the development on road safety; 

• Impact of Heritage; 

• Reduction in house prices; 

• No justification for the site selection for the turbine; 

 

68 letters of support in total have also been received from residents of which 43 have been received 

from Weaverthorpe, Swinton, Appleton-Le-Moors, Little Barugh, Butterwick, Helperthorpe, East 

Heslerton, West Heslerton, Yedingham. The remaining 25 of the letters have been received from 

further afield, namely, Manchester, Hornsea (East Yorkshire), Scarborough, Bempton (East 
Yorkshire), Driffield, Bridlington, Shilbottle (Newcastle), Leeds, Lancaster, Holme-upon-Spalding-

Moor (East Yorkshire), Kingswood (Hull), Ilkely, York and Hull. The letters of support cite one or 

more of the following points:- 

 

• The turbine will not adversely impact on the landscape; 

• Renewable energy is the future of energy production; 

• The proposal will benefit the Wolds valley community; 

• The developer carries out ‘good’ work in the community. 

Page 171



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

It has been assessed that taking into account the scale and location of the development, it does not 

constitute ‘Environmental Impact Assessment’ development in accordance with Schedule 2 of the 

Town and Country Planning Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2011 (as amended). 

 

The main material considerations are: 

 

• Principle of development in policy terms 

• Landscape and cumulative impact 

• Impact of development on residential amenity 

• Heritage impact 

• Ecology 

• Transport 

• Community benefit 

• Aviation and radar implications and 

• Neighbour and Parish consultation responses 

 
Policy Context 

 

National Policy 

 

The most relevant paragraphs of the NPPF state; 

 

93.  Planning plays a key role in helping shapes places to secure radical reductions in greenhouse 

gas emissions, minimising vulnerability and providing resilience to the impacts of climate change, 

and supporting the delivery of renewable and low carbon energy and associated infrastructure. This 

is central to the economic, social and environmental dimensions of sustainable development. 

 

97. To help increase the use and supply of renewable and low carbon energy, local planning 

authorities should recognise the responsibility on all communities to contribute to energy generation 

from renewable or low carbon sources; 

 

• Have a positive strategy to promote energy from renewable and low carbon sources; 

 

• Design their policies to maximise renewable and low carbon energy development while ensuring 

that adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily, including cumulative landscape and visual 

impact; 

 

• Consider identifying suitable areas for renewable and low carbon energy sources, and 

supporting infrastructure, where this would help secure the development of such sources; 

 

• Support community-led initiatives for renewable and low carbon energy, including developments 

outside such areas being taken forward through neighbourhood planning; and 

 

• Identify opportunities where development can draw its energy supply from decentralised, 

renewable or low carbon energy supply systems and for co-locating potential heat customers and 

suppliers. 

 

98. When determining planning applications. Local planning authorities should: 

 

• Not require applicants for energy development to demonstrate the overall need for renewable or 

low carbon energy and also recognise that even small-scale projects provide a valuable 

contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions;  and 

 

Page 172



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

• Approve the application if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable. Once suitable areas for 

renewable and low carbon energy have been identified in plans, local planning authorities 

should also expect subsequent applications for commercial scale projects outside these areas to 

demonstrate that the proposed location meets the criteria used in identifying suitable areas. 

 

The relevant policies in the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy are: 

 

SP14 – Biodiversity  

SP18 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

SP19 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 

Para 7.32 of the Local Plan Strategy advises that one of the main ways in which climate change can 

be mitigated is through a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions. In order to assist in the 

decarbonisation of the UK’s electricity and heat supply, Ryedale will realise its potential for 

renewable and local carbon energy sources. Para 7.37 is also relevant to this application and states; 

 

7.37 It is important to recognise and support the contribution of community-led and farm scale 

renewable and low carbon solutions. 

 

Policy SP18 is criteria based and supports the principle of renewable and low carbon energy, and 

states; 

 

SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Developments that generate renewable and/or low carbon energy will be supported providing that 

individually and cumulatively proposals; 

 

• Can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment, especially in respect of 

the setting of the North York Moors National Park, the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (and its setting), the Wolds and the Vale of Pickering; 

 

• Would not impact adversely on the local community, economy, or historical interests, unless their 

impact can be acceptably mitigated; 

 

• Would not have an adverse impact on nature conservation, in particular in relation to any sites 

of international biodiversity importance, unless their impact can be acceptably mitigated; 

 

• Would not have an adverse impact on air quality, soil and water resources in Policy SP17, 

unless their impact can be acceptably mitigated. 

 

It is clear therefore that there is strong policy support at both National and Local level for the 

principle of renewable and low carbon solutions. 
 

Landscape impact 

 

The application is accompanied by supporting documents including acoustic data, visual impact 

assessment, archaeological survey and photomontage. The area is described in the Local Plan Strategy 

as – an upland chalk landscape with a string of medieval (and earlier) villages following the spring 

line of the Gypsy Race. The designation of the area ‘Area of High Landscape Value’ has been 

retained in the Local Plan Strategy, and demonstrates the value placed on the character of the area. It 

also adds weight to the requirement to take account of the impact of development on the landscape. 

 

The proposed turbine would be sited on rising ground to the south-east of Helperthorpe. As such it 

would be viewed separately to the built development in the valley floor. Officers consider that those 

single turbines that have best been assimilated into the landscape are those which are visually 

associated with farm buildings, because they are not as isolated.  

Page 173



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Nevertheless the District Council has approved other single turbines at distance from existing 

development where it is considered that the benefits of renewable energy outweigh the harm. An 

example of this can be seen at Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe.  

 

When considering the turbine in isolation, it will introduce a tall vertical structure which is at odds 

with the more horizontal rolling slopes of this part of the Wolds. Nevertheless from most view points 

the greatest impact is relatively localised. Indeed other turbines in the area have been approved by the 

District Council on that basis. Examples are Gara Farm, and Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe, and 

Boythorpe Farm at Butterwick. 

 

In relation to cumulative impact, there is little guidance on how to accurately assess cumulative 

impact. It is necessary to balance the strong policy support for renewable energy with the need to 

ensure that the number, location, design etc of the turbine does not cause significant demonstratable 

harm to the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. The following is a list of turbines that have been 
approved in the area. 

 

APPROVED 

 

09/00906/FUL (installed) – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 18.3m tip 25m 

10/01311/FUL – Duggleby Wold Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 32m tip 48m (x2 turbines) 

11/00336/FUL (installed) – Barrow Farm, Ganton Hill, Ganton – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 
11/00337/FUL (installed) – Cat Babbleton Farm, Ganton Hill, Ganton – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

11/00541/FUL (installed) – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 18m tip 24.5m 

11/00615/FUL (installed) – Ling Farm, Green Lane, Langtoft – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m (x2 turbines) 

11/00744/FUL (installed) – Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 37.18m tip 53.88m 

12/00201/FUL (Appeal Allowed) – Manor House, Long Hill, Helperthorpe – hub 36.4m tip 46m 

12/00566/FUL (installed) – Gara Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

12/00602/FUL (installed) – Manor Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

12/00822/FUL – Allison Wold Farm, Simon Howe, Sherburn – hub 30.5m tip 44m (x2 turbines) 

13/00534/FUL – Boythorpe Farm, Butterwick – hub 31.5m tip 46m (x2 turbines)  

13/00675/FUL – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 30.1m tip 41.6m 

 

PENDING 

 
13/00551/FUL – Dotterel Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 55m tip 81m 

13/00851/FUL – Land North of Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 40m tip 67m 

13/01091/FUL – Land To West of Grange Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.8m tip 34.5m 

 

It should be noted that the majority of the above turbines are all within 5km of the application site. 

 

The list is quiet extensive. However when taken in isolation it can be misleading in terms of assessing 
cumulative impact. The reason for this is that the Wolds include a number of valley’s which means 

that whilst the location of turbines can appear to be close on a map (see the attached plan to the 

report), they may not appear in the same viewpoint when seen on site. In view of this, and as part of 

the assessment of the application, officers have visited the area to assess the impact of the turbines 

already erected, and also looked at key views for those proposed. In relation to this application 

officers identified a number of viewpoints approaching the site from the east and west as well as a 

view point on the road from Weaverthorpe to Sherburn. Whilst the road is not classified, it is a main 
route from the A64 to the Wolds, and is regularly used. From this point turbines at Dotterel Farm, and 

Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe are presently visible. The initial view and associated impact of the 

turbines is increased as you continue towards Weaverthorpe as more turbines appear on the vista.  

Permission was granted on appeal at Manor House Helperthorpe and this turbine would be the fourth 

in this particular vista.  

Page 174



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

A further application at Dotterel Farm is pending and a recent refusal at High Barn Helperthorpe is the 

subject of an appeal which is yet to be determined.  Officers are of the opinion that this accumulation 

will result in a further change in the character of the landscape to the extent that it will become a 

turbine dominated view. The variation in height and design, together with the irregular spacing is 

considered to add to their incongruous appearance. 

 

Para 98 of the NPPF, states that such applications should be approved if its impacts are (or can be 

made) acceptable. SP13 of the Local Plan Strategy states that developments that generate renewable 

and/or low carbon sources of energy will be supported providing that individual and cumulating 

proposals: 

 

• Can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment, especially in respect of 

the setting of the North York Moors National Park, the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (and its setting), the Wolds and the Vale of Pickering. 

 

Members will note that both Lutton and Weaverthorpe Parish Councils have expressed concern 

regarding the cumulative impact of turbines on the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. Their full 

response is appended to this report. It is also worth noting the recent decision form the Secretary of 
State (SoS) on the Heslerton Wind Farm development, particularly his comments on the landscape 

and visual impact on the Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. The SoS states, in 

paragraph 12, that:-   

 

 “…the Wolds is a highly valued landscape…” 

 

On balance, taking into account the previous already granted wind turbines it is considered that the 
proposed additional turbine will result in significant and demonstratable harm to the character of this 

part of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. 

 

Neighbour impact 

 

(i) Noise 

 
The application is accompanied by a site specific noise survey. The applicant advises that it has been 

prepared in accordance with ETSU-R-97, and also a new guidance document ‘A Good Practice Guide 

to the application of ETSU-R-(& for the assessment and rating of wind turbine noise May 2013). This 

is the acknowledged method of assessing potential noise impact.  

 

The Councils Environmental Health Officer has responded and advised that a condition limiting the 

noise levels is imposed if the application is approved.  

 

(ii) Shadow flicker 

 

It is noted that concerns have been received regarding visual flicker. Given the proposed turbine will 

be positioned in excess of 400m from any occupied building it is not considered that shadow flicker is 

an issue in this instance.  
 

Community benefit 

 

This application has been presented on the basis of ‘supporting communities’ through the profits 

generated by selling the energy produced by both of the turbines to the National Grid. 

 

The revenue generated from this application will divide any profit 75:25 in the favour of TWG. 

Page 175



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

TWG’s aim is to benefit the communities of Weaverthorpe, Butterwick and Helperthorpe. The 

information submitted in support of the application has identified that TWG is currently considering 

schemes for the following:- 

 

• Hedgerow replacement and improvement; 

• Improving local biodiversity; 

• Community transport; 

• Scholarships for local people; 

• Assistance for local business start-ups; and 

• Further investment in renewable energy and energy efficiency schemes. 

 

Members should note, however, that a number of local residents have objected to the application and 

raised concerns in regard to the credentials and intent of the development based on the perceived  

community benefits. 

 

Archaeology 

 

The applicants, as part of the submission documents, have carried out a survey and identified that a 

‘watching brief’ be maintained during the construction phase, grid connection and formation of the 

access track.  

 

The County Archaeologist requested the submission of additional information, due to the fact that 

area is archaeologically sensitive. 

 

The applicants supplied further information and the County Archaeologist has responded and advised 

the imposition of a condition, were the application approved. 
 

Highway considerations 

 

The NYCC Highway Officer has advised that the routeing of the apparatus and turbine sections to 

site, for the majority of its journey, will be within the East Riding of Yorkshire Council’s (ERYC) 

administrative boundary.  The ERYC has been consulted and no comments have been received. 
 

The NYCC Highway Officer has requested the submission of additional information in order to be 

satisfied that the route through Ryedale and the entrance to the site will be acceptable and not result in 

any highway implications. The information was forwarded to the applicant but to date no revised 

details have been received. 

 

Heritage impact 

 

Members are advised that there are a number of historic assets, specifically Listed Buildings, located 

in the surrounding landscape and that the Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty under 

legislation relating to Listed Buildings: 

 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides, so far as 

material: ‘In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed 

building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall 

have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 

special architectural or historic interest which it possesses’. 

 

National policy guidance regarding the impact on heritage assets is set out in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (NPPF) and the recently published National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).  

Page 176



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Paragraph 129 of the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should identify and assess the 

particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including 

development affecting the setting of a heritage asset), taking account of the available evidence and 

any necessary expertise.  

 

Paragraph 133 goes on to say that where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm Local 

Planning Authorities should refuse permission, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm 

is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or loss. Where a 

development proposal will lead to ‘less than substantial’ harm to the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.     

 

In terms of development within the setting of heritage assets, paragraph 137 is relevant and advises 

local authorities to “look for opportunities for new development within Conservation Areas….and 

within the setting of heritage assets to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that 

preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to or better reveal the 

significance of the asset should be treated favourably.” 

 

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), paragraph 013 amplifies the relevance of an assets 

setting stating “Setting is the surroundings in which an asset is experienced...”. The paragraph 

continues and goes on to say “The contribution that setting makes to the significance of the heritage 

asset does not depend on there being public rights or an ability to access or experience that setting. 

This will vary over time and according to circumstance.”  

 

The proposal has been assessed by the Council’s Building Conservation Officer, her comments are as 

follows: -  

 

“…it is apparent with this application that no heritage asset will be physically affected by the 

proposal…” 

 

“…therefore the focus is on the impact that the proposal will have on the setting of heritage assets.” 

 

“In my opinion the built heritage asset most affected by this application is the Grade II listed Church 

of St. Peter at Helperthorpe”.  

 

There are a number of other listed buildings in the near vicinity however due to their distance from 

the application site, or location within built up villages, I am of the opinion that their settings will not 

be affected by this application. 

 

“The Grade II Listed Church of St. Peter is located just north of the village close up to the village 

boundary. Due to its position set back from the road and its location on the boundary of the built up 

village, it is often screened by other buildings. It is also screened by hedges and trees therefore views 

of the church are quite restricted. Notwithstanding the above, views of the church spire are clearly 

visible when travelling south on the road north out of Helperthorpe to East Heslerton Wold. This is a 

minor road and peters out into a track however views of the turbine are likely to be seen in 

conjunction with the spire of the church and add a competing element into the landscape.  In addition, 

it is likely that due to a break in tree and hedge cover on the south side of the churchyard that the 

turbine will be clearly visible when looking south into the landscape from within the churchyard, path 

and porch.    

  

In my opinion the degree of harm caused will, be less than substantial and according to the NPPF 

should be weighed against the public benefits of the scheme.”  

 

Members will be aware of the Secretary of State’s (SoS) recent decision on the East Heslerton Wind 

Farm (11/00270/MFULE). The SoS disagreed with the Planning Inspector’s assessment of the impact 

of the proposal upon the setting of a Grade I Designated Historic Asset (St.Andrew’s, East Heslerton). 

The SoS concluded that the impact of the turbine’s created a harmful distraction to the Asset’s setting.  

Page 177



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

In this particular case the views of and from the designated Historic Asset will be affected by the 

proposed turbine. This proposal, as reflected in the Building Conservation Officer’s comments, results 

in a similar adverse impact. 

 

Paragraph 129 of the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should:  

 

“…identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a 

proposal (including development affecting the setting of a heritage asset).” 

 

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states: - 

 

“When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, 

the greater the weight should be. Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction 

of the heritage asset or development within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm 

or loss should require clear and convincing justification.” 

 

The Building Conservation Officer has identified that the proposal will cause harm to the setting of 

the listed building. Whilst not substantial, harm will still result to the setting of the asset if the 

application is approved.  

 
Policy SP12 (Heritage) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy reflects the NPPF. Specifically it in 

requires that the “historic environment will be conserved and where appropriate, enhanced.”  

 

The Legislation, specifically Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990 requires that “In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which 

affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the 

Secretary of State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its 

setting…” 

 

Whilst the applicant has identified the potential public benefits of the scheme it is considered that 

those benefits, in the decision making balance, are not of sufficient weight to outweigh the harm 

caused to the setting of the Grade II listed Church of St.Peter. 

 
Ecology  

 

The information submitted in support of the application includes a report in respect of the potential 

impact of the turbine on ecology. The turbine location takes account of the surrounding area and 

accordingly there is no objection from the Councils Countryside Officer. 

 

Aviation and radar 
 

There been no objections received from the relevant aviation and radar consultees. The Ministry of 

Defence, however, has objected to the application stating that the development will:- 

 

“…will cause unacceptable interference to the AD radar at RAF Staxton Wold.” 

 

The applicant has attempted to address the concerns raised by the MOD, however, the MOD has 
maintained their objection to the proposal.  

 

On this basis the application is considered to be unacceptable. 

 

Other Matters 

 
A number of concerns have been received from residents in regard to the potential devaluation of their 

property.  This is, however,  not a material planning consideration. 

Page 178



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Conclusion  

 

The District Council is supportive of the principle of renewable energy and this is demonstrated by 

the number of turbines that have been approved in the District.  

 

However, it is considered that the proposed turbine would add to the accumulation of turbines that 

would change the perception of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value in this locality. This is in 

particular when viewed from the Weaverthorpe to Sherburn road.  

 

It is also considered that, as a matter of planning judgement, that although the proposed development 

has the potential to deliver some planning benefits, the harm to the setting of St. Peter Church 

outweighs those benefits.   

 

The applicant has also failed to demonstrate that the proposal will not have a detrimental impact on 
the Air Defence radar installation or the highway network. 

 

As such the recommendation is one of refusal. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal  
 

1 The proposed development would result in an accumulation of the turbines locally in the 
landscape when viewed from the Sherburn to Weaverthorpe road. This is considered to be 

detrimental to the character of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. As such the 

development would be contrary to the principles of para 98 of the NPPF and Policies SP13 

and SP18 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

  

2 The proposed development by reason of its prominent position in the landscape proximity 

will result in an unacceptable level of harm to the setting of the Listed Church (St. Peter). 

Insufficient public benefits are derived from the development that outweigh the harm to the 

designated asset. The application is therefore considered to be contrary to Policy SP12 of the 

Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy and the provisions of Section 12 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework, specifically paragraphs 129, 131, 132, 133, 134 and the 

statutory provisions of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 
3 The development is considered to have an unacceptable impact on the National Air Defence 

Radar at RAF Staxton Wold. The Ministry of Defence (MoD) have objected on the basis 

that the turbine will be 10.602km from the Air Defence Radar at Staxton Wold and would 

result in an adverse impact on the RAF Air Defence Radar contrary to National Policy 

Statement for Energy EN1 Section 5.4 and paragraph 164 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework.  

  
4 Insufficient information has been submitted by the applicant that can demonstrate that the 

proposal will not have an adverse impact on the highway network.  Therefore the proposal is 

considered to be contrary to Policy SP16, SP18 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan 

Strategy 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



R
D

C
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

©
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 R

ig
h
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 1

0
0
0
1
9
4

0
6

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

P
e
n
d
in

g

W
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e
 A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
R

y
e
d

a
le

Page 266



©
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 R

ig
h
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 1

0
0
0
1
9
4

0
6

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

P
e
n
d
in

g

W
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e
 A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
in

 R
y
e
d

a
le

R
D

C
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

 

Item Number: 14 

Application No: 13/00851/FUL 

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Wolds Valley Wind Collective Ltd 

Proposal: Erection of 1no. 40m high (overall tip height 67m) 500kw wind turbine to 

generate electricity for the benefit of the local community with associated 

crane pad, transformer kiosk, access track, vehicular access and 40.5m 

high temporary meteorological monitoring mast. 

Location: Land To North Of Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  24 September 2013  

Overall Expiry Date:  15 March 2014 

Case Officer:  Shaun Robson Ext: 319 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Natural England No objection  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend conditions limiting the levels of noise  
Countryside Officer No objection  

Atkins Ltd No objection  

Civil Aviation Authority Comments received  

National Grid Plant Protection No response received  

Archaeology Section Advise condition  

Building Conservation Officer Objection  

East Riding of Yorkshire Council No response received  

National Air Traffic Services (NATS) No objection  

Ministry Of Defence No objection  

The Joint Radio Company Ltd Cleared with respect to radio link infrastructure  

Wind Farm Enquiries Link identified  

Tree & Landscape Officer No response received to date  

Neighbouring Parish Council Object  
Parish Council Object  

Highways North Yorkshire Object  

Neighbouring Parish Council Luttons / Object  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr Graham Brooks, Ms Lynne Porter, Mr David Stark, 

Mr Paul Millward, Mr Graham Perry, Mrs Rachel Beck, 

N Robinson, Deslyn Pettifer, S Richardson, R W Carver, 
Michael Jackson, David England, Chris Gray, J 

Matthews, Lucy Meer, Ben McClements, Rebecca 

Robinson, Mr William Bentley, Mr Rob T Fretwell, J 

Trowsdale, Gillian Trowsdale, Mr George Trowsdale, 

Mr James Trowsdale, Mr John Lake, Mrs Annette 

Mitchell, Dr David Petts, Mr Paul Stephens, Mrs 

Caroline Bradshaw, Mr Antony Craig, Mr John Clegg, 
Mrs Valerie Ford, Mr John Bullivent, Mrs Thelma 

Mitchell, Mrs Judith Tiplady, Mr John Leebetter, Mr 

Christopher Googe, Mr Kenneth Wright, Mr Paul Raw, 

Mr Philip Carpenter, Mr Alex Mitchell, Mrs Jill Cross, 

Mr Max Cross, Mr Brian Cross, Mrs Amanda 

Leatherbarrow, Mr Frank Bannister, Mr Ben Burgess, 

Mr Nigel Bradshaw, Mr Dennis Horseman, Mrs Paula 

Conner, Mrs Jill Wilson, Mrs Jackie Taylor, Jean 

Agenda Item 14

Page 276



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Whiteley, Mr Keith Lewindon, Mr Richard Lane, Mr 

Alex Chapman, Mrs M A Carr Mr J B Lawty, Mr 

Kenelm Storey, Mr Jason Millward, Mr Ian Fielding, Dr 

Dave Parrott, Mrs Amy Trevelyan, Mr Andy Boothroyd, 

The Occupier, Robert William Buck, Mrs Alice Ashby, 

Mrs Catherine Murray, Mr Paul Lovatt, Mr Peter 

Wilson, Mrs Norma Harrison, Mr Michael Rowland, Mr 

Anthony Berezanskij, Dr Dominic Powlesland, Ms Cath 

Muller, Michael And Caroline Garrod, Mr Ian Panter, 

Mr Peter Massheder, Mr Thomas Mills, Ms Christine 

Haughton, Mr John Grindrod, Mrs Sherry Parrott, Mrs 

Christine Chadwick, Mr Denis Gwilt, Mrs Enid Gwilt, 

Mr Neil Ford, Mr Raphael Isserlin, Mrs Lyndis 

Millward, Mr Nigel Beresford, Mr Peter West-Hitchins, 

Mrs Ann Lockwood, Mr Andrew Lockwood, Mr Stuart 
Lockwood, Mrs P E Gladwin, Mr Stanley Bell, Mr John 

Wane, Lynn Wraith, Mr Ron Whatling, Mrs Vicki 

Rowland, Mr Evan Ferguson, Mr Jonathan Clarke, Mrs 

Susan Lattaway, Mrs Jacqueline Craig, Mr Michael 

Mitchell, Margaret Stevens, Mrs Jenny Clarke, Mrs Gill 

Hodgson, Ms Sue Turnbull, Mr Duncan Scrase, Mr 

Nigel Lattaway, Mrs Sarah Mellor, Ms Rikki Arundel, 
Ms Emma Krijnen-Kemp, Mr Ian Stubbings, Mr Rod 

Buckley, Mrs Gillian Buckley, Dr Mark Whyman, Mrs 

Brenda Mellor, V Cornforth, Mr Thomas Cornforth, A E 

Downes, Elizabeth Hartle, M Lake, Mr W R Owen, R 

Stannard, Jo Peckitt And Jason Peirson, Mrs Paula 

Conner, Mr Sefa Akkirec, Mr Andy Thompson, Mr 

Andy Bullard, Mr Stuart Taylor, Mr David Hunter, Mr 

Nick Tiplady, Mr James Hartle, Mr Jarrod Fisher, Mrs 

Sheila Triffitt, Dr Andrew Harper, B D Kerr, Miss 

Victoria Craig, T E Scrase, Mr Ian Eaton, Mrs Helen 

Chapman, Mr Michael Murray, Mrs Susan Gough, Mrs 

Rozanne Startup, Dr Andrew Birley,  

 
 

 

SITE: 

 
The application site is located on elevated land approximately 2km to the north-east of Weaverthorpe 

and 1km to the west of Butterwick to the north of the Weaverthorpe to Butterwick road.  

 

The site currently consists of an agricultural field which is located within an area designated as an 
Area of High Landscape Value.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

This application forms  part of two proposals submitted by two local community based groups, 

namely The Wolds Valley Wind Collective Limited (WVWC) and Weaverthorpe Wind Limited 

(WW).  
 

The WVWC,  consists of the following members the Landscape Research Centre LTD (LRC); Wolds 

Valley Archaeological Trust (WVAT); Rarey Farm Foundation (RFF) and the Humberside  

Co-operative Development Agency Ltd (HCDA). The WVWC  has two aims, namely:- 

 

• To generate low carbon energy for the communities of the great Wold Valley; and  

• To generate sustainable incomes for its members so they can have confidence in their ability  

Page 277



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

   to deliver their social objectives. 

 

This application seeks  permission for the erection of 1500kW turbine with a hub height of 40.0m and 

a tip height of 67.0m, associated crane pad, transformer kiosk, access track, vehicular access and the 

erection of a 40.5m high temporary meteorological monitoring mast. 

 

The grid connection for the turbine is underground, therefore the connection to the grid will not be 

visible. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

No recent history. 

 

POLICY: 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) 

 

Section 7: Requiring good design. 

Section 10: Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change. 

Section 11: Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

Section 12: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014) 

 

Climate change 

Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

Design 

Determining a planning application 

Renewable and low carbon energy 

Use of planning conditions 

 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990  

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 
Policy SP12 – Heritage  

Policy SP13 – Landscapes  

Policy SP14 – Biodiversity  

Policy SP18 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy  

Policy SP19 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 
National Guidance 

 

The Climate Change Act 2008 

The Renewable Energy Strategy 2009 

National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-1) 

National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-3) 

 

PUBLICITY: 

 

96 letters of objection have been received in total, of which 89 have been from residents of 

Weaverthorpe, Helperthorpe, East Lutton, West Lutton, Kirby Grindalythe, Settrington, Malton, 

Pickering. The remaining 7 letters of objection have been received from Grimsby, Lincoln, Alton, 

Uttoxeter, Harrogate,  Bradford and Leeds. As well as the letters of objection a petition containing 68 

signatures has been received. Weaverthorpe Parish Council has also objected to the application. The 

Page 278



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

received objections from the Parish Council, residents and the petition cite one or more of the 

following points:- 

 

• No justification for the proposal; 

• Impact of the development on the Area of High Landscape Value; 

• The supporting information does not assess the cumulative impact of the development; 

• Impact of shadow flicker on residents; 

• No scheme identified for the decommissioning of the turbine; 

• The development will have an unacceptable impact on archaeological deposits; 

• No evidence in the area of community support; 

• Unacceptable Impact on television reception; 

• The proposal is not for the community as £1 million will be channelled to a co-operative 

development agency in Hull over the 25 year lifespan of the turbine; 

• Supporting photomontages are incorrect; 

• Devaluation of properties; 

• Cumulative impact of another turbine; 

• Visual impact of the proposal; 

• The developers have not discussed the development with local residents; 

• Unacceptable and detrimental impact on a Grade I listed church (St. Andrews Church); 

• Noise  

 

65 letters of support in total have also been received of which 34 have been from residents from 

Weaverthorpe, Swinton, Little Barugh, Butterwick, Helperthorpe, East Heslerton, West Heslerton, 

Yeddingham and Sherburn. The remaining 31 letters have been received from further a field, namely, 

Manchester, Hornsea (East Yorkshire), Scarborough, Bempton (East Yorkshire), Driffield, 

Bridlington, Shilbottle (Newcastle), Leeds, Hull, Holme-upon-Spalding-Moor (East Yorkshire), 

Kingswood (Hull), Gainsborough and  York. The letters of support cite one or more of the following 

points:- 

 

• The development will ensure the longevity of a non-profit making organisation; 

• The development will help the community; 

• No adverse impact will result to the surrounding area if the application is approved; 

• The development is a better option than ‘fracking’. 

• The development will benefit a number of organisations through funding. 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

It has been assessed that taking into account the scale and location of the development, it does not 

constitute ‘Environmental Impact Assessment’ development in accordance with Schedule 2 of the 

Town and Country Planning Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2011 (as amended). 

 

The main material considerations are: 
 

• Principle of development in policy terms 

• Landscape and cumulative impact 

• Impact of development on residential amenity 

• Heritage impact 

• Ecology 

• Transport 

• Community benefit 

• Aviation and radar implications and 

• Neighbour and Parish consultation responses 

 

 

 

Page 279



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Policy Context 

 

National Planning Policy 

 

The most relevant paragraphs of the NPPF state; 

 

93.  Planning plays a key role in helping shapes places to secure radical reductions in greenhouse 

gas emissions, minimising vulnerability and providing resilience to the impacts of climate change, 

and supporting the delivery of renewable and low carbon energy and associated infrastructure. This 

is central to the economic, social and environmental dimensions of sustainable development. 

 

97. To help increase the use and supply of renewable and low carbon energy, local planning 

authorities should recognise the responsibility on all communities to contribute to energy generation 

from renewable or low carbon sources; 

• Have a positive strategy to promote energy from renewable and low carbon sources; 

 

• Design their policies to maximise renewable and low carbon energy development while 

ensuring that adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily, including cumulative landscape 

and visual impact; 

 

• Consider identifying suitable areas for renewable and low carbon energy sources, and 

supporting infrastructure, where this would help secure the development of such sources; 

 

• Support community-led initiatives for renewable and low carbon energy, including 

developments outside such areas being taken forward through neighbourhood planning; and 

 

• Identify opportunities where development can draw its energy supply from decentralised, 

renewable or low carbon energy supply systems and for co-locating potential heat customers 

and suppliers. 

 

98. When determining planning applications. Local planning authorities should: 

 

• Not require applicants for energy development to demonstrate the overall need for renewable 

or low carbon energy and also recognise that even small-scale projects provide a valuable 

contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions;  and 

 

• Approve the application if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable. Once suitable areas 

for renewable and low carbon energy have been identified in plans, local planning authorities 

should also expect subsequent applications for commercial scale projects outside these areas 

to demonstrate that the proposed location meets the criteria used in identifying suitable 

areas. 

 

The relevant policies in the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy are: 

 
SP14 – Biodiversity  

SP18 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

SP19 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 

Para 7.32 of the Local Plan Strategy advises that one of the main ways in which climate change can 

be mitigated is through a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions. In order to assist in the 

decarbonisation of the UK’s electricity and heat supply, Ryedale will realise its potential for 

renewable and local carbon energy sources. Para 7.37 is also relevant to this application and states; 

 

7.37 It is important to recognise and support the contribution of community-led and farm scale 

renewable and low carbon solutions. 

 

Page 280



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Policy SP18 is criteria based and supports the principle of renewable and low carbon energy, and 

states; 

 

SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Developments that generate renewable and/or low carbon energy will be supported providing that 

individually and cumulatively proposals; 

 

• Can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment, especially in 

respect of the setting of the North York Moors National Park, the Howardian Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (and its setting), the Wolds and the Vale of Pickering; 

 

• Would not impact adversely on the local community, economy, or historical interests, unless 

their impact can be acceptably mitigated; 

 

• Would not have an adverse impact on nature conservation, in particular in relation to any 

sites of international biodiversity importance, unless their impact can be acceptably 

mitigated; 

 

• Would not have an adverse impact on air quality, soil and water resources in Policy SP17, 

unless their impact can be acceptably mitigated. 

 

It is clear therefore that there is strong policy support at both National and Local level for the 

principle of renewable and low carbon solutions. 

 

Landscape impact 

 

The application is accompanied by supporting documents including acoustic data, visual impact 

assessment, archaeological survey and photomontage. The area is described in the Local Plan Strategy 

as – an upland chalk landscape with a string of medieval (and earlier) villages following the spring 

line of the Gypsy Race. The designation of the area ‘Area of High Landscape Value’ has been 

retained in the Local Plan Strategy, and demonstrates the value placed on the character of the area. It 

also adds weight to the requirement to take account of the impact of development on the landscape. 
 

The proposed turbine would be sited in isolation on rising ground to the north-east Weaverthorpe. 

Which given the proximity of the existing operational turbines the development will be viewed in 

combination with those turbines.   

 

Officers consider that those single turbines that have best been assimilated into the landscape are 

those which are visually associated with farm buildings, because they are not as isolated. Nevertheless 

the District Council has approved other single turbines at distance from existing development where it 

is considered that the benefits of renewable energy outweigh the harm. An example of this can be 

seen at Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe.  

 

The turbine will introduce a tall vertical structure which is at odds with the more horizontal rolling 

slopes of this part of the Wolds. Nevertheless from most view points the greatest impact is relatively 

localised. Indeed other turbines in the area have been approved by the District Council on that basis. 

Examples are Gara Farm, and Manor Farm, Weaverthorpe, and Boythorpe Farm at Butterwick. 

 

In relation to cumulative impact, there is little guidance on how to accurately assess cumulative 

impact. It is necessary to balance the strong policy support for renewable energy with the need to 

ensure that the number, location, design etc of the turbine does not cause significant demonstratable 

harm to the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. The following is a list of turbines that have been 

approved in the area. 

 

 

 

 

Page 281



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

APPROVED 

 

09/00906/FUL (installed) – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 18.3m tip 25m 

10/01311/FUL – Duggleby Wold Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 32m tip 48m (x2 turbines) 

11/00336/FUL (installed) – Barrow Farm, Ganton Hill, Ganton – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

11/00337/FUL (installed) – Cat Babbleton Farm, Ganton Hill, Ganton – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

11/00541/FUL (installed) – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 18m tip 24.5m 

11/00615/FUL (installed) – Ling Farm, Green Lane, Langtoft – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m (x2 turbines) 

11/00744/FUL (installed) – Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 37.18m tip 53.88m 

12/00201/FUL (Appeal Allowed) – Manor House, Long Hill, Helperthorpe – hub 36.4m tip 46m 

12/00566/FUL (installed) – Gara Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

12/00602/FUL (installed) – Manor Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.6m tip 34.2m 

12/00822/FUL – Allison Wold Farm, Simon Howe, Sherburn – hub 30.5m tip 44m (x2 turbines) 

13/00534/FUL – Boythorpe Farm, Butterwick – hub 31.5m tip 46m (x2 turbines)  

13/00675/FUL – Kirby Wold House, Low Road, Kirby Grindalythe – hub 30.1m tip 41.6m 
 

PENDING 

 

13/00551/FUL – Dotterel Farm, Weaverthorpe – hub 55m tip 81m 

13/00850/FUL – Land West of Pasture Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 40m tip 67m 

13/01091/FUL – Land To West of Grange Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe – hub 24.8m tip 34.5m 

 
It should be noted that the majority of the above turbines are all within 5km of the application site. 

 

The list is quiet extensive, however when taken in isolation it can be misleading in terms of assessing 

cumulative impact. The reason for this is that the Wolds include a number of valley’s which means 

that whilst the location of turbines can appear to be close on a map (see the attached plan to the 

report), they may not appear in the same viewpoint when seen on site. In view of this, and as part of 

the assessment of the application, officers have visited the area to assess the impact of the turbines 

already erected, and also looked at key views for those proposed. In relation to this application 

officers identified a number of viewpoints approaching the site from the east and west as well a  view 

point on the road from Weaverthorpe to Sherburn. Whilst the road is not classified, it is a main route 

from the A64 to the Wolds, and regularly used. From this point turbines at Dotterel Farm, and Manor 

Farm, Weaverthorpe are presently visible. The initial view and associated impact of the turbines is 

increased as you continue towards Weaverthorpe as more turbines appear on the vista. Permission was 
granted on appeal at Manor House Helperthorpe, and this turbine would be the fourth in this particular 

vista, if application 13/00850/FUL is approved.  

 

A further application at Dotterel Farm is pending and a recent refusal at High Barn Helperthorpe is the 

subject of an appeal which is yet to be determined. Officers are of the opinion that this accumulation 

will result in a further change in the character of the landscape to the extent that it will become a 

turbine dominated view. The variation in height and design, together with the irregular spacing is 
considered to add to their incongruous appearance. 

 

Para 98 of the NPPF, states that such applications should be approved if its impacts are (or can be 

made) acceptable. SP13 of the Local Plan Strategy states that developments that generate renewable 

and/or low carbon sources of energy will be supported providing that individual and cumulating 

proposals: 

 

• Can be satisfactorily assimilated into the landscape or built environment, especially in  

   respect of the setting of the North York Moors National Park, the Howardian Hills Area of     

   Outstanding Natural Beauty (and its setting), the Wolds and the Vale of Pickering. 

 
Members will note that Weaverthorpe Parish Council has expressed concerns regarding the 

cumulative impact of turbines on the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. Their full response is 

appended to this report. It is also worth noting the recent decision form the Secretary of State (SoS)  

Page 282



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

on the Heslerton Wind Farm development, particularly his comments on the landscape and visual 

impact on the Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. The SoS states, in paragraph 12, that:-   

 

 “…the Wolds is a highly valued landscape…” 

 

On balance, taking into account the previous already granted wind turbines it is considered that the 

proposed additional turbine will result in significant and demonstratable harm to the character of this 

part of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. 

 

Neighbour impact 

 

(i) Noise 

 

The application is accompanied by a site specific noise survey. The applicant advises that it has been 

prepared in accordance with ETSU-R-97, and also a new guidance document ‘A Good Practice Guide 
to the application of ETSU-R-(& for the assessment and rating of wind turbine noise May 2013). This 

is the acknowledged method of assessing potential noise impact.  

 

The Councils Environmental Health Officer has responded and advised that a condition limiting the 

noise levels is imposed if the application is approved.  

 

(ii) Shadow flicker 
 

It is noted that concerns have been received regarding visual flicker. Given the proposed turbine will 

be positioned in excess of 700m from any occupied building it is not considered that shadow flicker is 

an issue in this instance.  

 

Community benefit 

 

The application has been presented on the basis of ‘supporting communities’ through the profits 

generated by selling the energy produced by the turbines (both developments) to the National Grid. 

 

The WVWC project, is a joint venture between Landscape Research Centre Ltd (LRC), Wolds Valley 

Archaeological Trust (WVAT), the Rarey Farm Foundation (RFF) and the Humberside  

Co-operative Development Agency Ltd (HCDA) 
 

The LRC is a charity based in Yedingham which undertakes archaeological research in the Vale of 

Pickering. 

 

The WVAT is a charitable trust that undertakes similar work to LRC but in the Wolds Valley area. 

 

RFF is a charitable association based in Weaverthorpe. 
 

The HCDA aim is to increase the sustainability of other communities across the wider region. 

 

Members should note, however,  that a number of local residents have objected to the application and 

raised concerns in regard to the credentials and intent of the development based on the perceived 

Community benefits. 

 
Archaeology 

 

The applicants, as part of the submission documents, have carried out a survey and identified that a 

‘watching brief’ be maintained during the construction phase, grid connection and formation of the 

access track.  

 

The County Archaeologist requested the submission of additional information due to the fact that area 

is archaeologically sensitive. 

Page 283



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

The applicants supplied further information and the County Archaeologist has responded and raised 

no further concerns, subject to the imposition of an appropriate condition. 

 

Highway considerations 

 

The NYCC Highway Officer has advised that the routeing of the apparatus and turbine sections to 

site, for the majority of its journey, will be within the East Riding of Yorkshire Council’s (ERYC) 

administrative boundary. The ERYC has been consulted and no comments have been received. 

 

The NYCC Highway Officer has requested the submission of additional information in order to be 

satisfied that the route through Ryedale and the entrance to the site will be acceptable and not result in 

any highway implications. The information was forwarded to the applicant but to date no revised 

details have been received. 

 
A concern has also been raised by the highway officer in relation to the existing access arrangement, 

specifically the restricted visibility in both directions. On the basis that the applicant has not identified 

any improvements to the visibility to the site the highway officer has recommend refusal.   

 

Heritage impact 

 

Members are advised that there are a number of historic assets, specifically Listed Buildings, located 
in the surrounding landscape and that the Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty under 

legislation relating to Listed Buildings: 

 

Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides, so far as 

material: ‘In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed 

building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall 

have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 

special architectural or historic interest which it possesses’. 

 

National policy guidance regarding the impact on heritage assets is set out in the National Planning 

Policy Framework (NPPF) and the recently published National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).  

 

Paragraph 129 of the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should identify and assess the 
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including 

development affecting the setting of a heritage asset), taking account of the available evidence and 

any necessary expertise.  

 

Paragraph 133 goes on to say that where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm Local 

Planning Authorities should refuse permission, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm 

is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or loss. Where a 
development proposal will lead to ‘less than substantial’ harm to the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.     

 

In terms of development within the setting of heritage assets, paragraph 137 is relevant and advises 

local authorities to “look for opportunities for new development within Conservation Areas….and 

within the setting of heritage assets to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that 

preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to or better reveal the 

significance of the asset should be treated favourably.” 

 

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), paragraph 013 amplifies the relevance of an assets 

setting stating “Setting is the surroundings in which an asset is experienced...”. The paragraph 

continues and goes on to say “The contribution that setting makes to the significance of the heritage 

asset does not depend on there being public rights or an ability to access or experience that setting. 

This will vary over time and according to circumstance.”  

 

Page 284



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

The proposal has been assessed by the Council’s Building Conservation Officer, her comments are as 

follows: -  

 

“The NPPF requires at paragraph 129 that Local Planning Authorities should ‘identify and assess 

the particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including 

development affecting the setting of a heritage asset)’. 

 

It is apparent with this application that no heritage asset will be physically directly affected by the 

proposal. This response therefore focuses on the impact that the proposal will have on the setting of 

heritage assets.   

 

In my opinion the built heritage asset most affected by this application is the Grade I Listed church of 

St Andrew at Weaverthorpe.  

 

There are a number of other listed buildings in the near however due to their distance from the 

application site, or location within built up villages, I am of the opinion that their settings will be 

affected by this application.  

 

The Grade I listed church of St Andrew at Weaverthorpe is situated in an isolated position above the 

village on the northern slope of the woldside. It has an austere beauty partly derived from its position 

away from the village which predominantly sits at the bottom of the valley. It is clearly designed to 

been seen in the landscape and at various points in the landscape St Andrews is a dominant building 

giving it some presence. The setting of the church extends for a long distance as the church can 

clearly be seen within the landscape from a number of positions within the public realm most notably 

when travelling east along the east-west Helperthorpe/Weaverthorpe  road and glimpsed through 

openings in hedges along the East Heslerton Wold road running north out of Helperthorpe. It can 

also clearly be seen as a dominant feature when travelling north along  ‘Green Lane’  and the 

Driffield road between Helperthorpe and Weaverthorpe. In my opinion, the setting of the church has 

already partly been compromised by various existing wind turbines in the vicinity.   

 

In my opinion this application will further compromise the setting of the Grade I listed St. Andrew’s 

church at Weaverthorpe. It will add a competing element in the landscape when looking at the church 

most notably when travelling east, on the Helperthorpe/Weaverthorpe road and when travelling north 

on Green Lane, the Driffield road between Helperthorpe and Weaverthorpe and the PROW running 

south out of Weaverthorpe.  

 

In my opinion the proposed turbine will also cause harm to the setting of the listed building when 

looking east into the landscape from the churchyard.  Clear views of the turbine will be possible when 

viewed from the church path, porch and cemetery. It will add a distracting and competing element 

into the landscape and affect the serenity and calmness of the landscape when looking at the church 

and looking from the church.  

 

In my opinion the degree of harm caused will, be less than substantial and according to the NPPF 

should be weighed against the public benefits of the scheme.”  

 

Members will be aware of the Secretary of States (SoS) recent decision on the East Heslerton Wind 

Farm (11/00270/MFULE). The SoS disagreed with the Planning Inspector’s assessment of the impact 

of the proposal upon the setting of a Grade I Designated Historic Asset (St.Andrew’s, East Heslerton). 

The SoS concluded that the impact of the turbine’s created a harmful distraction to the Asset’s setting.  
In this particular case the views of and from the designated Historic Asset will be affected by the 

proposed turbine. This proposal, as reflected in the Building Conservation Officer’s comments, results 

in a similar adverse  impact.  

 

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states: - 

 

“When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated 

heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset, 

Page 285



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

the greater the weight should be. Significance can be harmed or lost through alteration or destruction 

of the heritage asset or development within its setting. As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm 

or loss should require clear and convincing justification.” 

 

The Building Conservation Officer has identified that the development will cause harm to the setting 

of the listed building.  

 

Policy SP12 (Heritage) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy reflects the NPPF. Specifically it in 

requires that the “historic environment will be conserved and where appropriate, enhanced.”  

 

The Legislation, specifically Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990 requires that “In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which 

affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the 

Secretary of State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its 

setting…” 
 

Whilst the applicant has identified the potential public benefit of the scheme it is considered that the 

benefits are not of sufficient weight in the decision making balance, to outweigh the harm caused to 

the setting of the Grade I Listed Church.  

 

Ecology  

 
The information submitted in support of the application includes a report in respect of the potential 

impact of the turbine on ecology. The turbine location takes account of the surrounding area and 

accordingly there is no objection from the Councils Countryside Officer. 

 

Aviation and radar 

 

There been no objections received from the relevant aviation and radar consultees. The Ministry of 

Defence, however, originally objected to the application but following the submission of additional 

information withdrew their objection to the proposal which was based on interference to the AD radar 

at RAF Staxton Wold. 

 

Other Matters 

 
A number of concerns have been received from residents in regard to the potential devaluation of their 

property. This is, however,  not a material planning consideration. 

 

Conclusion  

 

The District Council is supportive of the principle of renewable energy and this is demonstrated by 

the number of turbines that have been approved in the District.  
 

However, it is considered that the proposed turbine would add to the accumulation of turbines that 

would change the perception of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value in this locality. This is in 

particular when viewed from the Weaverthorpe to Sherburn road.  

 

It is also considered that, as a matter of planning judgement, that although the proposed development 

has some planning benefits, the harm to the setting of St. Andrew’s Church outweighs the benefits of 
the proposed development.  

 

The applicant has also failed to demonstrate that sufficient visibility can be achieved for vehicles 

exiting the site. The proposal will therefore have a detrimental impact on the highway network. 

 

As such the recommendation is one of refusal. 

 

 

Page 286



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal  
 

1 The proposed development would result in an accumulation of the turbines locally in the 

landscape when viewed from the Sherburn to Weaverthorpe road. This is considered to be 

detrimental to the character of the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. As such the 

development would be contrary to the principles of para 98 of the NPPF and Policies SP13 

and SP18 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

  

2 The proposed development by reason of its prominent position in the landscape proximity 

will result in an unacceptable level of harm to the setting of the Listed Church (St. 

Andrew’s). Insufficient public benefits are derived from the development that outweigh the 

harm to the designated asset. The application is therefore considered to be contrary to Policy 
SP12 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy and the provisions of Section 12 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework, specifically paragraphs 129, 131, 132, 133, 134 and 

the statutory provisions of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990.  

 

3 The existing access, by which vehicles associated with this proposal would leave the and 

rejoin the county highway, is unsatisfactory since the required visibility of 2.4 metres x 215 
metres cannot be achieved at the junction with the county highway and therefore, in the 

opinion of the Local Planning Authority the intensification of use which would result from 

the proposed development is unacceptable in terms of highway safety.   

  

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



R
D

C
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

©
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 R

ig
h
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 1

0
0
0
1
9
4

0
6

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

P
e
n
d
in

g

W
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e
 A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
R

y
e
d

a
le

Page 369



©
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 R

ig
h
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 1

0
0
0
1
9
4

0
6

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

P
e
n
d
in

g

W
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e
 A

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
in

 R
y
e
d

a
le

R
D

C
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

 

Item Number: 15 

Application No: 14/00315/FUL 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr John Skaife 

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of livestock and 

storage of machinery and feed, together with formation of additional 

hardstanding. 

Location: Land South Of  Street Lane Pickering North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  6 June 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 July 2014 
Case Officer:  Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Highways North Yorkshire Recommends alterations to access are included on 

application, and concerns re visibility, recommends 

formation of visibility splays  
Countryside Officer Object as insufficient information- further response 

awaited 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objections – awaiting response regarding conditi

   

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

Land Use Planning Yorkshire Water – conditional support 

Parish Council No objection  

Land Use Planning Recommend condition  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site is located to the south of Street Lane to the west of Keld Head, Pickering. The site 

is situated within the open countryside and the Keld Head Springs Site of Important Nature 

Conservation. The site is also located adjacent to, but not within, the Keld Head Conservation Area 

and Visually Important Undeveloped Area.  

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

The proposal seeks planning permission for the erection of an agricultural building for the housing of 

livestock and storage of machinery and feed, together with formation of additional hardstanding.  

 

The applicant has provided a Habitat Survey in support of the proposal.  

 

The application is reported to Members for decision because the applicant is related to a Member of 
the Council. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

There is no relevant planning history to this site.  

 

 

Agenda Item 15

Page 379



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

POLICY: 

 
National Policy Guidance  

 

National Planning Policy Framework  

National Planning Practise Guidance 

 

Ryedale Plan: Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 – The Land Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP12 – Heritage 

Policy SP13 – Landscapes 

Policy SP14 – Biodiversity  

Policy SP16 – Design 
Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations in the assessment of this application are: 

 

i) Principle of the Development 
ii) Keld Head Springs - Site of Important Nature Conservation 

iii) Groundwater Protection Zone 

iv) Highway Related Issues 

 

Principle of the Development 

National and Local policies support new buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity 

and a working countryside, including for farming. The applicant seeks to develop this site for an 

agricultural business. The economic benefits of promoting the agricultural business need to be 

weighed against the harm the proposed development would have on the character of the open 

countryside, the Conservation Area (which is approximately 30 metres to the east at its nearest point) 

and Visually Important Undeveloped Area.  

 

The building proposed would measure approximately 18.6m long x 9.3m wide x 5.7m high, and is 
proposed to be formed of concrete panels, Yorkshire Boarding and dark grey fibre cement roofing. 

The building would be simple in its design and typically agricultural in its appearance. There are 

established hedgerows along the northern boundary of the site which will soften views of the building 

from the public highway to the north. On the eastern boundary is located a mixture of established 

trees and hedgerow which will, to some extent, help screen the development when viewed from the 

east and provide a backdrop for the building when view from the west. Nevertheless, parts of the 

building would be visible when viewed from across the Conservation Area and the Visually Important 
Undeveloped Area, therefore in order to mitigate the impact of the building a landscaping condition is 

recommended to ensure additional screening on this boundary. 

 

Site of Important Nature Conservation (SINC) 

The applicant has submitted a Phase 1 habitat survey. The application site is located within the semi-

improved neutral grassland of the Site of Important Nature Conservation. As identified by the habitat 

survey this part of the SINC is as follows: 
 

“The dominant habitat type consists of this habitat type and is maintained through light grazing by 

sheep and mowing. At the time of the survey, the sward was approximately 10cm tall. There appears 

to have been little nutrient improvement of the field beyond animal inputs as species diversity is rich.” 

 

The Council’s Countryside Officer has been consulted on the application originally objecting on the 

basis of insufficient information. Since then, further information has been submitted and the further 

Page 380



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

comments of the Countryside Officer are awaited. These will be provided to Members in the late 

pages or at the Planning Committee Meeting.  

 

Groundwater Protection Zone 

The Environment Agency have noted that the application site is located within Groundwater 

Protection Zone 1 for the Yorkshire Water Services drinking water supply for Pickering.  As a result, 

objections were raised to the development as insufficient information was provided to allow proper 

assessment of the risk on groundwater supply in the locality.  However, following discussions 

between planning officers and the Environment Agency, it was agreed that should the applicant 

connect the surface water run-off from the building to the public sewer that the Environment Agency 

would remove their objection. The applicant has agreed to do this.   

 

In addition to the Environment Agency’s concerns, Yorkshire Water have also been consulted due to 

the proximity of the site to the Corallian aquifer which is used extensively for public water supply. 

Following discussions with planning officers, to ensure no adverse impact, Yorkshire Water have 
recommended conditions to any planning permission granted.   

 

Highway Related Issues 

With respect to highway safety, NYCC Highway Authority have raised concerns regarding the 

visibility splays of the access into the site. Revised plans have been requested from the applicant 

which are expected to be received in the near future. The further comments of the highway authority 

are awaited, and will be provided to Members within the late pages or at the Planning Committee 
Meeting.  

 

To conclude, the recommendation is one of approval subject to final confirmation from the Councils 

Countryside Officer and NYCC Highway Authority that all matters have been resolved. In the event 

that any of the matters are not agreed delegation to the Head of Planning and Housing is sought 

should any consultation response received result in an alternative recommendation.  

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP9 The Land-Based and Rural Economy   

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP12 Heritage 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP14 Biodiversity 
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  
 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
  

 Reason: To ensure appropriate appearance in accordance with the requirements of Policy 

SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

3 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of a 

landscaping and planting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority.  The scheme shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs and show 

areas to be grass seeded or turfed.  The submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules 

Page 381



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

shall indicate numbers, species, heights on planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs 

including existing items to be retained.  All planting seeding and/or turfing comprised in the 

above scheme shall be carried out during the first planting season following the 

commencement of the development, or such longer period as may be agreed in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority.  Any trees or shrubs which, within a period of five years from 

being planted, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced 

in the next planting season with others of similar sizes and species, unless the Local 

Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

  

 Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved. 

 

4 No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of disposal of foul and 

surface water drainage, including details of any balancing works and off-site works, have 

been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. Unless approved by the 

local Planning Authority, surface water shall not drain to soakaway. 
  

 Reason: To ensure that the development can be properly drained without detriment to the 

public water supply. 

 

5 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority, there shall be no piped 

discharge of surface water from the development prior to the completion of the approved 

surface water drainage works and no buildings shall be occupied or brought into use prior to 
completion of the approved foul drainage works. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that no foul or surface water discharges take place until proper provision 

has been made for their disposal. 

 

6 No development shall commence until a Construction Environmental Management Plan 

(CEMP) has been submitted to and approved by the local Planning Authority. Furthermore, 

no development shall commence until any approved mitigation measures with respect to the 

protection of groundwater have been implemented to the satisfaction of the local Planning 

Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that no foul or surface water discharges take place until proper provision 

has been made for their disposal. 
 

7 Any conditions recommended from the Council's Countryside Officer 

 

8 Any conditions recommended by the Environment Agency 

 

9 Any conditions recommended by NYCC Highway Authority 

 
10 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s):. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 

  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

 

Item Number: 16 

Application No: 14/00362/FUL 

Parish: Luttons Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr David Pattison 

Proposal: Change of use and alterations of public house to form a 4 bedroom 

dwelling. 

Location: Three Tuns Inn Main Street West Lutton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8TA 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  29 July 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  7 July 2014 
Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Property Management No views received to date  

Parish Council Object  
Tree & Landscape Officer Request tree report  

 

Neighbour responses: Andrea Dixon, Denise Winks, Vanessa Hottley, Mr & 

Mrs Keith, Dawn Hardcastle, Mr Paul Everett, Audrey 

Corbett, T.J. Phillips, Robert And Jayne Buck,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site comprises a Public House, Three Tuns, which is located within the development 

limits of West Lutton. The application site is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3 by virtue of its 

proximity to the Gypsy Race. The Public House use is contained on the ground floor with a 3 bed unit 

of accommodation above. To either side are residential properties. 
 

PROPOSAL: 

 
Planning permission is sought to change the use of the Public House to form  a 4 bedroom dwelling. 

 

Internal alterations include:- 

 
Ground floor 

 

The bar is proposed to become a lounge 

The beer cellar is proposed to become a bathroom 

The pool room is proposed to become a dinning room 

The pub kitchen, and toilets is proposed to become a house kitchen. 

 
First floor 

 

The lounge is proposed to become bedroom 4. 

 

External alterations 

 

It is proposed to re-roof the property in a new terracotta pantiled roof  

Agenda Item 16

Page 387



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Brick up outer cellar doors in matching brick. 

 

HISTORY: 

 

2005 - Planning permission granted for the formation of a vehicular access with timber entrance gates 

(retrospective application) 

 

1988 - Planning permission granted for the erection of a single story extension to form lounge 

extension. 

 

1987 - Planning permission granted for the erection of a rear extension to form a function room and 

kitchen. 

 

1979 - Planning permission granted for extensions to premises to provide Ladies and Gents toilet 

 

POLICY: 

 

National Policy Guidance  

 

National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 (NPPG) 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) 

 
Local Plan Strategy - adopted 5 September 2013 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 – Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations in relation to this are:- 

 

1. The principle of the proposed change of use and the loss of the Public House; 

2. Whether the proposed use can be undertaken without having a material adverse effect upon 

the amenity of the adjoining properties. 

3. Whether the proposal will have a material adverse effect upon the amenity of adjoining 
properties. 

4. Flood risk. 

5. Parking and highway safety. 

6. Trees. 

 

Members are advised that the public consultation exercise on this application has generated;- 

 

� An objection from the Parish Council.  This raises the following issues, the loss of the Public 

House as an important community facility; suggested inaccuracies within the submitted 

information by the agent; and that some of the proposed ground floor rooms will not have 

windows 

� A petition against the proposal signed by 113 people 

� 5 letters of objection against the proposed change of use because of its importance as a 

community facility. 

Page 388



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

� 2 representations from adjoining properties raising no objection in principle to the proposed 

change of use, but do not wish to see the building extended. 

 

The above responses are available to view online under the application reference number.  

 

Principle of the proposed development 

 

Para. 28 of NPPF seeks to protect and retain community uses, such as public houses within existing 

rural areas. Furthermore Policy SP11 of the Local Plan Strategy states: 

 

‘Existing local retail, community, cultural, leisure, and recreational services and facilities that 

contribute to the vitality of the towns and villages and the well-being of local communities will be 

protected from loss/redevelopment unless it can be demonstrated that: 

 

� There is no longer a need for the facility or suitable and accessible alternatives exist, or 

� That it is no longer economically viable to provide the facility, or 

� Proposals involving replacement facilities provide an equivalent or greater benefit to the 

community and can be delivered with minimum disruption to provision.’ 

 

The agent has informed that the pub has been closed since June 2013 due to its poor economic 

performance. The agent has also confirmed that The Three Tuns has been marketed by Christie & Co 

(Leeds) since April 2013.  Christie & Co have confirmed that whilst they have provided details of the 

property to a number of people interested in purchasing pubs in the Yorkshire area and there have 

been 7 viewings of the property. No offers have been received. Christie & Co have stated that the 

property was marketed online, by fixed advertising board outside the premises and in the Yorkshire 

Post and Morning Advertiser.   The pub and accommodation above was marketed at £245,950. The 

Council’s Valuer has considered the submitted marketing details and considers the marketing price 

represents an acceptable valuation for the Pub and accommodation. Furthermore the Council’s Valuer 

considers that the marketing exercise carried out is reasonable. The Council’s Valuer is of the opinion 

that the Pub is not economically viable. 

 

Members should note that The Three Tuns is a ‘wet sales’ only pub. The Council’s Valuer considers 

that to include food sales would require significant investment in a kitchen extension and cooking 

facilities, which would not represent viable expenditure given that the current use is already deemed 

economically unviable, and to which there has been no demand. 

 

Whilst Officers are reluctant to see the loss of this village pubs, in view of the advice from the  

Council’s Valuer, there are considered to be no sustainable planning grounds to object to the loss of 

this pub in principle.  The Parish Council’s comments (received 17 July 2014) about how the pub has 

been operated and marketed have been forwarded to the applicant and the Council’s Valuer for their 
further views.  However, preliminary discussions with the Council’s Valuer do not indicate that his 

view would change.  Members will be updated at the meeting. 

 

There is already a unit of residential accommodation at the Pub and the proposed change of use would 

simply extend that use across both the ground and first floor. In view of this arrangement it is not 

possible to impose a Local Needs Occupancy condition or request a financial  contribution towards 

Public Open Space as there is no net increase in the number of residential units. 

 

Flood Risk 

 

In accordance with Technical Guidance to NPPF, the existing drinking establishment use is a ‘More 

Vulnerable’ use and the proposed dwelling use is also a ‘More Vulnerable’ use. The flood risk 

vulnerability of the existing use and the proposed use is exactly the same. The sequential test in this 

case is considered to be met in view of the application representing a change of use within an existing 

building to a use that is no more vulnerable that the existing use.   

 

 

Page 389



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Residential amenity 

 

It is understood that the building was built as a dwelling originally. The proposed building is 

considered to be capable of being used as a dwelling without having a material adverse effect upon 

the amenity of the adjoining properties. The proposed use is also considered likely to have less impact 

than the current Pub use, in terms of noise and disturbance to surrounding properties and movements 

to and from the site. 

 

The owners of the two neighbouring properties have also supported the proposed change of use to a 

dwelling but have reservations regarding potential extensions that would be undertaken to it in the 

future. It is therefore considered appropriate to withdraw permitted development rights by condition. 

 

The are no new window positions proposed and no unacceptable level of potential overlooking arising 

from the proposal. There is also considered to a reasonable sized rear garden in keeping with 

adjoining properties. The proposal is therefore considered to have a satisfactory level of residential 
amenity and not to have a material adverse effect upon the amenity of adjoining properties. 

 

The Parish Council’s comments about the proposed ground floor bathroom, dining room and kitchen 

having no windows have been forwarded to the applicant, for clarification.  The applicant would need 

to include windows in the dining room and kitchen for Building Regulation purposes.  However, both 

these rooms are at ground floor and it is considered that with some re-arrangement to the rear, these 

openings can be sympathetically accommodated without adversely affecting neighbours.  Moreover, 
photographs of the property indicate windows on the front elevation that could be retained. 

 

Highway Safety 

 

The local Highway Authority has no objection to the proposal. 

 

In addition the Tree and Landscape Officer recommends a condition in respect of protection measures 

in respect of a mature tree that stands in the south eastern corner of the garden of the property. 

 

In view of the above assessment the recommendation is one of approval. 

 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP2 Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP3 Affordable Housing 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP4 Type and Mix of New Housing 

Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP11 Community Facilities and Services 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design 
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 
  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 390



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 (NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached 

proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the 

requirements of the condition discharged) 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  

 

3 No service/or the storage of any materials connected with the approved development shall 

take place within a radius of 8.4m from the trunk of the mature tree which stands in the 
south eastern corner of the garden of the property. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that the rooting zone of the tree is not compacted or roots severed as a 

consequence of the development, in accordance with British Standard 5837:2012 ‘Trees in 

relation to Demolition Design and Construction – Recommendations’, and in accordance 

with Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 
4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town & Country Planning 

(General Permitted development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 

amending that Order), development of the following classes shall not be undertaken other 

than as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority following a specific 

application in that respect: 

  

 Class A: Enlargement, improvement or alteration of a dwellinghouse  

 Class B: Roof alteration to enlarge a dwellinghouse  

 Class C: Any other alteration to the roof of a dwellinghouse  

 Class D: Erection or construction of a domestic external porch  

 Class E: Provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, 

swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of a 

dwellinghouse or the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of such a building or 
enclosure. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the appearance of the area is not prejudiced by the introduction of 

unacceptable materials and/or structure(s) and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - 

Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 Prior to the commencement of the development precise details of the front boundary details 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

6 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 
  

 Site location plan 

 Downstairs floor plan – before 

 Downstairs floor plan – after 

 Upstairs floor plan before  

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

Page 391



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



�
����������	

������

������������

 

 

Item Number: 17 

Application No: 14/00458/FUL 

Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr Stuart Wood 

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural livestock building for calf housing 

Location: Poplar House Farm Leppington Lane Leppington Malton North Yorkshire 

YO17 9RL 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  1 July 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  1 June 2014 

Case Officer:  Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objections  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

 
Neighbour responses: Mr Colin Beevers, Mr Simon Flounders, M J S Preece,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

Popular House Farm is an operational farmstead situation to the northern edge of Leppington. Whilst 

the farmhouse is located within the development limits of the village, the associated agricultural 

buildings are located in the open countryside and the Area of High Landscape Value. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Planning permission is sought for the erection of an agricultural livestock building for calf housing.  

 

HISTORY: 

 

13/01326/FUL - Erection of replacement agricultural building for the housing of livestock 

(retrospective application) 

 

13/01327/FUL - Erection of replacement agricultural building for the housing the livestock 

(retrospective application) 
 

14/00459/FUL - Erection of an agricultural lean to livestock building adjoining existing livestock 

building 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy Guidance 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

National Planning Practise Guidance (NPPG) 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 - The Land-Based and Rural Economy 

Agenda Item 17

Page 406



�
����������	

������

������������

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

This application is presented before Planning Committee because objections have been received to the 

proposal. This main issues raised include the siting of the building, noise, smell, overshadowing and 

loss of light.   

 
Members will note that during the course of this application, the Council’s Environmental Health 

Officers have raised concerns to the potential impact of the development on nearby residential 

dwellings. The nearest residential dwellings are sited approximately 40m from the proposed building.  

 
In response to these concerns, Members will note that the applicant has revised the design of the 

building to ensure that only the western elevation of the building (facing away from the residential 

dwellings) is open sided. All other elevations have been closed. Further, the following comments have 

been made: 

 

“The shed currently under discussion is for young stock (baby calves, weaning to 6 months old). The 

simple rationale this proposed siting is: 

 

• Small calves intake is low, therefore, less tractor time to feed. 

• It is imperative that small calves are kept on dry bedding, with actual faecal content of the  

   manure is very low resulting in less odours. 

• All cattle need open ventilated housing, with Leppington being sited on the hill top it catches  

  the prevailing breeze to move lingering trapped smells away – an open shed should,    

  therefore, help prevent a building up of flies in low dark corners. 

• With young calves, in order to not spread any disease it is vital they are regularly cleaned  

   out and disinfected – further reducing the build up of old manure for odour and flies etc. 

• It is situated within the curtilage of the yard as per advise given by the Ryedale Planning  

  Officers.” 

 

Following the provision of the above, the Council’s Environmental Health Officers have raised no 

objection to the proposal subject to the recommended condition relating to manure management.  

 

With regards to the siting of the building, the proposal has been located immediately adjacent to the 

existing farm buildings and within the existing farmstead. Although there are residential dwellings 

located within close proximity to the site (approx. 40m), it is important to note that this is an 

established farmstead, and given the nature of the building and the comments of Environment Health 

Officers, it would be unreasonable to require the siting of the building elsewhere.  

 
The design of the building is considered to be appropriate and given its scale would not result in any 

harmful overshadowing or loss of light to the nearest residential dwellings. In terms of the wider 

landscape impact, the building would be seen in the context of the farmstead. This is considered to be 

the most appropriate siting for the building in landscape terms and would not harm the character of 

the Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape Value.  

 

 

 

 

 

CONCLUSION: 

 

Page 407



�
����������	

������

������������

The planning application is considered to accord with relevant planning policy and there are no 

material considerations, which override this compliance.  The recommendation is therefore one of 

conditional approval. 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 

 

2 All farmyard manure shall be removed from the Approved buildings within a cycle of 35 

days and removed offsite for disposal immediately, unless a revised manure management 

plan is submitted for approval in writing to the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the 

manure management plan shall be reviewed annually and submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority prior to any major change occurring. 
  

 Reason:- To prevent a build up of agricultural wastes leading to problems of odour and flies 

to neighbouring residents. To protect residential amenity in accordance with Policy SP20 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:  In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with the requirements of Policy 

SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 
4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Drawing Ref. WFT  April 2014 (Revised Plan) 

 Site Location Plan (date stamped 6 May 2014) 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

 

Item Number: 18 

Application No: 14/00593/FUL 

Parish: Lillings Ambo Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: J And J Properties (Mr John Nellis) 

Proposal: Demolition of existing dwelling and agricultural buildings to allow 

erection of 1no. four bedroom replacement dwelling with detached double 

garage, erection of two storey and single storey extensions to existing 

farmhouse to form a five bedroom dwelling following demolition of single 

storey outbuildings and erection of a terrace of 3no. three bedroom 

dwellings with block of 3no. detached garages 

Location: Village Farm Goose Track Lane West Lilling YO60 6RP 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  29 July 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  18 July 2014 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 
Property Management Contribution to POS requested  

Countryside Officer Recommend conditions  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend condition  

Highways North Yorkshire No views received to date  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Countryside Officer Recommend condition  

Parish Council Concerns re position of replacement and new dwellings 

and clarify on mains drainage request & requests garage 

condition.  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE:  

 

The application site is located partly within and partly outside the development limits of West Lilling. 

The site comprises two detached dwellings and a range of redundant agricultural buildings. The 

application site has a frontage onto Goose Track Lane measuring 59m and a depth of approximately 

41m at its greatest.  

  

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of an existing dwelling and agricultural buildings to 

allow the erection of 1no. four bedroom replacement dwelling with detached double garage, erection 

of two storey and single storey extensions to existing farmhouse to form a five bedroom dwelling 

following demolition of single storey outbuildings and the erection of a terrace of 3no. three bedroom 

dwellings with a block of 3 no. detached garages. The proposed development will be constructed of 
clamp bricks under a mixture of clay pantile and slate roofs with timber windows and doors. The 

specific details of the scheme include: 

 

• The proposed replacement dwelling will approximately measure 10.5m by 13.4m at its largest 

and be 4.9m to the eaves height and 7.9m to the ridge height.  

 

Agenda Item 18

Page 418



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

• The single storey side extension to Village Farmhouse will have a footprint approximately 

measuring  5.4m by 9.2m and be 4.8m at its ridge height, and a rear two-storey extension that 

will have a footprint approximately measuring 13.5m at its largest by 5.5m and 6.7m at its 

ridge height. 

 

• Two of the proposed terraced dwellings will have a footprint that will approximately measure 

7.1m by 8.4m and be 4.6m to the eaves height and 7.1m to the ridge height. The end terraced 

dwelling at the western side will be slightly larger and measure 7.1m by 9m and be 4.7m to 

the eaves height and 7.7m to the ridge height. 

 

• The proposed triple garage will measure 10.4m by 6m and 2.5m to the eaves height and 4.2m 

to the ridge height, it will be located at the rear of the terrace of dwellings. A double garage 

approximately measuring 6.4m by 6m and be 2.5m to the eaves height and 4.2m of the ridge 

height it proposed to serve the replacement dwelling. 
 

The proposal is to have two access points at either side of the central terrace of dwellings; the access 

to the eastern side is proposed to serve the replacement dwelling and the proposed terrace of three 

dwellings and the access to the western side will serve Village Farm House. A solid 2m high timber 

fence is proposed across the rear boundary. A pedestrian footpath is proposed across the majority of 

the site’s frontage.  

 

HISTORY: 

 

There is no relevant planning history relating to the site. 

 

POLICY:  
 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 
National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 

 

Local Planning Strategy - adopted 5 September 2013 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP11- Community Facilities and Services 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity  

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 
Policy SP21 - Occupancy Restrictions 

Policy SP22 – Developer Contributions 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

 
1. The principle of the proposed development; 

2. The siting, scale and design of the proposed developments; 

3. Occupancy restrictions; 

4. Impact upon the amenity of the adjoining neighbours; 

5. Whether the proposal has a satisfactory level of residential amenity; 

6. Public Open Space; 

7. Drainage; 

8. Ground contamination; 

9. Highway safety; and 

Page 419



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

10. Landscaping. 

 

An application was submitted for a similar proposal on this site last year. That application was 

withdrawn due to Officer concerns regarding the design of the scheme and inadequate information in 

relation to protected species. 

 

Principle of the proposed developments 

There is considered to be no objection in principle to the demolition of Yew Tree Cottage or the 

existing agricultural buildings, and they are afforded no protection.  The location of the new dwellings 

are within the development limits of West Lilling.  Their gardens extend beyond the development 

limits, however, there is considered to be no significant impact upon the open countryside, given the 

redundant buildings that are to be removed. 

 

Policy SP2 supports the provision of replacement dwellings within the development limits of West 

Lilling. Furthermore Policy SP2 also supports infill development within the development limits of 
West Lilling, providing it is within a ‘continually built up frontage’, subject to a Local Needs 

Occupancy condition.  This is because West Lilling is not a ‘Service Village’. The agent has 

confirmed that the three new properties are to have a Local Needs Occupancy condition and that there 

are potential occupiers available to meet the requirement of the condition.  A list of potential 

occupiers has been submitted with the application. 

 

Extensions to existing dwellings are acceptable in principle providing that they meet the criteria 
contained within Policy SP16 and SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

 

Replacement dwelling (Yew Tree Cottage) 

Yew Tree Cottage measures 9.5m by 5m and is 4.4m to its eaves and 6.9m to its ridge height.  It is a 

double frontage cottage.  The replacement dwelling is 1.5m wider and excluding the rear wing is 4m 

deeper.  It is also 1m higher at its ridge height. 

 

The replacement dwelling is also in a double fronted style, and it is considered to relate well to the 

character and appearance of the settlement.  Its scale, whilst larger than the existing dwelling is 

considered to represent an acceptable form of development that is in keeping with other properties 

within the village.  The siting of the front elevation of the replacement dwelling is in exactly the same 

location as the existing dwelling, ensuring the street frontage character of the development is retained.  

In summary, the siting, scale and design of the replacement dwelling is considered to meet the 
requirements of Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

The proposed detached double garage is located to the rear of the Village farmhouse and it is 

considered to be acceptable in terms of its siting, sale and design. 

 

Following receipt of comments from the neighbour to the east, Ambleside the proposed dwelling has 

been set in from the common boundary. Its side windows are proposed to be obscure glazed, and 
given the separation distances it is not considered that the proposed development will have an adverse 

effect upon the adjoining properties. 

 

Extensions to Village Farmhouse 

The proposed single storey side extension will relate well to the front elevation of Village Farmhouse 

and the rear projecting wing is considered to be sympathetic to the character and appearance of the 

existing dwelling. The rear two storey extension will feature a double gable running parallel to the 
main roof ridge. This double gable feature is a traditional way of extending farmhouses in Ryedale, 

and in this case the proposal is considered to represent a sympathetic extension to the dwelling. The 

proposed gabled canopy porch is considered to break up the front elevation.  

 

It is considered that the proposed extensions will not have a material adverse effect upon the 

streetscene. 

 

Page 420



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

By virtue of the window arrangement and separation distances, the proposed extensions are not 

considered to have a material adverse effect upon the amenity of the adjoining neighbours. 

 

Proposed terrace of three dwellings 

Since originally submitted, officers have negotiated design improvements to the terraced dwellings 

relating to their siting, design and their detail of design. 

 

The proposed terraced dwellings have been designed with the western-most property being slightly 

larger and set 0.5m further forward than the other two properties.  This is to break up and add interest 

to the terrace, together with changes on the detail of design of each dwelling.  The general design of 

these properties is representative of the other terraced dwellings to the west of the application site.  

The proposals are considered to represent an acceptable form of development that relates well to the 

character of the local area. 

 

The proposed terraced dwellings are located between the replacement dwelling and Village 
Farmhouse, with a paddock area to the rear and agricultural land opposite.  In view of this 

arrangement, the proposals are not considered to have a material adverse effect upon adjoining 

neighbours. 

 

Whether the proposals will have a satisfactory level of residential of amenity 

The proposed site is relatively large and the proposed new dwellings will have a satisfactory level of 

private residential amenity. There is considered to be sufficient separation from the grain dryer at 
West Lilling Farm to the southern side (minimum 42m). This arrangement has been discussed with 

the Environmental Health Officer and no objections are raised.  It is noted that there are existing 

properties that are closer to the grain dryer and that there are agreed protection measures in place 

regarding its operation.  The position of the existing outbuildings, garages and the proposed 2m solid 

close-boarded fence will help attenuate noise from the grain dryer to ensure the amenity of the 

proposed properties are not compromised. 

 

Highway safety 

The Local Highway Authority has requested amendments to the application relating to passing places 

on the access to the eastern side, a pedestrian footpath and visibility sight lines. It is understood that 

agreement has been reached with the Highway Authority over the changes and the applicant is 

currently amending the drawings to reflect the requirements of the Highway Authority, Members will 

be updated at the meeting. 
 

Ecology and protected species 

The Council’s Countryside Management Officer had requested an additional survey. On receipt of 

this survey the Countryside Management Officer has recommended a condition.  Although a bat 

license is not required the mitigation recommends that the actions contained in Section 7.3 of the 

additional report are undertaken. These include a pre-works commencement survey, construction of a 

bat loft, restrictions on the timing of works to the building, and the adoption of a method statement for 
works.  

 

Public Open Space 

In accordance with Policy SP11 of the Local Plan Strategy, a financial contribution is required 

towards Public Open Space from the proposed three new terraced dwellings. The Council’s Valuer 

has calculated this to be £6,525. A S106 legal agreement is required in order to secure this 

contribution. 
 

Ground contamination 

The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has considered the submitted screening information in 

relation to ground contamination and has no objection subject to the imposition of a standard 

condition requesting further information. 

 

 

 

Page 421



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

Other issues 

The Parish Council has raised three concerns; it considers that the replacement dwelling and terrace of 

three dwellings should be set back from Goose Track Lane by 3-4m in order to provide a passing 

place/widened part of the highway; that the garages are only used for that purpose; and concerns 

regarding the method of draining foul water. Their concern in relation to the layout of the dwellings 

particularly relates to the number of heavy vehicles using Goose Track Lane and movements through 

the village. Their concerns have been discussed with the Highway Authority and considered in detail. 

However, there is no requirement from the Highway Authority for such a lay-by re-arrangement in 

terms of highway safety.  Furthermore, to make that change would mean that the three new dwellings 

and the replacement dwelling would be located outside the development limits of the village for no 

justifiable reason. The garages can only be used for domestic purposes, and to change their use would 

require a separate planning application for consideration.  It is, therefore, considered unnecessary to 

condition their use.  The foul water is proposed to drain to a package sewage treatment plant. The 

applicant owns the land to the rear and the Environmental Health Officers have no concerns regarding 

the acceptability of this method of drainage. The precise details would be addressed at Building 
Control stage. If the package treatment plant is to drain into a ditch or culvert, consent from the 

Environment Agency would also be required. 

 

In view of the above, this application is recommended for approval subject to a S106 Agreement in 

respect of Public Open Space and a satisfactory response from the Highway Authority. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to S106 Agreement in respect of Public 

Open Space 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

   
 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 

construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre 

square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. 

The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed 
   

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as 

may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, full details of the materials and 

design of all means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter these shall be erected prior to the occupation of any dwelling 

to which they relate. 

   

 Reason:- To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 

neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, as required by 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

 

Page 422



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

5 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of 

landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs 

and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The 

submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on 

planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including  existing items to be retained.. All 

planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the 

first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer 

period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs 

which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 

similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 

variation. 

   

 Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved and to comply 
with the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6 The 3 no. terraced dwellings hereby approved shall only be occupied by a person(s) 

including their spouse and any dependants who: 

   

 - Have permanently resided in the Parish, or adjoining parish, for at least three years and are 

now in need of new accommodation, which cannot be met from the existing housing stock; 
or 

 - Do not live in the Parish but have a long standing connection to the local community, 

including a previous period of residence of over three years but have moved away in the past 

three years; or service men or women returning to the parish after leaving military service; 

or 

 - Are taking up full time permanent employment in an already established business which 

has been located within the parish, or adjoining parish, for at least the previous three years; 

or 

 - Have an essential need arising from age or infirmity to move to be near relatives who have 

been permanently resident within the District for at least the previous three years. 

   

 Reason:- To meet the requirements of Policies SP2 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy.  
 

7 No development shall commence on site until further details of finished ground floor levels 

in relation to a measurable datum point have been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter only be carried out in 

accordance with the approved levels details. 

   

 Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the area is not prejudiced and to satisfy Policy 
SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

8 Prior to the commencement of the development precise details of the means of draining foul 

water, including percolation tests shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:  In order to ensure that the site can be effectively drained and to comply with Policy 
SP3 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

9 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of all windows, doors and garage 

doors, including means of opening, depth of reveal and external finish shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

  

 Reason: To ensure an appropriate appearance and to comply with the requirements of Policy 

SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 423



�

����������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������������	

���������

���������������������������������������������

 

10 Prior to the commencement of development hereby approved, precise details of the ground 

surfacing materials shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

  

 Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy Policy SP20 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

11 Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority , development shall 

not commence until actual or potential land contamination at the site has been investigated 

and a Phase 1 Desk Study Report has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority.  Should further intrusive investigation be recommended in the 

Phase 1 Report or be required by the Local Planning Authority, development shall not 

commence until a Phase 2 Site Investigation Report and if required, or requested by the 

Local Planning Authority, a Remediation Statement have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Reports shall be prepared in accordance with 

Contaminated Land Report 11 and BS 10175(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of 

Potential Contaminated Sites.  Submission of a verification report to be approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority will be required on the completion of any remedial work.   

  

 Reason: In order to fully assess potential ground contamination and to satisfy National 

Planning Policy Framework. 
 

12 The development shall be undertaken in accordance with Section 7.3 of the Bat Activity 

Report dated May 2014 with precise details to be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority, prior to commencement of the development. 

  

 Reason:- In order to take account of protected species and to satisfy Policy SP14 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

13 Conditions recommended by Highways Authority 

 

14 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

   
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



Page 455



Page 456



Page 457



Page 458



Page 459



Page 460



Page 461



Page 462



Page 463



Page 464



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

30 July 2014 

 

 

Item Number: 19 

Application No: 14/00695/FUL 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr Jamie Rotherham 

Proposal: Installation of automatic doors to west elevation to replace existing manual 

doors. 

Location: Ropery House RDC Area Office The Ropery Pickering North Yorkshire 

YO18 8DY 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  15 August 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  21 July 2014 
Case Officer:  Rachel May Ext: 329 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date 

 

Neighbour responses: No views received 
 

 

 

SITE: 
 

Ropery House is the Tourist Information Centre located in the market town of Pickering, within the 

‘saved’ Development Limits.  

  

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought for the installation of automatic doors to west elevation to replace 

existing manual entrance doors.   

 

Members are advised that this application has been referred to Planning Committee as the application is 

submitted on behalf of Ryedale District Council.   

 

HISTORY: 
 

None. 

 

POLICY: 

 
National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 
Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - General Development Management Issues 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 19

Page 465



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

30 July 2014 

PUBLICITY: 
 

No responses received. 

 

APPRAISAL:  

 

The main considerations to be taken into account when considering this proposal are:  

 

i. Character and Form  
ii. Impact upon the streetscene 

iii. Other matters 

 

(i) Character and Form 

 

The proposed doors will be 2.4 m x 2.45 m, which are exactly the same size as the existing doors, and 

therefore they are considered appropriate.  They will be positioned in the same place as the current 
doors, fronting on to The Ropery.   

 

It is proposed the doors will be aluminium frames and will retain the overall external appearance of the 

existing doors.  It is considered, therefore, that the replacement doors integrate well into the 

surroundings whilst also improve the accessibility to the building.  It is considered that the proposal is 

compliant with Policy SP16 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.   

 
(ii) Impact upon the street scene  

 

The utilisation of similar doors and appropriate material respects the immediate locality and will not 

have any adverse impacts upon the street scene of The Ropery.  Therefore this proposal is considered to 

comply with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

  

(iii) Other Matters  

 

No response has been received from Pickering Town Council or the neighbours with regard to the 

proposal.  

 

Conclusion 

 

In view of the above, the recommendation on this application is one of approval subject to no additional 

issues raised following the expiry of the consultation period. 

 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 
National Planning Policy Framework 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Proposed New Entrance Doors - drawing number ROP/002  

  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

Page 466



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

30 July 2014 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 467



Page 468



Page 469



Page 470



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

30 July 2014 

Item Number: 20 

Application No: 14/00699/FUL 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Ryedale District Council (Robert Austin) 

Proposal: Replacement of existing hardwood windows on south elevation with 

aluminium double glazed units and replacement of UPVC windows in bay 

window with aluminium double glazed units together with installation of 

flat roof on bay window. 

Location: Ryedale Swimming Pool Mill Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8DJ 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  18 August 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  28 July 2014 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No objection  

 
Neighbour responses: None 

 
 

 

SITE: 

 

Ryedale Swimming Pool is a community facility that is located on the southern side of the Market Town 

of Pickering. It is directly accessed off Mill Lane and there is a car park to the front of the building. This 

application seeks changes to the rear of the building that directly faces onto a green parcel of land that is 

also owned by Ryedale District Council.  

 

HISTORY: 

 

There is no relevant history in relation to the proposal.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Members are advised that this application has been referred to Planning Committee as the application is 

submitted on behalf of Ryedale District Council.  

 

This planning application seeks to replace the existing hardwood windows on the south elevation with 

aluminium double glazed units and replace the UPVC windows in the bay window with aluminium 

double glazed units together with the installation of a flat roof on bay window. All of the above changes 
are to the rear of the building  

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations to be taken into account when considering the proposal are the following: 

 

i. Character and form 
ii. Impact upon the street scene 

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenities  

iv. Other matters 

Agenda Item 20

Page 471



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

30 July 2014 

 

i. Character and form 

 

The proposal seeks to replace both hardwood windows and UPVC windows with aluminium double 

glazed units. The proposed materials of aluminium and double glazing are considered to be appropriate 

and sympathetic to the character and appearance of the existing building, complying with Policy SP16 

(Design) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. The proposed design of the windows will be 

vertically glazed. The installation of a flat roof on the bay window is also considered to be appropriate 

and sympathetic to the character and appearance of the existing building. The double glazed units are 

considered to improve the thermal efficiency of the building and reduce solar gain.  

 

ii. Impact upon the street scene 

 

Due to the proposed alterations being to the rear of the building, they will not be readily visible from 

any public viewpoints. Therefore, the proposal will not have a detrimental impact upon the immediate 
locality and the street scene, complying with Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) 

of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenities  

 

With the proposal being replacements, there will be no additional windows added to the building. The 

rear of the properties of 'Pool Court' and 'Malton Road' are located adjacent to the green parcel of land 
and the building and the windows do not directly face into their rear gardens. The proposed flat roof will 

measure the same height to the ridge as the existing lean to bay window. Therefore, the proposal will 

have minimal impact upon neighbouring amenities in terms of being overbearing in presence, causing 

loss of light or loss of privacy, complying with Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management 

Issues).  

 

iv. Other matters 

 

No response has been received from Pickering Town Council or the neighbours with regard to the 

proposal. However Members should note that the consultation period of the application does not expire 

until 28th July 2014. 

 

In view of the above, the recommendation on this application is one of approval subject to any further 
issues raised during the consultation period. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Drawing Number RP/WR/002. 

  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

Page 472



Page 473



Page 474



Page 475



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS 

  
 

 

1.  

Application No: 13/01300/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estates (Mr K Davies) 

Location: Talbot Hotel 45 - 47 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AJ  

Proposal: Display of 2no. internally-illuminated brass menu boards above and either side of 

north elevation entrance door 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  

Application No: 13/01301/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estates (Mr K Davies) 

Location: Talbot Hotel 45 - 47 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AJ  

Proposal: Display of 2no. internally-illuminated brass menu boards above and either side of 

north elevation entrance door 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3.  

Application No: 14/00338/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sinnington Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr T Scaling 

Location: Cliff Farm Cross Lane Sinnington Pickering YO62 6SS  

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to form an extension to existing touring caravan 

site to include 12 no. additional touring caravan pitches, extension of existing site 

road, landscaping and formation of 3m wide bund to southern boundary 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4.  

Application No: 14/00346/73AM    Decision:  Partial Approve/Refuse 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Taylor Wimpey (North Yorkshire) Ltd 
Location: Land North Of Broughton Road Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Variation of Conditions 11(1)(a) and 15 by replacement of "50 No. dwellings" by "80 

no. dwellings" - maximum number of occupied dwellings that relate to the temporary 

vehicular access arrangements and the completion of construction of the listed 

highway works - and Variation of Condition 16 to allow the use of the temporary 

access for 24 months from the first occupation of a dwelling on the site (until April 

2016) - addition of a further 12 months of use. All Variations in relation to approval 
10/00899/MOUT dated 07.11.2011. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  

Application No: 14/00413/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr R Miah 

Location: 12 Eastgate Square Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DP  

Proposal: Change of use from office (Use Class B1) to Hot Food Takeaway (Use Class A5) and 

installation of extraction unit to rear roofslope 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6.  

Application No: 14/00459/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Agenda Item 23

Page 476



Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Stuart Wood 

Location: Poplar House Farm Leppington Lane Leppington Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

9RL  

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural lean to livestock building adjoining existing livestock 

building 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  

Application No: 14/00470/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Town & Country Fires 
Location: 2 - 4 Enterprise Way Thornton Road Industrial Estate Pickering North Yorkshire 

YO18 7NA  

Proposal: Change of use of car showroom, workshop and offices to a showroom, workshop and 

offices for the sale, storage and manufacturing of heating appliances and related 

products 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  

Application No: 14/00496/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Leavening Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr T W Midgley 
Location: Land At Sandfield Farm Westow Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a 3 bedroom detached equestrian worker's dwelling, formation of 

parking/turning area and provision of a domestic curtilage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9.  

Application No: 14/00499/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Rillington Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Andrew Craven 

Location: 57 Westgate Rillington Malton YO17 8LN 

Proposal: Subdivision, alteration and extension of existing 3 bedroom dwelling to form 2no. 

three bedroom dwelling to include erection of a two storey extension (plot 1) and part 

two storey/part single storey extension (plot 2) together with parking and shared 

manoeuvring space 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10.  

Application No: 14/00502/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Harome Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Chris Ward 

Location: The Haven Main Street Harome Helmsley YO62 5JF  

Proposal: Erection of two storey rear extension and detached outbuilding following demolition 

of existing outbuilding 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

11.  

Application No: 14/00506/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Campbell 

Location: 43 Forest Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7EE  

Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension and formation of vehicular access. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

12.  

Application No: 14/00513/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Westow Parish Council 

Applicant: Mrs Anne Henson 

Location: The Garden Bungalow Kirkham Kirkham Abbey Malton YO60 7JS  

Page 477



Proposal: Blocking up of 1 no. window and formation of 2 no. windows to garden wall 

following erection of replacement dwelling. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

13.  

Application No: 14/00516/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Bulmer Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Robert Tulloch 

Location: Chapel House Main Street Bulmer Malton YO60 7BN  

Proposal: Installation of 2no. conservation roof windows on single storey south elevation 

roofslope. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

14.  

Application No: 14/00518/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: Yorkshire Building Society (Miss Lauren Gilchrist) 

Location: 4 Wheelgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7HP  

Proposal:  Display of 1no. non-illuminated fascia sign and 1no. non-illuminated hanging sign 

to front elevation and 1no. non-illuminated fascia sign to side elevation. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

15.  

Application No: 14/00541/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr Keith Davies) 

Location: 14 Saville Street Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7LL  

Proposal: Display of 1no. non-illuminated timber hanging sign on iron bracket. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

16.  

Application No: 14/00532/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs David Rooke 

Location: West Mill House Farm Stittenham Hill Bulmer YO60 7TP  

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to form a 50m x 25m menage together with 

installation of a horse walker for private domestic use 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17.  

Application No: 14/00536/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Nick Leedham 

Location: Buildings At Finkle Street Sheriff Hutton   

Proposal: Erection of replacement agricultural building for the storage of produce and housing 

of livestock. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

18.  

Application No: 14/00538/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: Miss S Beswick 

Location: West Lodge 3 West Side Close Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AR  

Proposal: Erection of garden room extension to south-east, replacement of kitchen window 

with double doors to east and replacement of 2no. doors and 6no. windows with 

double glazed units to south-west. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

19.  

Application No: 14/00539/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Fryton Parish Council 

Page 478



Applicant: Claire Hudson 

Location: Rose Cottage 3 Fryton Lane Slingsby Malton YO62 4AT  

Proposal: Erection of replacement single storey rear extension. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

20.  

Application No: 14/00540/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Westow Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Robin Graham 

Location: Chapel House Chapel Lane Westow Malton YO60 7ND  

Proposal: Replacement of 1.2m x 0.5m timber strip window on south elevation by 1.2m x 1.3m 

timber window. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

21.  

Application No: 14/00547/73A    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs F Tobin 

Location: 4 St Andrews Castle Howard Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AY  

Proposal: Variation of condition 03 of approval 13/01362/HOUSE dated 20.01.2014 to state 

"The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plan(s): Proposed Floor Plans (date stamped 25 November 

2013), Proposed elevations 1 drawing no. D413005/07 Rev A and Proposed 
Elevations 2 drawing no. D413005/08 Rev A" - revision of materials used. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

22.  

Application No: 14/00548/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Storey 

Location: 10 Ruffa Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7HN  

Proposal: Erection of attached garage and front entrance porch. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

23.  

Application No: 14/00556/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Warthill Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr A F Wilson & Son 

Location: Black Sheds Farm  Warthill York YO19 5XP 

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of livestock 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

24.  

Application No: 14/00557/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Scagglethorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs L Walker 

Location: The Smithy  Scagglethorpe Malton YO17 8DY 

Proposal: Erection of replacement roof with increase in eaves height and overall height of 

dwelling to allow formation of first floor, and replacement of existing side extension 

with part two storey/part single storey and rear extensions to incorporate integral 

garages, together with erection of detached domestic storage building and 2.1m high 

boundary wall. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.  

Application No: 14/00565/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Yorcare Ltd (C Fox) 
Location: 22 Market Place Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AE  

Proposal: Formation of rear access door 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 479



 

26.  

Application No: 14/00566/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs S Mintoft 

Location: Glenfield  Gillamoor Road Kirkbymoorside York YO62 6EL 

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey side and rear extensions to incorporate 

integral garage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

27.  

Application No: 14/00567/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Edstone Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr Christopher Hall 

Location: 2 Ryedale View Great Edstone Kirkbymoorside YO62 6NZ  

Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension to incorporate attached garage. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

28.  

Application No: 14/00569/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Henderskelfe Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Coastline Leisure Ltd (Mr John Northgraves) 

Location: Castle Howard Estate Castle Howard York North Yorkshire YO60 7BY  
Proposal: Temporary siting of timber clad show lodge adjacent to main car park area for 

display between April 1st and October 31st 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

29.  

Application No: 14/00573/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Burythorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Miss Helen Poulson 

Location: Hanging Hill Farm Scotkind Kennythorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9LA  

Proposal: Erection of detached outbuilding to contain log store, workshop and garage for 

domestic use following demolition of existing stable block 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

30.  

Application No: 14/00578/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Huttons Ambo Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Simon Lealman 

Location: 2 Club Cottages The Green Low Hutton York YO60 7HF  

Proposal: Erection of single storey flat roofed infill rear extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

31.  

Application No: 14/00581/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Rillington Parish Council 

Applicant: Ellis Patents Ltd (Mr Richard Shaw) 

Location: Ellis Patents  High Street Rillington Malton YO17 8LA 

Proposal: Replacement of asbestos wall cladding and roof with profiled metal cladding, 

installation of roof ridge ventilation, 2 no. vents each to south west and north east 

roofslopes and 3 no. louvres to south west elevation. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

32.  

Application No: 14/00582/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Peter Nelson Fitness (Mr Peter Nelson) 
Location: 31B Enterprise Way Thornton Road Industrial Estate Pickering North Yorkshire 

YO18 7NA  

Proposal: Change of use of unit used for office and storage to a personal training fitness studio 

Page 480



_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

33.  

Application No: 14/00586/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs I Little 

Location: 11 Mallard View Norton Malton YO17 9EW 

Proposal: Erection of single storey bay window to front elevation. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

34.  

Application No: 14/00587/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Habton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs S Boyes 

Location: Ryelean  Newsham Lane Little Habton Malton YO17 6UA 

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to east elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

35.  

Application No: 14/00591/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Whitwell-on-the-Hill Parish Council 

Applicant: B.T (Mr Philip Preston) 

Location: Telephone Exchange Old York Road Whitwell On The Hill Malton   

Proposal: Erection of 12.1m wooden pole supporting 0.3m microwave radio dish to enable 

broadband delivery to Westow village 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

36.  

Application No: 14/00610/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Steven Blanchard 

Location: 35 Marshall Drive Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7JT  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to east elevation following demolition of existing 

single storey extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

37.  

Application No: 14/00620/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sinnington Parish Council 

Applicant: G R Turnbull And Son Ltd 

Location: The Grange Marton Road Sinnington Pickering YO62 6RB  

Proposal: Erection of extension to an agricultural building to form storage for straw. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

38.  

Application No: 14/00637/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs Thackray 

Location: Sedums 20 York Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6AX  

Proposal: Crown lift T1 Silver birch within TPO 247A /1999  to provide a 2 metre clearance 

from the adjacent roof level. (T2 on application not in TPO) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

39.  

Application No: 14/00629/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Gate Helmsley Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr C & Mrs P Boot 

Location: Derwentdale York Road Stamford Bridge North Yorkshire YO41 1AH  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to rear and side and detached garage following 

demolition of existing flat roofed rear extension and detached garage/store together 

Page 481



with culverting of 6m section of open watercourse (revised details to refusal 

13/01067/HOUSE dated 31.01.2014) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

40.  

Application No: 14/00630/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Habton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Iain Rookes 

Location: Rowan Cottage Habton Lane Great Habton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6TU  

Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Page 482



Agenda Item 24

Page 483



Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on the 1st of July 2014
	5 PART B - Ryedale Community Infrastructure Levy - Discretionary Relief and Payment Instalment Policies
	6 PART A - Scarborough Borough Council - Draft Local Plan
	7 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	8 14/00383/MOUT - Land To North Of Sutton Grange, Langton Road, Norton
	2 Site Location Plan

	9 14/00511/MFUL - Linton Mill , Wintringham, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plan
	4 Supporting Doc

	10 14/00574/MFUL - Musley Bank Stables, Musley Bank, Malton
	2 Revised Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4  Proposed Plans
	5 Plan Additional
	6 Previously Approved Plans-Proposed Plans
	7 Previously Apprved Plans-Elevations
	8 Supporting Document
	9 Parish

	11 07/01162/FUL - S A Bell, Old York Road, Barton Hill
	2 site location plan
	3 Block Plan
	4 Supporting Document
	5 Parish

	12 13/00551/FUL - Land At Dotterel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Site Layout Plan
	4 Block Plans
	5 Plan Elevations
	6 Plan Streetscape
	7 Design & Access Statement
	8 Wind turbine Applications in Ryedale 1
	9 Wind turbine Applications in Weaverthopre area
	10 Supporting Doc 1
	11 Supporting Doc 2
	12 Parish 1
	13 Parish 2
	14 Parish 3

	13 13/00850/FUL - Land To West, Pasture Road, Weaverthorpe, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Proposed Elevation
	4 Plan Streetscape
	5 Plan Additional
	6 Design and Access Statement
	7 Supporting Doc
	8 Wind turbine Applications in Ryedale 1
	9 Wind turbine Applications in Weaverthopre are a
	10 Parish 1
	11 Parish 2

	14 13/00851/FUL - Land To North Of, Main Road, Weaverthorpe, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Proposed Elevations
	4 Plan Streetscape
	5 Plan additional
	6 Design & Access Statement
	7 Supporting Doc
	8 Wind turbine Applications in Ryedale 1
	9 Wind turbine Applications in Weaverthopre area
	10 Parish 1
	11 Parish 2

	15 14/00315/FUL - Land South Of , Street Lane, Pickering
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Proposed Plans
	4 Supporting Document
	5 Parish

	16 14/00362/FUL - Three Tuns Inn, Main Street, West Lutton, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Existing Floor Plan
	4 Proposed Floor Plan
	5 Supporting Document 1
	6 Supporting Document 2
	7 Parish

	17 14/00458/FUL - Poplar House Farm, Leppington Lane, Leppington
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 Plan Revised
	5 Design & Access Statement
	6 Incoming Document

	18 14/00593/FUL - Village Farm, Goose Track Lane, West Lilling
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plans
	4 Existing Plans
	5 Proposed Plans 1
	6 Proposed Plans 2
	7 Proposed Plans 3
	8 Plan Streetscape
	9 Design & Access Statement
	10 Supporting Doc
	11 Parish

	19 14/00695/FUL - Ropery House RDC Area Office, The Ropery, Pickering
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Proposed Plans
	4 Plan Elevations

	20 14/00699/FUL - Ryedale Swimming Pool, Mill Lane, Pickering
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Block Plan
	4 Elevations

	23 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	24 Update on Appeal Decisions

